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ABOUT CIFI

Headquartered in Shanghai, CIFI Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. (“CIFI"
or the "Company” and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
is engaged in the property development, property investment and
property management business in the People’s Republic of China
("PRC” or “China"”). CIFI was ranked 30th nationally in terms of
contracted sales by value in 2014 according to the “China Real Estate
Enterprises Top 100 Sales Ranking in 2014" jointly published by CRIC
Information Group and China Real Estate Appraisal Center.

We principally focus on developing high quality and end-users driven
properties in first- and second-tier cities in China. Our development
projects cover various properties types like residential, office and
commercial complexes. For our residential property development, we
mainly develop mass market products for end-users with comfortable
living environment and at locations with good ancillary facilities as well
as transportation links. For our commercial property development, we
mainly develop offices as well as community commercial properties
primarily for sale. Additionally, we provide property management
services to our residential and commercial customers through our own
property management companies. Leveraging our effective business
model focused on rapid asset turnover, strong execution capabilities, as
well as business strategies developed in line with government policies
on China's real estate sector, we are poised to continue our rapid
growth and develop into a renowned nationwide property developer.

We have achieved a nationwide operating coverage and a strong
presence in selected first-tier cities and second-tier cities in China.
Currently, we have property projects in 14 cities within three
geographic regions in the PRC: the Yangtze River Delta (covering
Shanghai, Suzhou, Hangzhou, Hefei, Nanjing, Zhenjiang and Jiaxing),
the Pan Bohai Rim (covering Beijing, Tianjin, Shenyang and Langfang)
and the Central Western Region (covering Chongging, Changsha and
Wuhan). As at 31 December 2014, we had a land bank with total and
attributable GFA of approximately 9.6 million sq.m. and 7.4 million
sg.m. respectively.

Looking forward, under our missions of creating value for our

customers and building “for a better life”, CIFI strives to become a
leading and well-respected real estate enterprise in China.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LIN Zhong (Chairman)

Mr. LIN Wei (Vice-chairman)

Mr. LIN Feng (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. GU Yunchang

Mr. ZHANG Yongyue

Mr. TAN Wee Seng

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. TAN Wee Seng (Chairman)
Mr. GU Yunchang

Mr. ZHANG Yongyue

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. ZHANG Yongyue (Chairman)

Mr. LIN Zhong

Mr. TAN Wee Seng

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. LIN Zhong (Chairman)

Mr. GU Yunchang

Mr. ZHANG Yongyue

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. LIN Zhong
Mr. LIN Feng

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. LO Tai On

REGISTERED OFFICE
P.O. Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS

CIFI Honggiao International

5th Floor, Block 3, Lane 288, Tongxie Road
Changning District

Shanghai

PRC
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Suites 2002-2003, 20th Floor

One Pacific Place

88 Queensway

Hong Kong

COMPANY'’S WEBSITE ADDRESS

www.cifi.com.cn

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited

P.0. Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

PRC

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China

China Construction Bank

Bank of Communications

Hong Kong

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Wing Lung Bank Limited

China CITIC Bank International Limited

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

LISTING INFORMATION
The Company's ordinary shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock Code: 00834)
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Performance Highlights

RERR
—E-mF —Z—=%  Year-on-Year
2014 2013 Growth
ERBE Contracted sales
aRHEESHE(ARERET) Contracted sales (RMB'million) 21,206 15,319 38.4%
AREEREEB(FETK) Contracted GFA (sq.m.) 1,733,200 1,428,300 21.4%
SRIEETHER Contracted ASP (RMB/sq.m.)
(AREETL/FHK) 12,235 10,725 14.1%
TEHHER Selected financial information
EHERAWANEEETET) Recognised revenue (RMB'million) 16,179 11,909 35.9%
EF(AREEBEET) Gross profit (RMB'million) 4,187 3,069 36.4%
FRMB(BREATEYS) Profit for the year (including fair value gains) (RMB'million)
(AREEET)
— BRI R ~ Including non-controlling interests 2,000 2,001 -2.0%
— IR A — Attributable to equity owners 1,861 1,89 1.7%
ZUOENBARBBET) Core net profit (RAMB'million)
— BT RER ~ Including non-controlling interests 2,064 1,510 36.7%
— B (L — Attributable to equity owners 1,939 1,519 27.7%
FTELEESERYE Selected balance sheet data
WEEANRERET) Total assets (RMB'million) 43,539 39,106 11.3%
RITEHRRES(AREFGET) Bank balances and cash (RMB'million) 1124 7,183 -0.8%
EReR(AREEET) Total indebtedness (RMB'million) 13,861 13,374 3.6%
ARG EARERET) Total equity (RAMB'million) 11,583 9,155 265%
R PR R A Equity attributable to equity owners (RMB'million)
(AREBET) 10,205 8,611 185%
ZB-NEFE | —B-=F
2014 2013
FTEHHLLE Selected financial ratios
FER= Gross profit margin 25.9% 25.8%
2y Core net profit margin 12.0% 12.8%
GREARF - AR Eamings per share (basic), RMB cents 31 33
FRERZLER - AREL Core eamings per share (basic), RMB cents 34 26
THEERER Average asset turnover ratio 58.3% 53.4%
TR B ] R Return on average equity 20.6% 20.0%
FREYRALE - FFK Net debt-to-equity ratio, at the end of year 58.2% 67.6%
MEFHEBRAE - FR Weighted average cost of indebtedness, at the end of year 8.3% 9.2%
THEEGEEER  BEYAK)  Land bank (GFA, million sq.m.)
TrEE GREME - F oK) - K Land bank (GFA, sq.m.), at the end of year
— At ~ Total 96 9.2
— fEfh — Attributable 74 76
BERMNEEEBECERK) - £/ Delivered GFA (sq.m.), during the year
— A&t ~Total 14 12
— R ~ Attributable 14 12
METHERR New land acquisition (GFA, sq.m.), during the year
(BE@EE - FHXK) &R
— A&t ~ Total 13 38
— &l — Attributable 1.0 27

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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“Contracted sales” includes sales by the Group’s subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associated company.

“Core net profit” excludes fair value changes, expenses relating to
share option grants, interest expense on settlement of trust and other
loans with derivatives nature and net exchange losses, net of deferred
taxes.

“Bank balances and cash”
deposits.

include restricted cash and pledged bank

“Total indebtedness” includes bank and other borrowings, senior
notes and trust and other loans related derivatives.

“Core net profit margin” is calculated based on core net profit
attributable to equity owners over total recognised revenue.

The calculation of "average asset turnover” ratio is based on
contracted sales divided by average total assets less investment
properties during each financial year.

The calculation of “return on average equity” is based on our core net
profit attributable to equity owners (excluding fair value gains) divided
by average equity attributable to equity owners for each financial year.

“Net debt-to-equity ratio” is calculated by the Group's total
indebtedness (including bank and other borrowings, senior notes,
and trust and other loans related derivatives) under IFRS less bank
balances and cash (including restricted cash and pledged bank
deposits) as a percentage of total equity at the end of each period.

“Weighted average cost of indebtedness” is the weighted average
of interest costs of all bank and other borrowings and senior notes
outstanding as at the end of each period.

The expression “we"”, “us"” and “our Company"” may be used to refer
to our Company or our Group as the context may require.

References to our “land bank”, “development projects”, "property
projects” or “projects” refer to our property projects with land
for which we have obtained land-use rights and property projects
for which we have not obtained land-use rights but have entered
into the land grant contracts or received successful tender auction
confirmations as at the relevant dates.

The site area information for an entire project is based on the relevant
land use rights certificates, land grant contracts or tender documents,
depending on which documents are available. If more than one
document is available, such information is based on the most recent
document available.

The figures for GFA are based on figures provided in or estimates
based on the relevant governmental documents, such as the property
ownership certificate, the construction work planning permit, the pre-
sale permit, the construction land planning permit or the land use
rights certificate.
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Dear shareholders:

| am pleased to present to you the business review and outlook of CIFI
Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. (“CIFI”
subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

or the “Company”, together with its

DIVIDEND

The Board recommended payment of a final dividend of HK 11
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2014. The total
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to
HK$662.9 million (approximately RMB524.6 million), representing
a dividend payout ratio of approximately 27% of the core net profit
attributable to equity owners.

RESULTS

Despite the challenges faced by the China real estate sector in 2014,
the Group sustained its growth in both scale and quality, and further
achieved record highs in terms of sales and profits.

In 2014, the Group achieved contracted sales of RMB21.21 billion,
representing an increase of 38.4% over RMB15.32 billion in the
previous year. Despite the correction in the China real estate sector
during the year, the Group's contracted sales in 2014 was close to the
Group's yearly target set early in the year. In 2014, recognised revenue
was RMB16,179.3 million, representing an increase of 35.9% over
RMB11,909.2 million in the previous year. The Group’s core net profit
attributable to equity owners increased by 27.7% to RMB1,938.6
million in 2014 from RMB1,518.8 million in 2013.

The Group's gross profit margin and core net profit margin were
25.9% and 12.0% respectively in 2014, both of which remained
stable compare to 25.8% and 12.8% respectively in 2013. The Group
delivered a core return on average equity of 20.6% in 2014, compared
10 20.0% in 2013.
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REVIEW OF 2014

Market review

The real estate sector in China entered into a phase of correction in
2014. Historically, cyclical property prices in China due to its macro-
economic environment and fluctuating government policies against
the real estate market have caused the China real estate sector to
undergo a market cycle every three to four years.

According to China National Bureau of Statistics, transaction volume
of primary residential commodity properties in China in 2014 were
1,052 million sg.m., decreased by 9.1% on a year-on-year basis.
During the year, structural imbalance of demand and supply in certain
cities in China became apparent. Tighter bank liquidity and wait-and-
see attitude of potential buyers further exacerbated the real estate
market correction, especially in the first half of 2014. Transaction
volume and prices for different cities and different developers have
become divergent. Different cities have experienced different level of
correction in both volume and prices. Real estate markets in 2014 for
certain Chinese cities have declined remarkably compared to 2013.

With changes in supply-demand relationship of the housing market,
central and local government of China since mid-2014 had promptly
switched its policies towards the real estate sector, from restrictive
controls to supportive measures. Due to clear supports from the
Chinese government signified by lifting of home purchase restrictions
in most cities (except first-tier cities), relaxed mortgage policies for
first-time purchasers and upgraders without previous mortgage
loans, and more importantly, cuts in interest rate and bank reserve
requirements ratio, correction in primary residential prices have shown
signs of bottoming since the fourth quarter of 2014.
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REVIEW OF 2014 (Continued)

Sales performance

Since the end of 2013, the Group had well anticipated the correction
in the physical real estate market in China. In 2014, the Group
implemented its “balanced development and sustainable growth”
strategy and adopted proactive measures to outperform in a more
challenging operating environment. In certain cities in China where
property markets have been more resilient in 2014, the Group was
aggressive in offloading its saleable resources in these cities. On the
other hand, in certain cities in China where property sales volume and
prices have been weaker, the Group adopted a more patient strategy
by holding back its sell-through and defer its sales of such saleable
resources to the following year. Overall, the Group strived to strike an
optimal balance amongst volume, price and profit margin by adopting
flexible and accurate sales strategies.

Despite a tighter and more challenging market environment in 2014,
the Group outperformed the market by achieving growth both in terms
of contracted sales and average selling price. In 2014, the Group’s
contracted sales and contracted GFA reached RMB21.21 billion and
1,733,200 sg.m. respectively, representing year-on-year growth of
38.4% and 21.4% respectively. The Group’s contracted ASP in 2014
was approximately RMB12,235/sq.m., representing an increase of
14.1% from RMB10,725/sq.m. in 2013. Approximately 94% of the
Group's contracted sales in 2014 were derived from first- and second-
tier cities. The Group achieved a cash collection ratio of around 80%
from its contracted sales during 2014.

The Group’s contracted sales in 2014 were dispersed among more
than 50 projects in 13 cities. During the year, the Group launched
presale of 18 new projects, including:

° Shanghai Henderson CIFI Center;

° Shanghai CIFI Arthurshire;

° Shanghai Elite Mansion;

° Shanghai CIFI U Block;

° Shanghai Greenland CIFI E World Center;
° Shanghai CIFI Haishang International,
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REVIEW OF 2014 (continued)

Sales performance (Continued)

° Shanghai CIFI Shilu;

° Suzhou CIFI Apple Paradise;

o Hangzhou Greenland CIFI Glorious City;

o Hangzhou Henderson CIFI Palace;
° Chongqing CIFI City;

° Changsha CIFI International Plaza;
° Changsha CIFI Dream Mansion;

° Shenyang CIFI Private Mansion;

° Wuhan CIFI Private Mansion;

o Zhenjiang CIFI East One Place;

° Jiaxing CIFI Ronchamp Town; and
° Jiaxing CIFI Private Mansion.

The Group also continued to record contracted sales in other projects,
the pre-sale of which started in previous year(s).

CIFI was ranked 30th nationally in terms of contracted sales by value
in 2014 according to the “China Real Estate Enterprises Top 100 Sales
Ranking in 2014" jointly published by CRIC Information Group and
China Real Estate Appraisal Center.

Profit margins

In 2014, the Group's profit margins remained stable. Effects of
correction in selling prices in the physical markets on profit margins
had been alleviated by (1) the Group’s lower finance costs through
its liability management exercise, (2) the Group’'s defensive and
reasonable land prices, (3) product premium through the Group's
improving quality and brand; and (4) more efficient selling and general
administrative expenses.

Land acquisitions

When the China real estate market was undergoing correction in
the first three quarters of 2014, the Group remained cautious in land
acquisition and refrained from purchasing land with overly aggressive
land costs. The Group became more proactive in land-banking in
selected out-performing Chinese cities when the real estate market in
these preferred cities showed signs of stabilizing in the fourth quarter
of the year.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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REVIEW OF 2014 (continued)

Land acquisitions (Continued)

In 2014, the Group acquired interests in 10 new projects with an
aggregate land consideration attributable to the Group of RMB6.0
billion. For land acquisitions made during the year, the Group placed
strong emphasis in the two first-tier cities: Shanghai and Beijing,
and made reasonable replenishments in selected prefer second-tier
cities: such as Suzhou, Hefei and Nanjing. During the year, the Group
successfully entered Nanjing, one of the top-notch Chinese cities
with a resilient real estate market in this phase of correction and a
long-awaited new city by the Group to complete its coverage in the
Yangtze River Delta.

The Group continued utilising joint venture strategies in land
acquisitions with a key objective of diversifying its financial exposure.

Upgrades in credit ratings and further breakthrough in liability
management

In 2014, the Group continued to lower its funding costs, with an
objective to match with its growth in scale. During the year, the Group
made further breakthroughs in its liability management exercise.

Upgrades in credit ratings

o The Group was one of the very few privately-owned China Real
Estate issuers which achieved upgrades in international credit
ratings in 2014.

° In 2014, Fitch and Moody respectively upgraded our issuer’s
credit rating to “BB-" (with “Stable” outlook) and “Ba3"
(with “Stable” outlook) respectively; while in February
2015, Standard & Poor’s also upgraded our issuer’s rating to
“"BB-"(with “Stable” outlook). All three credit rating agencies
unanimously upgraded our credit rating, reflecting CIFl's track
record in sales execution, disciplined financial management and
strong financial liquidity.
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REVIEW OF 2014 (continued)

Upgrades in credit ratings and further breakthrough in liability
management (Continued)

Offshore bond issues

In January 2014, the Company issued a new 5-year US dollar
senior notes due 2019 (“US Dollar Bonds Due 2019") with a
principal amount of US$200 million at a coupon rate of 8.875%.
Within less than a year, the Company successfully lowered
its b-year US dollar bonds issue cost from its inaugural issue
coupon of 12.25% last year to less than 9%.

In January 2015, the Company further issued the US Dollar
Bonds Due 2019 with an additional principal amount of US$200
million. The issue price of this additional issue was 102% with
an effective interest cost of approximately 8.3% per annum.

Syndicated project loans

In January 2014, the Group’s 50:50 joint venture companies
with Greenland Hong Kong Holdings Limited in respect of
Hangzhou Greenland CIFI Glorious City project signed offshore
and onshore syndicated loan facilities. Such loans comprise
(i) an offshore term loan facility with an aggregate amount of
approximately US$320 million, with a final maturity of 3 years
and interest rate of LIBOR or HIBOR plus 4% per annum; and
(i) an onshore term RMB project development loan facility with
a facility amount of RMB1 billion, with final maturity of 3 years
and interest rate of 106% times PBOC Base Rate per annum.

In November 2014, the Group’s 50:50 joint venture companies
with Henderson China Properties Limited in respect of Shanghai
Henderson CIFI Center project signed offshore and onshore
syndicated loan facilities. Such loans comprise (i) an offshore
HKD term loan with a facility amount of HK$1.44 billion, a final
maturity of 3 years and interest rate of HIBOR plus 4% per
annum; and (ii) an onshore RMB project development loan with
a facility amount of RMB1.5 billion, a final maturity of 3 years
and interest rate of 106% times PBOC base lending rate per
annum.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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REVIEW OF 2014 (continued)

Upgrades in credit ratings and further breakthrough in liability

management (Continued)

Offshore syndicated loan

o In January 2015, the Company signed a new syndicated loan
facility with an initial size of approximately US$120 million and
a greenshoe option of an additional US$100 million. Such loan
has a final maturity of 3 years and interest rate of LIBOR or
HIBOR plus 4.75% per annum.

In the end of 2014 and the beginning of 2015, a few China real
estate developers were reported to be involved in anti-corruption
events in the PRC, thereby resulting in excessive volatility in offshore
funding costs of China real estate corporate borrowers and severe
cautiousness of the international capital markets against the sector.
However, the Group remained relatively unaffected by such tightening
in the offshore funding markets. Our emphasis in the past two years
in diversifying our financing channels and penetrating into different
funding markets (both onshore and offshore) have started to pay off.
Since the end of 2014, we decisively captured the market window
amid difficult offshore market and secured the above mentioned
low-cost funding transactions to cater for our upcoming phase of
development.

Prudent financial positions

Despite tighter onshore liquidity in China in most periods of 2014, the
Group maintained good cash collection from its sales of properties.
The Group’s emphasis on first- and second-tier cities and its end-
users driven product structure facilitated better disbursement for both
onshore development loans and for mortgage loans to end-users.

As a result of better cash collection rate within the industry, cautious
land acquisition spending, restrained pace of new construction
and continued progress in liability management in 2014, the Group
sustained a healthy financial position with its debt structure continued
to improve due to lower interest costs, longer maturity, higher
proportion of unsecured offshore debts and lower proportion of
onshore non-bank borrowings.
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REVIEW OF 2014 (continued)
Prudent financial positions (Continued)
As at 31 December 2014, the Group's:

° net debt-to-equity ratio was 58.2% (31 December 2013:
67.6%);

° total indebtedness remained stable at RMB13,861 million (31
December 2013: RMB13,374 million);

° cash-on-hand level remained high at RMB7,124 million (31
December 2013: RMB7,183 million);

° weighted average cost of indebtedness decreased to 8.3% (31
December 2013: 9.2%);

o proportion of short-term borrowings out of overall indebtedness
remained low at 22% (31 December 2013: 22%);

° proportion of offshore indebtedness (unsecured) out of overall
indebtedness increased to 38% (31 December 2013: 30%);

° proportion of onshore non-bank borrowings out of overall
indebtedness reduced to 6% (31 December 2013: 19%).

As at 31 December 2014, unpaid committed land considerations
attributable to the Group were approximately RMB2,854 million
(versus cash-on-hand of approximately RMB7,124 million). The Group
maintained a conservative and comfortable debt positions and off-
balance sheet commitments.

Customer satisfaction and brand recognition

The Group is dedicated to improve its product quality and customer
service to meet the ever-demanding preferences and needs by
consumers. During the year, the Group launched its nationwide
toll-free customer service hotline, offering one-stop compliant,
maintenance and repair services to the purchasers of the Group's
properties. Based on the customer satisfaction survey conducted
annually by the third-party consultancy firm engaged by the Group,
we recorded new highs in overall customer satisfaction in both
property sales and property management services in 2014 compared
to previous yearly ratings, evidencing that our brand recognition has
further strengthened.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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REVIEW OF 2014 (Continued)

Product development

In line with its strategy to tap into the upgraders’ market and to
improve its profit margins, the Group is committed to enhance its
product capabilities and to raise its proportion of fully-fitted residential
products. During the year, the “CIFI Product Research Center”
commenced operations and started its research and development
of standardized full fitted residential product modules. This research
center studies the application of a range of construction and fitting
materials and simulates the corresponding customer experience
on different residential unit layouts and configurations. It effectively
strengthens the Group’s product capabilities for future development.

Innovations

Despite the unchanged traditional “brick-and-mortar” nature of real
estate industry, the Group acknowledges the need of the industry to
embrace innovations to revolutionize its business process, to enhance
sales channels, and to improve product designs and provision of value-

added customer services.

In 2014, we pioneered the industry trend of utilizing mobile Internet
and successfully developed and applied our “CIFI Wei-Sales” platform
to facilitate third-party agency sales of our properties.

We are also at the forefront within the industry by applying institutional
innovation to promote sense of ownership of our key management
teams and to align their common interest with our shareholders.
During the year, we started to implement management project co-
investment scheme for certain pilot newly acquired projects. Under
such project co-investment scheme, key frontline local management
team at relevant city level as well as key management team at
headquarters level (other than the Company’s directors and their
respective associates) are in-principle required to co-invest with the
Group in the minority interest of project equity for new development
projects, while other employees (other than the Company’s directors
and their respective associates) can also choose to co-invest in the
project.
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OUTLOOK FOR 2015
Compared to the previous year, the Group's outlook for the industry in
2015 is more upbeat.

Macro-economic factors and real estate supply/demand situations
Despite the cyclical correction, long term housing demand remained
intact in first- and second-tier cities in China due to sustained
urbanization and migration of growing population into these big
cities. This is further evidenced by the fact that the corrected primary
residential transaction volume in 2014 were still generally above last
bottom levels in 2011 during the past market cycle in most first- and
second-tier cities in China, a sign reflecting long term uptrend demand
unchanged.

Under the current administration of its central government, China
is now undergoing a “new normal” phase of its macro-economy
characterized by slower GDP growth coupled with more market-driven
economic reforms. To stimulate the domestic economy, the central
government is expected to adopt more monetary easing policies in
2015. The market widely anticipates further round(s) of interest rate
and/or bank requirement ratio. These monetary easing measures will
effectively improve the availability and affordability of mortgage loans
and the sentiment for purchasing real estates. Further, the cumulative
effects from loosening of home purchase restrictions, relaxation of
the one-child policy and mortgage loans for upgraders will be very
effective for releasing end-users’ demand for property. We believe
supply and demand of China real estates will become more balanced
in the upcoming year.

We believe that different cities in China will experience different level
of recovery in 2015. Overall, in the first half of 2015, the real estate
market in China will continue to be driven by inventory clearance
carried over from last year. Accordingly, we expect transaction volume
will initially only recover slowly with stable property prices. On the
supply side, new construction started and land sales in most major
cities declined significantly in 2014 due to the market correction. This
points to an overall shrinkage in supply of new saleable resources
to occur as early as in the second half of 2015, which could possibly
drive a decent rebound in property prices by then. Inventory levels in
first-tier cities were amongst the lowest in the nation with strongest
recovery expected. Inventory levels in different second-tier cities vary
but are generally higher than first-tier cities. Some second-tier cities
with higher inventory levels require longer duration to absorb housing
inventory will show slower recovery. Third-tier cities generally have
the highest inventory levels and their recovery remains uncertain.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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OUTLOOK FOR 2015 (Continued)

The Group’s development strategy

The Group adopts the “balanced development and sustainable
growth” strategy to pursue sustainable and quality growth. This
strategy targets an expansion pace higher than growth rates of the
industry average and those of leading developers, while stresses
balances and disciplines avoiding ruthless, high gearing and low
margin expansions. The Group in future will manage its expansion
cautiously by taking into account the Group's sales performance,
profitability and shareholders’ return, as well as financial prudence.

Navigating through the cyclical cycles of our industry, we emphasise
on maintaining the appropriate rhythm for land acquisition with precise
product positioning as well as timely execution of development
and sales. Based on our analysis of the current market landscape,
we believe that 2015 will mark the beginning of a new market up-
cycle. The land market at the early phase of market recovery usually
offers low-risk opportunities for expansion. As we stayed defensive
for landbanking and preserved significant amount of cash and debt
capacity last year, we plan to proactively capture the ideal land
acquisition window in 2015, with priority in the two first-tier cities,
Shanghai and Beijing followed by outperforming second-tier cities
such as Suzhou, Nanjing, Tianjin and Hangzhou. Our lean and clean
land bank coupled with our asset-light development model and
our reasonably low completed inventory level offer us burden-free
advantage in future expansion over other real estate developers.
As always, we will sustain our systematic, disciplined and prudent
approach for landbanking. We will place priority on quality sites in
better locations suitable for products targeted at self-use upgraders,
the product segment which offers the best profit margin potential at
the current round of market cycle.



W W

Chairman’s Statement

—E-HFRZEwm
AEENRREE ()
BMEEFENEFECLTHERERS
NERS N ERESEHEN T
- AEZT-AFRENEHITHEE
BR -WREBEENEENITHEER(TE
FEARRBUEER ) W MRTFRIHE XL
LRERE  AEBHEN_ZT—AF
MrrEeREEEEZEARK250E
T AT —EFEREL18% - IR
EZE—RAFMHENREE R ETE R
Mo BB ZRMEReE—_S—1
FOTHEFEREMABEE - NRE
WERMHIZERR -

HMeEEIRREMAERaEIK
BA - #RFFENELRESRE  FE
BMEKRANFAEZRECNBEER DR
IROBR » BN EELRER -

|

& AARREEFEMHEMOEE
BEIRRR - BEHFFAAEPERY
HEBRAEN—F  MPMEFEHE A
BNEHE - BUARLERES |

R (KE)BRAF
1

M

20

OUTLOOK FOR 2015 (Continued)

The Group’s development strategy (Continued)

We have already captured the opportunity especially in the fourth
quarter of last year to acquire decent amount of land sites for supply
of new saleable resources in 2015 at attractive land costs. Based on
its existing available saleable resources within the year (excluding
contribution from further new land acquisitions) and using conservative
sell-through assumptions, the Group has set initial contracted sales
target for the full year of 2015 at RMB25 billion, representing an
increase of approximately 18% from the contracted sales in 2014. If
the market recovers to the extent within or above our expectations in
2015 with decent rebounds in property prices, we may choose to sell
more aggressively especially in the second half of 2015 to realize our
investment returns.

We will continue to mitigate our business risks through lowering
our exposures using joint ventures, maintaining balanced operating
cash flows, lowering our finance costs and developing popular
differentiating products in the mainstream end-users’ segment.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere
appreciation to all employees for their dedication and hard work, and
to our shareholders, bondholders and business partners for their
support in the past year.

CIFl Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd.
LIN Zhong
Chairman
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Contracted sales

In 2014, the Group achieved contracted sales of approximately
RMB21.2 billion, representing a growth of 38.4% as compared
to 2013. The growth in the Group's contracted sales was mainly
attributable to the corresponding increase in the Group's saleable
resources and effective sell-through strategies. In 2014, the
Group contracted sales of approximately 1,733,200 sg.m. in GFA,
representing an increase of 21.4% over the previous year. The
Group's contracted ASP in 2014 was approximately RMB12,235/sg.m.,
representing an increase of 14.1% from RMB10,725/sq.m. in 2013.

Contracted sales from Yangtze River Delta, Pan Bohai Rim and Central
Western Region contributed to approximately 64.5%, 24.6% and
10.9% of the Group’s total contracted sales respectively. Contracted
sales from first- and second-tier cities accounted for approximately
94.1% of the Group's total contracted sales whereas those from third-
tier cities accounted for the remaining 5.9%. Contracted sales derived
from residential projects contributed to approximately 85.0% whereas
those from office projects contributed to the remaining 15.0%.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued)

Contracted sales (Continued)

Cash collection from property sales by the Group’s subsidiaries, joint

ventures and associated company during the year represented around
80% of yearly contracted sales.

As of 31 December 2014, the Group's subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associated company had approximately RMB16 billion contracted

but unrecognised sales which formed a solid basis for Group's future

growth in recognised revenue.

Table 1: Details of contracted sales in 2014

REBE S By project
EAERE
KEE HELH
BHREE b &R BAL BRHE BRHE
HE RS Interest HESLH % of total BERE TIEE
Primary intended attributable Contracted Contracted Contracted Contracted
R Project use of the Project  to the Group sales Sales GFA ASP
(AR%TR,/
(AR¥T) (FA*) FHK)
(%) (RMB'000) (%) (sqm.)  (RMBY/sq.m.)
R=A Yangtze River Delta
LBEERERY Shanghai Henderson CIFI Center = 500 907,267 43 24,837 36,530
Residential
HEEEBERL Shanghai Henderson CIFI Center BN VA 50.0 161,041 08 4551 35,386
Office/Commercial
1E BETE Shanghai CIFI Arthurshire FE 500 893,860 42 29497 30,303
Residential
H§ JBE o JRSEH, Shanghai CIFI City F=E 100.0 796,621 38 60,941 13072
Residential
DB Shanghai Elite Mansion £ 500 723,366 34 72,749 9943
Residential
1§ fBIEeUR Shanghai CIFI U Block G/ VA 1000 670,863 32 43,925 15273
Office/Commercial
G MBEeTED Shanghai CIFl Jiangwan Mansion fFE 755 626,042 30 14,574 42,956
Residential
T BB e B Shanghai CIFI Samite Life = 1000 625,053 29 41829 14,943
Residential
LB BB BIEE Shanghai CIF| Pujiang International /N Y 1000 434,407 20 24,206 17,946
Office/Commercial
A5 BEER Shanghai Greenland CIFI E World Center LIUNE VS 50.0 346,902 16 13,900 24,957
Office/Commercial
g BB e Al Shanghai CIFI Pleasant Garden FE 1000 190,830 09 19263 9,89
Residential
8 BEEAEE Shanghai CIFI Private Mansion F=E 1000 144,022 07 6,184 23,288
Residential
LB JBFE o B LR Shanghai CIFI Haishang International g/ HE 530 143332 07 3657 39,199
Office/Commercial
R (EE)ARLA | —Z—NEFR 23
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued)

Contracted sales (Continued)
Table 1: Details of contracted sales in 2014 (Continued)

RIEB &5 (8) By project (Continued)
EBER
r&E HELH
BHRXE bR &6 BAt REHE REHE
REAR Interest HESH % of total REER TYEE
Primaryintended attributable Contracted Contracted Contracted Contracted
R Project use of the Project  to the Group sales Sales GFA ASP
(AR¥T/
(AR¥FR) (FAK) FHK)
(%) (RMB000) (%) (sqm.)  (RMB/sq.m.)
HE BE e EE Shanghai CIFI Luxury Courtyard F=E 100.0 94,930 04 3445 27,552
Residential
15 BE«RLE Shanghai CIFI Pebble Beach FE 1000 92,775 04 7,250 12,79
Residential
LE BEeHE Shanghai CIFI Shilu (Shanghai Honggiao FE 100.0 34,270 02 72 48,151
(DBIEAENIER) Xianfeng Village Project] Residential
g BE e EE Shanghai CIFI Comfortable Joyous Bay i 1000 13,551 0.1 1,071 12,653
Residential
BN OJBIE « TR Suzhou CIFI Elegant City = 1000 950916 45 107,700 8,829
Residential
BN B o T Suzhou CIF| Private Mansion Usonian FE 490 597,428 28 49212 12,140
City Villa Residential
BN mmegE Suzhou CIFI Luxury Courtyard F=E 1000 356,078 17 41,608 8,558
Residential
BN BB e HE Suzhou CIFI Sunny Life £ 1000 266,645 13 31,349 8,506
Residential
BN JBEeBAEE Suzhou CIFI Private Mansion e 1000 257,634 12 29390 8766
Residential
B JBIE 0 BREE Suzhou CIFI Apple Paradise = 51.0 79178 04 10,631 7448
Residential
BN JEE e LNE Suzhou CIFI Canal County £ 1000 62,086 03 4,375 14192
Residential
M JEE 0 BARE Suzhou CIFI Ronchamp Town = 1000 6,665 00 583 11435
Residential
TINER B B Hangzhou Greenland CIFI Glorious City = 500 2,080,609 98 93314 2297
Residential
MMBEEERT Hangzhou Henderson CIFl Palace FE 490 301,345 14 36,123 8342
Residential
BB JBIE ¢ #FY Hefei CIFI Private Mansion FE 1000 983,229 46 110,841 8,871
Residential
AL BB« REE Hefei CIF| Central Park = 1000 19,999 01 2470 8,09
Residential
BT EBeREE Zhenjiang CIFI East One Place £ 1000 205,433 10 35,334 5814
Residential
BT BB e B, Zhenjiang CIFl Times FE 100.0 90,161 04 13,094 6,886
Residential
BT B« BRY Zhenjiang CIFI Times HIUNE VS 100.0 73887 03 7,005 10,548
Office/Commercial

24
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

Contracted sales (Continued)

Table 1: Details of contracted sales in 2014 (Continued)

REBED(®) By project (Continued)
EAERE
r&E HELH
BEREE [Efb R &E BAt REHE REHE
REAR Interest HESH % of total REER TYEE
Primaryintended  attributable Contracted Contracted Contracted Contracted
HH Project use of the Project  to the Group sales Sales GFA ASP
(AR¥T/
(AR¥F) (FHK) FHK)
(%) (RMB'000) (%) (sqm.)  (RMB/sq.m.)
RE 0B« RER Jiaxing CIFI Ronchamp Town FE 1000 20573 11 33755 6,687
Residential
RE BEHF Jiaxing CIFI Private Mansion FE 1000 129,962 06 17241 7538
Residential
REBERS Jiaxing CIFl Square = 1000 10331 * 820 12,605
Residential
RiE Pan Bohai Rim
LR B « 58 Beijing CIFI The Upper House Tz 80.0 1,245,061 59 51,965 23,960
Residential
IER BB e EXM Beijing CIFI The Education Park /N Y 1000 1,108,233 52 43,073 25729
Office/Commercial
bR BB e EEHL Beijing CIFI International Negotiate Garden ~ #i/A%8 /H% 1000 51,751 02 1875 27,59
Office/Commercial
bR B8 « R Beijing CIFI Qlympic City BN Y 1000 29% : 171 17500
Office/Commercial
RE BIE o I Tianjin CIFI Private Mansion £ 478 1,700419 80 144,674 11,753
Residential
XE BB 0 Tianjin CIFI Rosedale FE 1000 407,068 19 56,651 7,186
Residential
RE fBE B2 Tianjin CIFI Paradise Bay #=E 50 56,837 03 12017 4,706
Residential
El5 JBIE « HIfF Shenyang CIFI Private Mansion F=E 100.0 130,558 06 15,967 8,177
Residential
BEYy TBIE e +AUTB Langfang CIFl Path Walf fFx 100.0 518,305 24 71,311 7,268
Residential
g Central Western Region
BF BEY Chongging CIFI City £ 1000 569,823 27 78,702 7,240
Residential
BE BB« %H Chongging CIFI Fashion Tribe YN VE S 1000 247,364 12 31852 7,766
Office/Commercial
BE BB« B Chongging CIFI Langyuejun TE 1000 114,415 05 21,142 5,412
Residential
EE JBE  PEH Chongging CIFl Private Mansion FE 1000 85419 04 13,836 6,174
Residential
Y BE « HIfF Changsha CIFI Private Mansion F=E 100.0 468,350 22 61,852 71572
Residential
BB (B BRAR | —T—NFFHR 25
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued)

Contracted sales (Continued)

Table 1: Details of contracted sales in 2014 (Continued)

By project (Continued)

EAER
K58 HELH
BRXE Efh gD &R BAt SREHE REHE
RERE Interest HESE % of total BEER THEE
Primaryintended attributable Contracted Contracted Contracted Contracted
R Project use of the Project  to the Group sales Sales GFA ASP
(AR¥T/
(AR®Fr) (FHK) FHK)
(%) (RMB000) (%) (sqm.)  (RMB/sq.m.)
Y JBE o EIR B Changsha CIFI International Plaza F=E 50.0 309,090 15 34,348 8,999
Residential
£ BB« EBLAL Changsha CIFl Dream Mansion FE 80.0 187,374 09 25474 7,355
Residential
R TBEeEE Changsha CIFI Luxury Courtyard e 1000 4,883 * 914 5,345
Residential
RE BE « 7 Wuhan CIFI Private Mansion Fx 50.0 292,938 14 37432 7826
Residential
BEURAEM Carpark and others 108,455 05 32,380 3350
A Total 21,205,814 00 173158 12,235
* D01% * less than 0.1%
REEEEED By type of project
HBEREE
SEESL CRHBE ERHE
AEBESHE % of total BEmE Fi9EE
Contracted contracted Contracted Contracted
sales sales GFA ASP
(NR¥ERT,
(AR®F ) (EHXK) FI5K)
(RMB’000) (%) (sq.m.)  (RMB/sq.m.)
F= Residential 17,965,232 84.7 1,555,850 11,547
WA T Office/Commercial 3,240,582 15.3 177,302 18,277
&5t Total 21,205,814 100.0 1,733,152 12,235
26 CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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Ei@%%ﬁﬁ%(%) PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued)
SEEEE) Contracted sales (Continued)
BEmE D By city
HEERHEE
SERDLE ERHE ERHE
CRGESE % of total EBEMmBE FHEE
Contracted contracted Contracted Contracted
sales sales GFA ASP
(AR®x,/
(AR¥F ) (F753K) EHK)
(RMB’000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
= Shanghai 6,903,281 32.6 377,312 18,296
| Suzhou 2,607,527 12.3 282,785 9,221
Gl Beijing 2,409,252 1.4 97,393 24,738
LN Hangzhou 2,405,294 1.3 130,787 18,391
KiE Tianjin 2,164,324 10.2 213,402 10,142
s Chongging 1,037,450 49 152,869 6,787
=y Hefei 1,021,169 48 120,894 8,447
£ Changsha 977,729 46 125,718 1777
ER Langfang 518,305 2.4 71,311 7,268
BT Zhenjiang 371,959 1.8 55,467 6,706
= Jiaxing 366,028 1.7 51,815 7,064
HE Wuhan 292,938 14 37,432 7,826
&S Shenyang 130,558 0.6 15,967 8,177
&5t Total 21,205,814 100.0 1,733,152 12,235
B ER S By region
HBERMEE
SEESL EEHE EEHE
ERKBESE % of total EEmE FIHEE
Contracted contracted Contracted Contracted
sales sales GFA ASP
(AR¥x,
(AR#F ) (EFK) FHK)
(RMB’000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
=7 Yangtze River Delta 13,675,258 64.5 1,019,061 13,419
RE Pan Bohai Rim 5,222,439 24.6 398,072 13,119
g Central Western Region 2,308,117 10.9 316,019 7,304
&t Total 21,205,814 100.0 1,733,152 12,235
TEEIERR (RE)BRAT) | —T—UFFR 27
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EiER & (e PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued)

SEHEEE) Contracted sales (Continued)

B—&5  —ER=8HTE S By first-, second- and third-tier cities
HBEEREE

THEEIL BRHEE BEHEE
BRHEEESHE % of total BEEE FHEE

Contracted contracted Contracted Contracted
sales sales GFA ASP
(AR®x,/
(AR¥F ) (F753K) SETK)
(RMB’000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
— Sk First-tier cities 9,312,533 439 474,705 19,618
TR Second-tier cities 10,636,989 50.2 1,079,854 9,850
=R Third-tier cities 1,256,292 59 178,593 7,034
&5t Total 21,205,814 100.0 1,733,152 12,235
BIE - Notes:
1. LA EEREESURBEHEE RSB - 1. The above contracted sales data includes sales of carparks.
2. —iR e EERIER o 2. First-tier cities refer to Shanghai and Beijing.
3. TR AR KE B CER R 3. Second-tier cities refer to Suzhou, Hefei, Tianjin, Shenyang, Chongqging, Changsha,
B N REE - Hangzhou, and Wuhan.
4. ZEWTIIRET - BE LY o 4. Third-tier cities refer to Zhenjiang, Jiaxing and Langfang.
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued)

Revenue recognised from sales of properties

Revenue recognised from sales of properties in 2014 was
approximately RMB15,653.7 million up by 35.2% year-on-year,
accounted for 96.8% of total recognised revenue. In 2014, the Group
delivered approximately 1,416,900 sg.m. of properties in GFA, up by
14.4% year-on-year. In 2014, the Group's recognised ASP from sales
of properties was approximately RMB11,047/sq.m., representing an
increase of 18.2% from RMB9,346/sg.m. in 2013.

The increase in the Group's revenue recognised from sales of
properties was attributable to the increase in GFA delivered.

Table 2: Breakdown of recognised revenue from property sales in

L ONE 2014
REBES By project
) fEEnE
BERTERIHMAR HEMECEIRA BRAUAES
Primary intended use Recognised revenue % of recognised revenue from ERUEEER ERRTYER
EH Project of the project from sale of properties sale of properties Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
(AR®TT) (E5%) (AR®T/FHX)
(RMB'000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
“E-MF | ZT-=f | =2-mF | =2-=f | =E-mfF | =T-=% | =2-mF | =T-=%
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
b5 eEm Shanghai CIFI City FE 2014122 - 133 - 166,725 - 12,440 -
Residential
L B e Shanghai CIFl Samite Life i 1,129,601 - 12 - 75,334 - 14,99 -
Residential
g BB e TEE Shanghai CIFl Jiangwan Mansion FE 118225 - 46 - 17519 - 40,997 -
Residential
£E B URi Shanghai CIFl U Block YN Vgt 670,863 - 43 - 13925 - 15273 -
Office/Commercial
HE BEeBAEE Shanghai CIFI Private Mansion =2 475914 311,220 3 27 29,404 19210 16,185 16,201
Residential
LE 8RR Shanghai CIFI Pleasant Garden s 309,755 - 20 - 228 - 9511 -
Residential
HE 1B TR Shanghai CIFI Pujiang International LN VA SE 24521 1319767 15 14 13616 73845 11,224 17812
Office/Commercial
B BEeEE Shanghai CIFI Luxury Courtyard FE 79,705 715,901 05 62 2804 40945 28,425 17484
Residential
HE BEARE Shanghai CIFI Pebble Beach ji=2 66,929 148411 04 13 5315 7,638 12,452 19431
Residential
B B e RliE Shanghai CIFI Comfortable Joyous Bay FE 15,247 1,160,782 01 100 1,201 114723 12,695 10,118
Residential
1§ BB e Shanghai CIFl Rose Bay =2 - 400,071 - 35 - 5473 - 15,706
Residential
HE B« TRER Shanghai CIFl Honggiao Intemationl BIE /R - 269,741 - 23 - 9,404 - 28684
Office/Commercial
1§ B tieES Shanghai CIFI Century Square Hne/EE - 198,300 - 17 - 6,983 - 283%
Office/Commercial
g 8%« BIEH Shanghai CIFI Ronchamp Town e - 4676 - * - 144 - 32412
Residential
BN TR e T Suzhou CIF Luxury Courtyard iz 1,913,699 - 122 - 221,380 - 8416 -
Residential
BN BBeEAEE Suzhou CIFl Private Mansion e 723638 - 46 - 86,185 - 839 -
Residential
BN BB EUE Suzhou CIFI Canal County iz 62,086 1,418,269 04 122 3718 157715 16,434 8,993
Residential
BN 1BIE 0 BIEE Suzhou CIFI Ronchamp Town i 6,670 380435 o 33 583 48303 11441 7,868
Residential
BN BB EREE Suzhou CIFI California Bay i - 5450 - * - n - 16925
Residential
RIE T8« fIF Hefei CIF Private Mansion TE 788,406 794792 51 69 92973 109,040 8,480 7289
Residential
AIE B8R« hREE Hefei CIFl Central Park i 22,003 132078 01 11 467 17856 4,705 1397
Residential

fBREER (RE)BRAR | —T—NFEFR
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FEihERE e PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued)
HEMECDERRA(E) Revenue recognised from sales of properties (Continued)
RD ZE-—NERAYEBEENTH®E Table 2: Breakdown of recognised revenue from property sales in
U B4 (&) 2014 (Continued)
BREB &5 () By project (Continued)
EHENE
BERTERIHMR HEMECEARA BRAKAES
Primary intended use Recognised revenue % of recognised revenue from BRAEREER BRATHER
EH Project of the project from sale of properties sale of properties Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
(AR®TT) (E5%) (AR¥T/FHX)
(RMB'000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
ZB-MF | ZF-=% | Z3-BF | ZF-=f | Z2-BF | Z3-=£ | Z3-BF | ZB2-=f%
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
ET 88« B Zhenjiang CIFI Times £ 138,431 753432 09 65 18,364 76,564 7,538 9841
Residential
28 BEES Jiaxing CIFl Square € 12,400 94,641 01 08 1,016 9,603 12,205 9,855
Residential
IR B e i3 Beijing CIFl The Upper House: =2 1,185,712 - 114 - 73,604 - 24,261 -
Residential
bR B8 e EERL Beijing CIFI International Negotiate Garden ~ #370€ /7% 1,506,720 - 96 - 105,874 - 14,231 -
Office/Commercial
IR JEE e BH Beijing CIFI Olympic City EVN V45H 299 3,866 : . ! 0 17532 19084
Office/Commercial
R BB R Beijing CIFI Private Mansion i - 464914 - 40 = 1714 = 2411
Residential
IR B e £H Beijing CIFI Purple County FE - 24,539 - 02 = 1152 = 21,301
Residential
B BB TABE Langfang CIFI Path Walf i 678,847 125,104 43 11 86,125 12,024 1,882 10,405
Residential
KE 8B 0 B Tianjin CIFl Rosedale =2 171503 - 51 - 102,902 - 1,556 -
Residential
BF JBE%B Chongging CIFI Fashion Tribe WAE/EE 3% - 26 - 50,700 - 8124 -
Office/Commercial
- Chongging CIFI Langyuejun =2 15422 758,334 07 65 21,269 122,563 5427 6,187
Residential
EE BB BIER Chongging CIFl Ronchamp Town € 84,226 1039257 05 90 13,607 181,003 6,190 5742
Residential
&) BRI Changsha CIFI Private Mansion =2 179818 837,179 51 12 11,257 121123 7,009 6,912
Residential
R B B Changsha CIFI Luxury Courtyard € 4,883 53,234 * 05 914 11310 5,342 4,707
Residential
£ BEEE Changsha CIFI Upward Community i3 - 4% - * - kel = 13212
Residential
EBliRE Carpark and others 63404 164328 03 14 740 19957 2312 3289
B3t Total 15,653,684 11,579,157 100.0 100.0 1,416,939 1,238900 11,047 9,346
* DP0.1% * less than 0.1%
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= i B A ) PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued)
HEMECERKWA®) Revenue recognised from sales of properties (Continued)
REBBHE D By type of project
RHENRE
HENESRABRA ERABAEDL
Recognised revenue from % of recognised revenue ERNAEEEE BRATIER
sale of properties from sale of properties Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
(AE®TR) (£ARK) (AR¥T/ FHXK)
(RMB'000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
TE-NE | ZF-=F | ZF-0F | Z2-—=F | ZB-0F | ZF-=F | ZF-@0Of | Z2=
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
T=E Residential 12,829,681 9,783,969 82.0 845 | 1,202,823 | 1,147,500 10,666 8,526
/NP Office/Commercial 2,824,003 | 1,795,188 18.0 155 214,116 91,400 13,189 19,641
A&t Total 15,653,684 | 11,579,157 100.0 100.0 | 1,416,939 | 1,238,900 11,047 9,346
B By city
fhEEMX
HEMESHERRA ERIRAB AL
Recognised revenue from % of recognised revenue ERNAREER ERATER
sale of properties from sale of properties Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
(AR®TT) (F5K) (AR%T/EHR)
(RMB'000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
“R-MF (ZT-ZF | SR-RE | 2F-ZF | SER-0F |ZT-ZF [SRRE |2F =
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
! Shanghai 5718522 | 4,538,442 36.9 392 389,492 300,900 14,836 15,083
Ix Beijing 3,295,304 552,031 210 47 179,769 37,000 18,334 14,920
M Suzhou 2,709977 | 1,817,477 13 157 319,806 208,500 8474 8,717
AR Hefei 810,409 936,681 5.2 8.1 91,650 129,900 8299 7.1
&Y Changsha 809,438 900,130 52 18 124,970 136,400 6,477 6,599
x# Tianjin 777,503 - 50 - 102,902 - 7,556 -
B3 Langfang 678,847 125,104 43 11 86,125 12,000 1882 10425
E Chongging 640,104 | 1,845,899 41 16.0 95,645 323,100 6,693 5113
BT Zhenjiang 140,680 768,752 09 6.6 19,564 81,500 119 9433
RE Jiaxing 12,400 94,641 0.1 08 1,016 9,600 12,205 9858
Gh Totel 15,653,684 | 11,679,157 1000 1000 [ 141699 [ 1238300 [ 11047 9346
JEIEER (RBDBR AR | ZF—UFF® 31
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EiER R e PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued)
HEMECERWA ) Revenue recognised from sales of properties (Continued)
BHEE D By region
hEENS*
HENMFSRAUNA ERAUAEAL
Recognised revenue from % of recognised revenue EXNAREER ERATIER
sale of properties from sale of properties Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
(AR®F7) (F5K) (AR®T/LH*)
(RMB'000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
ZBR-RE (ZT-=F |ZF-RF | “T-=F (Z8-0F (—F-=F |ZB-0F (-F-=
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
R=A Yangtze River Delta 9,451,988 | 8,155,993 60.4 704 827528 730,400 142 11,166
fiys it Pan Bohai Rim 4,752,154 677,135 304 58 368,796 49,000 12,886 13819
Gl Central Wester Region 1409502 | 2,746,029 92 B8 220615 459,500 657 5,976
At Total 15,653,684 | 11,679,157 100.0 100.0 1,416,939 1,238,900 11,047 9,346
B8 —8n=8ETEo By first-, second- and third-tier cities
fEHENF
HEMFERAUWA ERIRAED L
Recognised revenue from % of recognised revenue EXNAREER ERATIER
sale of properties from sale of properties Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
(AR®TT) (F5K) (AR®7/FEHX)
(RMB'000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
ZE-MF (Z2-=F |Z2-BF |ZT-ZF (ZE-mF (ZE2-=F |ZB-0F (ZT-=f
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
—BHm First-tier cities 9,074,326 | 5,090,473 580 739 569,261 337,900 15,941 15,065
—igEm Second-tier cities 5747431 | 5,500,187 36.7 476 740,973 797,900 1,151 6,893
=Em Third-tier cities 831,921 988,497 53 85 106,705 103,100 1191 9,588
EH Total 15,653,684 | 11,579,157 100.0 100.0 1,416,939 1,238,900 11,047 9,346
F5E Notes:

1. A L E SR REHEFEA -

2. —AmE LRI R -

3. —EmERN - AlE - XE - BEERRY -
4. =R TIEET - FEREY -

32

The above sales data includes sales of carparks.

First-tier cities refer to Shanghai and Beijing.

Second-tier cities refer to Suzhou, Hefei, Tianjin, Chongging and Changsha.

Third-tier cities refer to Zhenjiang, Jiaxing and Langfang.
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RZZE—NFEFE  ASEHFELTIEER
M 4B SEEFE 49 41,600,000 F 5K (=
T— =4 :1,500,000°FFK) e R-Z
—MF+=—A=+—H  AEEHF27E
EXKYEIEER  AHRLEIRRNA
{REEMEIEH 51,700,000 75K o
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R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—8 K&EE
BRBEREBERXFIERKRAZOYE
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7,900,000+ 75 K % 5,700,000 /5 K °

fBREER (RE)BRAR | —T—NFEFR

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued)

Completed properties held for sale

During the year 2014, the total GFA of newly completed projects of
the Group amounted to approximately 1.6 million sgq.m. (2013: 1.5
million sg.m.). As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 27 completed
properties projects with a total unsold or undelivered GFA of
approximately 1.7 million sgq.m..

Properties under development/held for future development

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 42 property projects
under development or held for future development with a total and
attributable GFA of approximately 7.9 million sg.m. and 5.7 million
sg.m. respectively.
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AEBR-T—NEHHLKRALDSA
R #41,700,0007C * IHERKL12.7% °
RANEEANEREBESR AR Y
AREEERANLHLMESKAS
TR AT o

R ZE—NEZHESWABRMA

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

Rental income

The Group's rental income in 2014 was approximately RMB41.7
million, down by 12.7% year-on-year. The decrease was primarily due
to a temporary decrease in rental income from Jiaxing CIFlI Square as
a result of the moving out of department store tenant and re-leasing of
such areas to retail shops.

Table 3: Breakdown of rental income in 2014

—E-ME —T-=fF
2014 2013
e ek HEWA
HEWA WAESHE HEWA  WABSL BR=E
Rental % of Rental Rental % of Rental  Rental income
income income income income growth rate
ARET T ARETTT
RMB'000 % RMB'000 % %
LB Investment properties

B IEES Jiaxing CIFI Square 38,161 91.5 45,258 948 -15.7
HEig &Y Other investment properties 2,614 6.3 807 17 223.9
Hi3EREYE Other non-investment properties 913 22 1,667 35 452
&3t Total 41,688 100.0 47,732 100.0 -12.7

REME Investment properties

RZTE—NWF+A=+—8 ' &%
EE7TEREYME  LEEFEBEOR
180,700 F /5K « REEEZFIREHEMA
BEF - SIRAREEMELR1,100FH
KO EYECDHIRLE - AT
B o
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As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 7 investment properties with
a total GFA of approximately 180,700 sg.m. Out of such investment
properties portfolio of the Group, 5 investment properties with a total
GFA of approximately 91,100 sg.m. had commenced leasing, while
the remaining was under development.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

In 2014, the Group's recognised revenue was approximately
RMB16,179.3 million, up 35.9% year-on-year. Out of the Group's
total recognised revenue in 2014, (i) sales of property increased
by 35.2% from the previous year to approximately RMB15,653.7
million; (i) rental income decreased by 12.7% from the previous year;
and (iii) property management and other property related service
income increased by 71.5% from the previous year, as boosted by
additional new property projects completed and added in our property
management portfolio during the year.

Table 4: Breakdown of recognised revenue in 2014

—E-mE —F—=f
2014 2013
HERRBBA HBEHERBA
BENBOL BERB DL
SREZWA % of Total | EHEZUA % of Total RESE
Recognised recognised Recognised recognised  Year-on-year
revenue revenue revenue revenue change
AR®T T ARBTT
RMB'000 % RMB'000 % %
eSS Sales of properties 15,653,684 96.8 11,579,157 97.2 35.2
He WA Rental income 41,688 03 47,732 04 127
YIESENHMYE  Property management income
ERBHEA and other property related
service income 483,962 29 282,273 24 715
1zt Total 16,179,334 100.0 11,909,162 100.0 359
HER A Cost of sales

AEBR-_ZT—NFNHEEKRLLN B
AR #11,992,500,0007T + 8 2= F 1 40
35.7% ° EMFEHNEX(THEREER
BREFEMEMN - BEWEFEERAN
EFH-

fBREER (RE)BRAR | —T—NFEFR

The Group’s cost of sales in 2014 was approximately RMB11,992.5
million, up 35.7% from the previous year. This increase was primarily
due to an increase in cost of property sales as a result of an increase
in total GFA delivered compared to the previous year.
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BELANUERRNEEEEYZEHEEIEM
—AFEEYE(BEETKREEZTY
R -
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group's gross profit in 2014 was RMB4,186.8 million, up 36.4%
year-on-year. Our gross profit margin remained stable at 25.9% in
2014, compared to 25.8% in 2013.

Despite effects of correction in selling prices in the physical market
on gross profit margin, the Group's stable gross profit margin in
2014 was primarily due to (i) lower capitalized interest cost through
its liability management exercise, (ii) high proportion of recognised
revenue from sales of office projects, which generally have higher
gross profit margin compared to mass market residential projects and
(iii) increased recognized ASP's of certain residential projects.

Fair value changes

Change in fair value of investment properties

In 2014, the Group recognised a fair value gain on investment
properties of approximately RMB241.2 million as a corresponding
gain in 2013 of approximately RMB753.5 million. The fair value gain
on investment properties was mainly due to the appreciation of the
overall capital value and/or rental values, as well as 3 new investment
properties added to the Group's investment properties portfolio
including completed and under development projects.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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fBREER (RE)BRAR | —T—NFEFR

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fair value changes (Continued)
Change in fair value of trust and other loans related derivatives

In 2014, the Group recognised a fair value gain on trust and other loans
related derivatives of approximately RMB4.0 million as compared to a
corresponding gain in 2013 of approximately RMB3.0 million. Such fair
value gain reflected the change in fair value of the embedded financial
derivatives relating to certain trust and other loans of the Group during
the year.

Selling and marketing expenses

The Group's selling and marketing expenses increased by 3.5% to
approximately RMB319.4 million in 2014 from RMB308.7 million in
2013. This increase was in line with the Group’s new launch of more
property projects available for pre-sale in 2014. During the year, the
Group placed great emphasis on the effectiveness of sales execution
and successfully controlled its selling expenses at an appropriate level.

Administrative and other expenses

The Group's administrative expenses increased by 3.1% to
approximately RMB529.4 million in 2014 from RMB513.6 million in
2013. This increase was primarily attributable to increase in staff costs
and other administrative expenses resulting from the Group's business
expansion. During the year, the Group’s administrative expenses were
kept at a reasonable level due to implementation of stringent cost
control and improvement in per capita efficiency.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Finance costs

The Group's finance costs expensed increased by RMB197.7 million or
104.9% to approximately RMB386.2 million in 2014 from RMB188.5
million in 2013. Such increase in total finance costs incurred was
primarily attributable to the interest expense on settlement of trust and
other loans with derivatives nature of approximately RMB167.6 million.
Save for this trust-loan related derivatives related accounting item,
total finance costs, net of the portion being capitalised in properties
under development, only increased by approximately RMB30.1 million.
The Group's weighted average cost of all indebtedness (including bank
loans, trust and other loans and senior notes) as at 31 December 2014
was 8.3%, compared to 9.2% as at 31 December 2013. The decrease
in weighted average cost of indebtedness during the year was
primarily attributable to the effective liability management exercise by
the Group.

Income tax expenses

The Group's income tax expenses increased by 41.9% to
approximately RMB1,325.2 million in 2014 from RMB933.7 million
in 2013. The Group’'s income tax expense included payments
and provisions made for enterprise income tax (“EIT"”) and land
appreciation tax (“LAT") during the year. The Group's effective income
tax rate increased to 39.9% in 2014 from 31.4% in 2013, as a lower
proportion of the Group's profit before taxation was derived from fair
value gains relating to investment properties in 2014, for which no
provision for LAT was required.

The Group made LAT provisions of approximately RMB472.9 million in
2014, versus RMB320.7 million in 2013. The Group made actual LAT
payments of RMB314.5 million in 2014, versus RMB309.7 million in
2013. As at 31 December 2014, the Group had accumulated unpaid
LAT provisions of RMB461.6 million.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Profit for the year

As a result of the factors described above, the Group’s profit before
taxation increased by 11.8% to approximately RMB3,324.8 million
in 2014 from RMB2,974.9 million in 2013. The Group's profit and
total comprehensive income for the year decreased by 2.0% to
approximately RMB1,999.6 million in 2014 from RMB2,041.1
million in 2013. The Group’s net profit attributable to equity owners
decreased by 1.8% to approximately RMB1,861.1 million in 2014 from
RMB1,894.2 million in 2013.

The Group’s core net profit attributable to equity owners increased by
27.6% to approximately RMB1,938.6 million in 2014 from RMB1,518.8
million in 2013. The corresponding core net profit margin was 12.0%
in 2014 and 12.8% in 2013.

The Group maintained its return on average equity at 20.6% in 2014
versus 20.0% in 2013.
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LAND BANK

As at 31 December 2014, the total GFA of the Group’s land bank
was approximately 9.6 million sq.m., and the attributable GFA of
the Group's land bank was approximately 7.4 million sqg.m. As at
31 December 2014, average acquisition cost of the Group's overall
land bank based on attributable GFA and attributable cost was
approximately RMB4,400 per sq.m.

Table 6: Breakdown of the Group's land bank as at 31 December
2014

RYEE D By property
BR T KRR
AHE A
BEEE
(FEEEEN)
Remaining
unrecognised/ &R
Saleable / Pl RER
EEXEREAMRE Rentahle GFA Interest
Primary intended use remaining unsold attributable
15H Project of the project (carpark excluded) to the Group
(EHK)
(sq.m.) (%)
BIYE Completed properties
R=F Yangtze River Delta
i JBSE e HIERE  Shanghai CIFI Pujiang International YN V4 SF 2 Office/Commercial 41,684 100.0
b fBEE e HEfE Shanghai CIFI Luxury Courtyard FE Residential 8,59 100.0
B JBIE e B E Shanghai CIFI Comfortable Joyous Bay F=E Residential 399 100.0
8 JBE e B A Shanghai CIFI Pebble Beach = Residential 73,025 100.0
E5 B e BAYIE Shanghai CIFl Pleasant Garden (e Residential 36,772 100.0
bBE feER Shanghai CIFI City F=E Residential 17,375 100.0
b5 BB edzE Shanghai CIFI Samite Life (e Residential 7,866 100.0
B BB IEE Shanghai CIFI Jiangwan Mansion FE Residential 16,581 755
5 fBE « UKt Shanghai CIFI U Block YN V4 SF 2 Office/Commercial 10875 1000
N fBIE e SAED Suzhou CIFI Canal County FE Residential 11,422 100.0
RN fBFE e HEfE Suzhou CIFI Luxury Courtyard FE Residential 31,620 100.0
M BB e BAZE  Suzhou CIFI Private Mansion F=E Residential 12,415 100.0
AfE B e i=E  Hefei CIFl Central Park F=E Residential 1323 100.0
BIE JBIE ¢ HFF Hefei CIFI Private Mansion F=E Residential 220127 100.0
T JBIE e BRI Zhenjiang CIFl Times F=E Residential 37,840 100.0
=8 JBEES (%)  Jiaxing CIFl Square (Commercial) REME Investment 82,600 100.0
properties
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LAND BANK (Continued)

Table 6: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December
2014 (Continued)

BRYEED (B By property (Continued)
BT AR
AHE WA
BEERE
(TEEEFEN)
Remaining
unrecognised/ REE
Saleable / PEfhRER
HEFEREAE Rentable GFA Interest
Primary intended use remaining unsold attributable
1HH Project of the project (carpark excluded) to the Group
(FAK)
(sq.m.) (%)
RIE Pan Bohai Rim
R JBE e £ Beijing CIFl Wangxin Commercial Centre &% Investment 4,900 100.0
[SELEN properties
bR B 0 BE Beijing CIFI Olympic City B/ EE Office/Commercial 5,629 100.0
bR BB ez Beijing CIFl International Negotiate Garden  ¥3AME /% Office/Commercial 326 100.0
b fEEE e i8R Beijing CIFI Private Villa Riverside Garden ~ {¥=2 Residential 68,896 800
Bn JBFE e TAUMIE  Langfang CIFI Path Walf FE Residential 21,175 100.0
K2 B2 o EEL—ER  Tianjin CIFl Rosedale Phase | F=E Residential 2,398 100.0
FFE Central Western Region
EFE B e BAEE Chongging CIFI Ronchamp Town FE Residential 61,194 100.0
EE JBIE e BARES Chongging CIFI Langyuejun F=E Residential 1131 100.0
BE JBR « £ Chongging CIFI Purple City B/ EE Office/Commercial 101,199 100.0
Y BB e EjE Changsha CIFI Luxury Courtyard FE Residential - 100.0
Y BIE o T Changsha CIFI Private Mansion F=E Residential 162,900 100.0
it Other
BN JBIE & iR Fuzhou CIFl Riverside F= Residential 3,700 100.0
BB Carparks 477,324
1,721,292
JEREENG (R AR AR | —F—NFEFR 41
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T 1".7,1%1%%’:‘ LAND BANK (continued)
RN ZXEEBR=ZZF—WNE+=AF Table 6:Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December
=+— B L uhFEEEMAE) 2014 (Continued)
BYEE D (5 By property (Continued)
BB REE
RRBIBH
HEEER
(FEEFER)
Total GFA under
development
BEIE and held pin-: |
RERAE for future iy 5
Primary BRI ER development Interest
intended use Estimated Year B AR (excluding OFE  attributable
HH Project of the project of Completion Site Area carparks) Pre-sold to the Group
(FHK) (EH*) (EHK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (%)
BB RIERREIRMYE  Properties under development and
held for future development
R=A Yangtze River Delta
g JEE e GEE Shanghai CIFI Arthur Shire =z 2015 30,200 38,500 29497 500
Residential
g JEEe kEE Shanghai CIFl La Baie D'Evian =z 2016 189,800 24,500 - 100.0
Residential
T 185 ¢ i R Shanghai CIF| Haishang International LN Vi 2015 18,300 19,600 3857 530
Office/Commercial
g aEe 5 LEEK Shanghai CIFI Haishang International wEmE 2015 - 45,400 - 530
Investment properties
LG BB edE Shanghai CIFI Shilu (Shanghai Honggiao Fx 2015 3200 5400 n2 100.0
(LB AENIER) Xianfeng Village Project) Residential
b BEBERL Shanghai Henderson CIFI Centre (Shanghai ~ {£52 ~ HA / 2016-2017 84,800 170,600 29,388 50.0
(LBIBHKEER) Honggiao Business District Project] 53
Residential, Office/
Commercial
& ek Shanghai Greenland CIFI E Park BN VA ES 2015 14,800 30,100 13,900 500
(b&EEER) (Shanghai Huacao Project) Office/Commercial
HE INIEN=EER Shanghai Songjian Distrct Jiuting Town 33318 /7% 2016 41,500 106,300 - 450
Project Office/Commercial
g FER Shanghai Elite Mansion (Shanghai Ginshan £ 2016 108,400 199,000 72,749 500
(BB&WLFHER) New Town Project) Residential
B8 HEEETHEEE  Shanghai Pudong District Yangjing Project (£ 017 40,000 - 490
Residential 5790
1§ BEEETHEIER  Shanghai Pudong District Yangjing Project A% /7% 017 ’ 186,700 - 190
Office/Commercial
H§ DIREHERE Shanghai Songjiang District Chedun i 2017 103,900 103,900 - 3.0
Town Project Residential
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T fEE LAND BANK (Continued)
RN ZXEEBR=ZZF—WNE+=AF Table 6:Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December
=+— B L hEEEAE) 2014 (Continued)
BRYEED (B By property (Continued)
RRPREE
RRBIBH
HEEER
(FEEFER)
Total GFA under
development
EEIE and held XEE
RElfE for future EfbER
Primary BRI ER development Interest
intended use Estimated Year AR (excluding OFE  attributable
HH Project of the project of Completion Site Area carparks) Pre-sold to the Group
(FHK) (EHK)  (FAK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (%)
BN B « BT Suzhou CIF| Private Mansion Usonian FE 2015 42,900 108,800 72,002 490
City Villa Residential
BB 0 M Suzhou CIFI Elegant City Fx 2015-2016 93,900 256,900 122,400 100.0
Residential
N fEEe iR Suzhou CIFI Sunny Life =z 2015 32,700 79,900 41,449 100.0
Residential
BN BIE e EREE Suzhou CIFI Apple Paradise =z 2015 42400 88,000 10631 510
Residential
BN SHEFZENES  Suzhou Gaoxin District Hushuguan FE 2016 21,600 47,600 - 100.0
BB Sunny Life South Project Residential
BNl RHEEERKER Suzhou Wuzhong District Tayuan Road iE 2016 68,000 149,500 - 100.0
Project Residential
#HN TEEEER Suzhou Industrial Park District Project FE 17 68,000 108,700 - 100.0
Residential
Wl ARt arEs Hangzhou Greenland CIFI Glorious City Fx 2016 235,100 93,314 50.0
Residential 58600
N AEtfREn Hangzhou Greenland CIFI Glorious City We/mE 2016 ' 31,000 - 50.0
Office/Commercial
N EEREN Hangzhou Henderson CIFI Palace = 2015 86,700 220800 3,123 490
Residential
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LAND BANK (Continued)

Table 6: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December
2014 (Continued)

BRYEED (B By property (Continued)
RRAREE
RRBIBH
BEEEE
(TBfEEEl)
Total GFA under
development
BEEE and held rEE
RERZ for future EfbER
Primary PRI ER development Interest
intended use Estimated Year b ER (excluding BHE  attributable
R Project of the project of Completion Site Area carparks) Pre-sold to the Group
(FAK) (EHK)  (FHK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
M RRBRRE Hangzhou Yuhang District Chongian e il 35,300 90,800 - 50.0
18575 B Xincheng No. 18 Site Project Residential
BB JBE HILEE Hefei CIFl e Original Villa = 2016-2017 199,200 219,100 - 50.0%
(B¥RIER) (Gaoxin District Project) Residential
RE BEHF Jiaxing CIFI Private Mansion =z 2015 24,400 77,000 17,241 1000
Residential
RE BB RED Jiaxing CIFI Ronchamp Town =z 2016 92,400 166,500 33755 100.0
(BN#FERER) (Xiuzhou New District Project] Residential
BT BERERE Zhenjiang CIF| East One Place FE 2016 49,400 148,300 35,334 100.0
(TI#®EER) (Dingmao New District Project) Residential
BR JIERER Nanjing Jiangning District Project FE 17,300 52,000 - 100.0
Residential 2017
AR ROFEER Nanjing Pokou New District Project FE 2016 81,700 114,400 - 490
Residential
B3 Pan Bohai Rim
bR BB e BRI Beijing CIFI The Education Park WO/ mE 2015 30800 86,600 78473 100.0
Office/Commercial
R B e Mg Beijing MOMA CIFl Residence = 2016-2017 73,400 132,200 - 50.0
(FABREEEER) (Pinggu District Daxingzhuang Town) Residential
ER AERENEEE Beijing Daxing District Huangeun Town~~~ JA2AME /% 2017 46,900 94,800 - 70
Project Office/Commercial
K JBIE o HE - Tianjin CIFI Rosedale Phase Il = 2015-2016 74,000 166,700 45,749 100.0
Residential
RE BEANE Tianjin CIFI Paradise Bay = 2015-2016 65,500 163,000 19,877 5.0
Residential
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T b A m) LAND BANK (Continued)
RN ZEBR_=-_ZF—MNE+=H Table 6:Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December
=+— B L hEEEAE) 2014 (Continued)
BRYEZ D (B By property (Continued)
BB REE
RIREARM
HEEER
(TefEESE)
Total GFA under
development
BEXE and held piv- 1|
e e for future iR
Primary fhER IER development Interest
intended use Estimated Year {hibEE (excluding BEE  attributable
HH Project of the project of Completion Site Area carparks) Pre-sold  to the Group
(FHK) (ERK)  (FFK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
K2 EE o B Tianjin CIFI Private Mansion FE 2015-2017 165,200 322,300 181,574 480
Residential
X2 BSIEHNER Tianjin Binhai Industrial Office Project TERBNE 2017 262300 307,700 _ 1000
— Phase | Industrial office park
X2 BSIZEHNER Tianjin Binhai Industrial Office Project T¥RBE 2017 168,500 168,500 - 1000
- Phase Il Industrial office park
BIS JBIE « 7 Shenyang CIFI Private Mansion £ 2015-2017 81,500 162,800 15,967 100.0
(RIEEIER) (Dongling District Project) Residential
HFH Central Western Region
BE BEERNE Chongging CIFI Jade Mansion HIUNE VE S 2017 24,200 58,500 - 100.0
Office/Commercial
5% fBES(TEEER)  Chongging CIFl City (Banan District Project)  {¥5F 2015-2017 448,200 78,702 1000
Residential
EF fEEW(TERER)  Chongging CIFI City (Banan District Project)  #iAE / B % 2015-2017 0 149,000 - 1000
Office/Commercial '
EF EEW(THRER)  Chongging CIFl City (Banan District Project) 1% ¥ 2015-2017 44,300 - 1000
Investment properties
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RN ZXEEBR=ZZF—WNE+=AF Table 6:Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December
=+— B L hEEEAE) 2014 (Continued)
BRYEED (B By property (Continued)
RERREE
RREBH
HEEER
(FEfEEEl)
Total GFA under
development
BEXE and held piv-c |
HERR forfuture EfEER
Primary fhER I ER development Interest
intended use Estimated Year {hibmEE (excluding BEE  attributable
HH Project of the project of Completion Site Area carparks) Pre-sold to the Group
(F7K) (F7K) (F7K)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
£ iR« EBLAL Changsha CIFl Dream Mansion FE 2016 41,500 148,800 25474 80.0
Residential
£ BE « BBRES Changsha CIFl International Plaza FE 2016 131,200 34,348 50.0
(Z%HEA) (Hualing Project) Residential 400
R B8 BARES Changsha CIFI International Plaza HN: Y 2016 ' 136,800 - 500
(#=%ER) (Hualing Project) Office/Commercial
HE BE  HIfF Wuhan CIFI Private Mansion FE 2015-2017 139,500 348,700 37432 50.0
(RHa¥EER) (Donghu Gaoxin District Project] Residential
At Other
[zEf Carpark 1,639,600 2,080
B RIBERREER TOTAL Properties under development and 7,874,100 1,131,828
mEEE held for future development
BY(ERT AR GRAND TOTAL (Completed, under 9,595,392 1131828
BERRFAE) development and for future development)
* AEETEHEITH  REBEELERRREEER * Joint venture in progress, interest attributable to the Group shown, reflects the equity
T after joint venture
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LAND BANK (Continued)

Table 6: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December
2014 (Continued)

RibEE D By region

1548 + Hh {51
(AEHREH) B
% of total land bank
in sq.m.
(%)
r=A Yangtze River Delta 53
RENE Pan Bohai Rim 22
g Central Western Region 25
100

REBEAE D By type of project
1548 + s {48
(AEFRKREHBEDHE
% of total land bank
in sq.m.
(%)
F=E Residential 82
NS Office/Commercial 17
HEMERHM Investment properties and others 1
100

—E-NFEN I
RZT—HFERE - AEBERES H10
EFIEE - 2N EBRAN TRE
WHE - BN AEEEBEBSED
¥ HEMEREEREREEEHA
FEFTWERIER -

REBR T —OFWE T A 2R 2
M4 A1,300,000F 5K - He
7N 55 B B% 7K # %514 1,000,000 F 75 K o
REBLHEEHNERBERENAAR
#9,744,400,0007T - A A S ERIEE
REBEENRAERENERARKE
5,994,500,0007T ° 1R #& 72~ & B FE 1 U
MEEEERELERKERE  ~EER
—ENENFHTRBRANES
FEHAKAREET,4807T ©
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Land acquisition in 2014

During the year 2014, the Group purchased a total of 10 new projects,
all of which were acquired through government-land auctions. During
the year, the Group continued utilising equity joint ventures with
property developers and financial investors to jointly develop the
newly acquired projects.

Total planned GFA of the Group’s land acquisition in 2014 amounted
to approximately 1.3 million sq.m., out of which 1.0 million sg.m.
were attributable to the Group's equity interests. Total contracted
consideration of the Group's land acquisition amounted to
approximately RMB9,744 .4 million, out of which RMB5,994.5 million
were payable by the Group according to its equity interests in relevant
projects. Based on the Group's attributable GFA acquired and the
attributable acquisition considerations, the Group's average land
acquisition cost in 2014 was approximately RMB7,480 per sgq.m.
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T fREE LAND BANK (continued)
Ft  AFER-Z-NFEH LTI Table 7: The Group's land acquisition in 2014

REUBEEE
(T
F5H FEf) R
BETEREAR RARL Planned GFA EfERE THEA
W HH Primary intended Group's equity {GiERE excluding R{E  Atiributable Average
City Project use of the project interest Site area carpark  Consideration  Consideration land cost
(AR%T/
(FHK) (FHK) (AR®n) (AR¥%Rn) FHK)
(%) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB) (RMB)  (RMB/sq.m.)
“E-MEHTHKE
Land acquisition in 2014
#HI 1818 « REE(T IPHEEE) FE 1000 49,400 148,300 210,000,000 210,000,000 1416
Zhenjiang CIFI East One (Dingmao New District) Residential
bl BRIEEE(TARER) #E 500 73,400 132200 778,000,000 339,000,000 5,88
Beijing MOMA CIFI New Project (Pinggu District) Residential
BN EEHEEEREE FE 100.0 21,600 47,600 138,000,000 138,000,000 2,899
Suzhou Gaoxin District Hushuguan Sunny Life South Project  Residential
Gl 1818 o HILRE (RHEIER) FE 500* 199,200 219,100 1,165,360,000 582,680,000 5319
Hefei CIFI Original Villa (Gaoxin District Project) Residential
BN RUBERRIER FE 100.0 68,000 149,500 630,000,000 630,000,000 414
Suzhou Wuzhong District Tayuan Road New Project Residential
i BREETHEES WO/ BEREE 490 87,200 226,700 4175000000  2,045,750,000 18416
Shanghai Pudong District YangJing Project Office/Commercial and
Residential
BN IXFERER FE 100.0 68,000 108,700 1,190,000,000  1,190,000,000 10,948
Suzhou Industrial Park District Project Residential
BR BOFIRE FE 510 81,700 114,400 490,000,000 249,900,000 4,283
Nanjing Pokou District New Project Residential
BR TZRIER FE 100.0 17,300 52,000 339,000,000 339,000,000 6,519
Nanjing Jiangning District Project Residential
i INIRBHEEE FE 3.0* 103,900 103,900 629,000,000 220,150,000 6,054
Shanghai Songjiang District Chedun Town Project Residential

* BEEF#ETH  AEBELEZRMREEED * Joint venture in progress, interest attributable to the Group shown, reflects the equity
s after joint venture
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&%
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EEREERITERBBHAARKE
13,860,700,0007C (- T — =4 : AR
13,374,000,0007T ) * BIEETE R
St R EME L AR 9,503,800,000
T(ZE—=%F : AR®10,154,100,000
7C) A I BRI B 3 A % 4,356,900,000
THEAZEBRB(ZE—=F: AR%
3,137,900,0007T) « R=ZZFE—WF+_A
=+—HB AEETEEFAREMER
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash position

The Group had bank balances and cash of approximately RMB7,093.7
million (2013: RMB7,060.7 million), pledged bank deposits of
approximately RMB30.0 million (2013: RMB100.0 million) and
restricted cash of RMB nil (2013: RMB21.8 million) as at 31 December
2014.

Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had outstanding total borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB13,860.7 million (2013: RMB13,374.0
million), comprising bank loans, trust and other loans of approximately
RMB9,503.8 million (2013: RMB10,154.1 million) and senior notes
with an carrying amount of RMB4,356.9 million (2013: RMB3,137.9
million). As at 31 December 2014, the Group also had trust and other
loans related derivatives of RMB nil (2013: RMB82.0 million). As at
31 December 2014, the Group had un-utilised banking facilities of
RMB2,854.5 million (2013: RMB3,045.2 million).

49



CEVEF P TR

Management Discussion and Analysis

nBES - WBREXER®) LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

(Continued)
B @) Indebtedness (Continued)
x®N : EIAMA Table 8: Breakdown of indebtedness
RERBEERIBERES By type of borrowings and maturity
—Z-NF —T—=F
+=A=+—-B8 | +t=ZA=t+—H
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
AR% T AREBFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BERRITER Onshore bank loans
—FR Within one year 2,301,650 1,119,355
—FP L BNEBBME Over one years and within two years 3,434,803 1,311,022
MEE - BB B=F Over two years and within three years 1,450,860 3,684,353
=FLAE - BTBBIOF Over three years and within four years = -
MEME - BETBART Over four years and within five years = -
RAFENE Over five years 571,635 619,032
e Subtotal 7,758,948 6,733,762
BRGEEREMER Onshore trust and other loans
—FR Within one year 500,000 1,815,288
—FP L BNEBBME Over one years and within two years = 339,885
MEE - BRBB=F Over two years and within three years 310,000 334,330
INEE Subtotal 810,000 2,489,503
BIMRITER Offshore bank loans
—FR Within one year 233,712 -
—FP k- BBBME Over one year and within two years 701,137 232,708
MEE - BRBB=F Over two years and within three years — 698,125
INEE Subtotal 934,849 930,833
BIMEARE Offshore senior notes
=FP L BERBBEFE Over three years and within four years 3,151,441 -
MEME - BETBARSE Over four years and within five years 1,205,509 3,137,901
INEE Subtotal 4,356,950 3,137,901
st TOTAL 13,860,747 13,291,999
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(Continued)
Indebtedness (Continued)

Table 8: Breakdown of indebtedness (Continued)

By currency denomination

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

—F-mF —F—=F
+=A=+—-B | +t=—A=+—8H
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
ARETR ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
INEEE D HIERDN Analysis of borrowings by currency
—UARKHE — Denominated in RMB 8,568,948 9,223,265
—AETTEE — Denominated in USD 4,804,851 3,598,823
— B TTEHE — Denominated in HKD 486,948 469,911
13,860,747 13,291,999
REERZEFRE D By fixed or variable interest rates
—E—NF —E—=F
t=ZA=+—-H | +t=ZRA=t+—H
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
ARETRT ARETIT
RMB'000 RMB'000
EFE & Fixed interest rates 7,243,650 5,617,036
TFEFR Variable interest rates 6,617,097 7,674,963
13,860,747 13,291,999
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
(Continued)

Cost of borrowings

The Group's total finance costs expensed and capitalised in 2014
was approximately RMB1,435.6 million, representing an increase
of 30.7% from RMB1,098.3 million in 2013. Such increase in total
finance costs incurred was primarily attributable to the interest
expense on settlement of trust and other loans with derivatives
nature of approximately RMB167.6 million. Excluding this trust-
loan related derivatives related accounting item, total finance costs
was RMB1,227.4 million in 2014, increased only by approximately
RMB162.2 million or 15.2% compared to 2013. The increase in
total finance costs incurred was due to higher average balance of
indebtedness in 2014 versus 2013.

The Group's weighted average cost of all indebtedness (including bank
loans, trust and other loans and senior notes) as at 31 December 2014
was 8.3%, compared to 9.2% as at 31 December 2013. The decrease
in weighted average cost of indebtedness during the year was
primarily attributable to the effective liability management exercise by
the Group.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

(Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group conducts its business primarily in Renminbi. The Group’s
certain bank deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
United States dollars, and the Group’s offshore bank loans and senior
notes are denominated in United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars.

Other than those disclosed, the Group does not have any material
exposures to foreign exchange fluctuations. The Group does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the Group monitors
its foreign currency exposure closely and may, depending on the
circumstances and trend of foreign currencies, consider adopting a
significant foreign currency hedging policy in the future.

Financial guarantees

The Group has provided mortgage guarantees to PRC banks in respect
of the mortgage loans provided by the PRC banks to the Group's
customers. The Group’s mortgage guarantees are issued from the
dates of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and released upon
the earlier of (i) the relevant property ownership certificates being
obtained and the certificates of other interests with respect to the
relevant properties being delivered to the mortgagee banks, or (i) the
settlement of mortgage loans between the mortgagee banks and the
Group's customers. As at 31 December 2014, the Group provided
mortgage guarantees in respect of mortgage loans provided by the
PRC banks to the Group’s customers amounting to RMB2,761.5
million (versus 31 December 2013: RMB977.7 million).

During the year, the Group’s joint venture companies in respect
of the development Hangzhou Greenland CIF| Glorious City and
Shanghai Henderson CIFI Center have utilised offshore and onshore
bank loans. The Company provided guarantees on several basis
covering its respective equity shares of outstanding obligations under
the offshore and onshore bank loans incurred by the joint venture
companies developing these projects. As at 31 December 2014, the
Group's aggregate share of such guarantees provided in respective
of loans incurred by these joint ventures amounted to approximately
RMB1,997.3 million.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
(Continued)

Gearing ratio

The Group's net debt-to-equity ratio (total indebtedness net of bank
balances and cash and restricted cash divided by total equity) was
58.2% as at 31 December 2014 versus 67.6% as at 31 December
2013. The Group's debt-to-asset ratio (total indebtedness divided by
total assets) was 31.8% as at 31 December 2014 versus 34.0% as at
31 December 2013. The Group’s current ratio (current assets divided
by current liabilities) was 1.5 times as at 31 December 2014 versus 1.6
times as at 31 December 2013.

EMPLOYEES AND COMPENSATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had approximately 4,200 full-
time employees in the PRC including Hong Kong, out of them,
approximately 1,850 employees worked for the property development
and property investment businesses and 2,350 in the property
management and other businesses.

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
working experience and the prevailing market wage level. The total
remuneration of the employees consisted of basic salary, cash bonus
and share-based incentives.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIN Zhong, aged 46, our founder, is the executive Director and
Chairman of the Company. Mr. Lin Zhong has about 24 years of
experience in the real estate business. He was appointed as Director
on 20 May 2011 and is the chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company and is
also a substantial shareholder of the Company and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Lin Zhong was awarded “2010 Star of
Real Estates” by Fudan University Real Estate Research Center and
other institutions, “2013 Shanghai Real Estate Outstanding Leaders”
by (MES) Magazine and “Golden Phoenix Global Chinese Real
Estate Outstanding Growth Entrepreneur” by ifeng.com, Phoenix
Television and China Real Estate Journal in 2014. He was appointed
as the Member of the Board of Directors of the Oriental Real Estate
Institute, the Council Member of the Council Board of Shanghai
Land Institute in 2011, the Vice Chairman of Fujian Chamber of
Commerce in Shanghai, Vice Chairman of Shanghai Population
Welfare Foundation, Vice Chairman of National Real Estate Chamber
of Commerce and Honorary Chairman of its Shanghai Sub-Chamber
in 2013, and the deputy chief council member of the Eighth Term
of Council of the Shanghai Real Estate Association and the rotating
chairman of New Shanghai Businessman Federation in 2014. Mr. Lin
Zhong graduated from the Xiamen University with a bachelor’s degree
in economics. He further pursued and obtained an executive master of
business administration degree from Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business. Mr. Lin Zhong is a brother of Mr. Lin Wei and Mr. Lin Feng.

Mr. LIN Wei, aged 42, is the executive Director and Vice-Chairman
of the Company. He is also a substantial shareholder of the Company
and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Lin Wei has
about 19 years of experience in the real estate business. He laid the
foundation of our Group's development with Mr. Lin Zhong. Mr. Lin
Wei is a brother of Mr. Lin Zhong and Mr. Lin Feng.
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Mr. LIN Feng, aged 39, is the executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. He is also a substantial shareholder of the
Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Lin
Feng has about 15 years of experience in the real estate business.
He joined our Group in 2001. He was appointed as Director on 20
May 2011. Mr. Lin Feng was awarded “Shanghai Fifty-Four Youth
Medal” and “Shanghai Putuo District China Socialism Outstanding
Contributors” in 2013. He is currently a Council Member of All-China
Youth Federation, Executive Council Member of Shanghai Youth
Federation, Executive Council Member of Shanghai Federation of
Industry and Commerce (Commerce Chamber), Council Member of
Shanghai Changning District Association of Industry and Commerce
(Commerce Chamber), the Executive Council Member of Shanghai
Putuo District Youth Federation, Representative of the Shanghai
Putuo District People’s Congress, Member of the Board of Shanghai
Institute of Visual Art and Director of CIFI Charity Foundation. Mr. Lin
Feng graduated from the Xiamen University with a bachelor’'s degree
in economics and further obtained a master of business administration
degree from the University of Dundee. Mr. Lin Feng is a brother of Mr.
Lin Zhong and Mr. Lin Wei.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. GU Yunchang, aged 70, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 9 October 2012 and is a member of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. Gu was the vice chairman
of the China Real Estate Research Association from 2006 to May 2013
and had also been the vice chairman and secretary-general of the
China Real Estate Association from 1998 to 2006.

Mr. Gu formerly served at different positions in the Ministry of
Construction of the PRC, including the deputy director at Policy
Research Centre of Ministry of Construction from 1988 to 1998;
the person-in-charge of the City and Township Residence Research
Centre of Ministry of Construction from 1986 to 1988; and the Deputy
Division Head and Division Head at Urban Residence Bureau of
Ministry of Construction from 1979 to 1986.
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Mr. Gu specialises in theory and policy research, market research
and analysis concerning China real estate industry. In the 1980s, he
participated in the policy research and formulation of China’s city
and village residential construction techniques, carrying on a State
key project “2000 China”, and won the First Class National Science
Technology Advance Award in China twice. After joining the China
Real Estate Association in 1998, he has been involved in promoting the
development of the China real estate industry as well as undertaking
the research and analysis of the national real estate market. He is also
the main organiser and writer of the China Real Estate Market Report,
an annual analysis report issued by the China Real Estate Association.
Mr. Gu was an independent non-executive director of Shimao Property
Holdings Limited (SEHK stock code: 813) from April 2006 to May 2011
and was an independent non-executive director of E-House (China)
Holdings Limited (NYSE stock code: EJ) from August 2008 to March
2014. Mr. Gu is currently an independent non-executive director of
Sino-Ocean Land Holdings Limited (SEHK stock code: 3377), COFCO
Property (Group) Co., Ltd. (SZSE stock code: 000031), Zhejiang Yasha
Decoration Co., Ltd. (SZSE stock code: 002375) and Sunshine 100
China Holdings Ltd (SEHK stock code: 2608). Mr. Gu obtained a
bachelor’'s degree in Urban Planning from Tongji University.

Mr. ZHANG Yongyue, aged 60, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 9 October 2012 and is the chairman of our
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’'s degree
in Economics from East China Normal University where he taught
since his graduation and he had become a professor of the Business
School at the same university since 1998. He is currently a tenured
professor at East China Normal University, and the Dean of Shanghai
E-house China R&D Institute, concurrently as the vice president of
the China Institute of Real Estate Appraisers and Agents, Shanghai
Economist Association, Shanghai Real Estate Economy Society, as
well as Council Member of China Real Estate Association. Mr. Zhang is
currently an independent director of Shanghai Wanye Enterprises Co.
Ltd. (SSE stock code: 600641).
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Mr. TAN Wee Seng, aged 59, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 9 October 2012 and is the chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Tan
is a professional in value and business management consultancy. He
is currently a non-executive director of Xtep International Holdings
Limited (SEHK stock code: 1368), an independent non-executive
director of Sa Sa International Holdings Limited (SEHK stock code:
178), an independent non-executive director and chairman of
remuneration committee of Biostime International Holdings Limited
(SEHK stock code: 1112 and an independent non-executive director
and chairman of remuneration committee of Sinopharm Group Co.
Ltd. (SEHK stock code: 1099), the shares of all of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, an independent director of
ReneSola Ltd (NYSE stock code: SOL), the shares of which are listed
on the NYSE, and a board member and chairman of finance committee
of Beijing City International School, an academic institution in Beijing.
Mr. Tan had been an independent director of 7 Days Group Holdings
Limited listed in the New York Stock Exchange since November 2009
to July 2013 when the Group privatized and he was the chairman of
the special committee for privatization from October 2012 to July
2013.

Mr. Tan has over 31 years of financial management, corporate
finance, merger and acquisition, business management and strategy
development experience. He has also held various management
and senior management positions in a number of multi-national
corporations. From 2003 to 2008, he was an executive director,
chief financial officer and company secretary of Li Ning Company
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. From 1999 to 2002, he was the senior vice president of
Reuters for China, Mongolia and North Korea regions, and the chief
representative of Reuters in China. Prior to that, he had served as
the managing director of AFE Computer Services Limited, a Reuters
subsidiary in Hong Kong which was a company mainly engaged in
domestic equity and financial information services, and as director
of Infocast Pty Limited, a Reuters subsidiary in Australia and as
the regional finance manager of Reuters East Asia. Mr. Tan is a
professional accountant and a fellow member of the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants in United Kingdom, and the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YAU Sze Ka (Albert), aged 43, is the Chief Financial Officer of
the Group. Mr. Yau has over 20 years of experience in capital markets
and corporate management, and have successfully executed a wide
range of transactions including initial public offerings, equity and
bond fundraisings, syndicated loans, project financings, mergers and
acquisitions and corporate restructuring. He joined the Group in July
2011. From December 2005 to June 2011,
of corporate affairs of Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited, where
he was responsible for corporate finance, business development
and investor relations. From January 2003 to December 2005, he

Mr. Yau was the director

was a director of DBS Asia Capital Limited. From September 1999 to
January 2003, he worked for ICEA Capital Limited and his last position
held was executive director (investment banking division). Mr. Yau
graduated from the University of California at Berkeley with a bachelor
of science degree. He is also a holder of Chartered Financial Analyst.

Mr. CHEN Dongbiao, aged 47, is the Executive Vice President
of the Group, responsible for overall management of operations,
construction, procurement and cost, and business development of
Yangtze Delta Region. Mr. Chen joined the Group in August 2013. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Chen worked for China Vanke Co., Ltd., and
held the positions of Director of Engineering of China Vanke Co., Ltd.,
General Manager and Chairman of Shanghai Vanke Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. Mr. Chen graduated from the China Europe International Business
School with a master of business administration degree, and Shanghai
City Construction Institute with a bachelor of engineering degree.
Mr. Chen was a Representative of Shanghai Pudong District People’s
Congress from 1997 to 2002 and has been a Committee Member of
Shanghai Minhang District Political Consultative Conference.
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Mr. ZHANG Liang, aged 41, is the Vice President and the Chief
Human Resources Officer of the Group. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in
February 2012. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhang worked in SPH Ke
Yuan Xinhai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (formerly known as CITIC Pharma
Co., Ltd.) as the Chief Human Resources Officer from July 2010 to
January 2012. He also worked in Tianjin Tasly Group Co., Ltd. as the
President Assistant and the Director of the Human Resources Centre
from April 2005 to July 2010. Mr. Zhang had worked in Motorola (China)
Electronics Limited from December 1995 to April 2005, as the Human
Resources Manager of semi-conductor department and the Asia
Pacific Representative of Global Performance Management Project.
Mr. Zhang graduated from the China Europe International Business
School with a master of business administration degree, and Tianjin
Foreign Studies University with a bachelor of arts degree.

Mr. ZHU Yu, aged 52, is the Vice President of the Group. Mr. Zhu
joined our Group in March 2006. Prior to joining our Group, he was
the secretary of the board and deputy general manager of Jiangsu
Xiake Color Spinning Co., Ltd, a listed company in the PRC. Mr.
Zhu graduated from Nanjin Normal University (F A& AER) with a
bachelor's degree in mathematics. He also obtained the qualification

of associate professor in the PRC.

Mr. PAN Taoyuan, aged 47, is the President Assistant and Director of
Investment and Development. Mr. Pan joined the Group in February
2008 and was previously the Group’s General Manager of Sales and
Marketing Management Centre of the Group. Before joining our
Group, Mr. Pan worked in Shanghai P & R Real Estate Consultant Co.,
Ltd as the deputy general manager from October 2004 to January
2007. Mr. Pan graduated from the National Taichung Institute of
Technology majoring in Japanese language.

Mr. DING Yuangang, aged 48, is the Director of Operations
Management of the Group. Mr. Ding joined the Group in June
2010. He had various experience in information technology. Prior to
joining the Group, he worked as Group Chief Information Officer for
Chongging Longhu Development Co., Ltd. Mr. Ding graduated from
the Harbin Institute of Technology University with a bachelor degree in
computer software. He further completed the Mini-EMBA programme
at Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business. Mr. Ding also obtained
the qualification of senior engineer in the PRC. He has been awarded
the Excellent Chief Information Officer Awards 2009.
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Mr. YANG Xin, aged 41, is the General Manager of Finance Centre of
the Group. Mr. Yang joined the Group in July 2010. He has experience
in banking and finance. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in various
management positions at Agricultural Bank of China Limited. Mr. Yang
graduated from the Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a bachelor’s
degree in international finance and further obtained a master of
business administration degree. He also holds the Senior International
Finance Manager qualification issued by International Financial
Management Association.

Mr. LEUNG Yuk Ming (Lawrence), aged 40, is the Director of
Investor Relations of the Group. He has extensive experience in
investor relations, investment banking, Listing Rules compliance and
accounting. In his career, Mr. Leung has worked for Powerlong Real
Estate Holdings Limited, Macquarie Capital (Hong Kong) Limited,
DBS Asia Capital Limited, the Listing Division of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong and Ernst & Young. Mr. Leung received his bachelor’s
degree in commerce and LLB from the University of Calgary and the
University of London respectively. He is a holder of Chartered Financial
Analyst, member of Hong Kong Society of Financial Analysts and
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He joined the Group in June 2013.

Mr. LIU Feng, aged 39, is the Director of Cost Management of the
Group. Mr. Liu joined in the Group in August 2011. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Liu worked for China Resources Land (Shanghai) Co.
Ltd from 2003 to 2011 and held the position of Contract Manager,
Shanghai and Zhejiang Area Contract Responsible Officer. Before
that, he worked for Shanghai Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd. as Head
of Procurement in Engineering Management Department. Mr. Liu
graduated from Zhejiang University majoring in civil engineering, with
a master degree in engineering.

Mr. GE Ming, aged 35, is the Director of Human Resources of the
Group. Mr. Ge joined the Group in April 2012 and have vast experience
in human resources management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ge
worked at Oriental Cambridge Education Group as the Director of
Human Resources and a Member of the Executive Committee. Prior
to that, Mr. Ge worked at Shanghai Tuosheng Associates and Longfor
Properties. Mr. Ge graduated from Fudan University with a bachelor’'s
degree in economics, majoring in international finance.
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Mr. ZHAN Peng (Peter), aged 36, is the Director of Design
Management of the Group. Mr. Zhan joined the Group in June 2013.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhan worked for China Resources
Land (Shandong) Co., Ltd. from 2010 to 2013 as Director of Design
Department. Between 2000 and 2010, he worked in the United
States for various international architectural firms including Callison,
Leo A Daly and Lessard. Mr. Zhan obtained bachelor’'s degree in
architecture from Tianjin University, master’'s degree in architecture
from Washington University in St. Louis and is a registered architect in
Washington D.C., Virginia and Maryland in the United States.

Mr. WU Chenguang, aged 45, is the Director of Engineering and
Procurement of the Group. Mr. Wu joined the Group in February
2014. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wu worked for China Vanke Co.,
Ltd. from September 2002 to February 2014 and held the positions
of Manager of the Procurement Center of China Vanke Co., Ltd. and
Engineering Director and Assistant General Manager of Shanghai
Vanke Property Management Co., Ltd.. Mr. Wu obtained a bachelor’s
degree in engineering management from Southeast University of
China, majoring in Civil Engineering.

Mr. DING Zhaohui, aged 42, is the Director of Legal and Internal
Audit of the Group. Mr. Ding joined the Group in September 2014.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ding worked for China Vanke Co., Ltd.
from October 2000 to September 2014 and held the positions of
Deputy General Manager and General Manager of Legal Department
of China Vanke Co., Ltd.. Mr. Ding graduated from East China Normal
University with a bachelor’s degree in history and later obtained a
master of laws degree from Renmin University of China.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LO Tai On, aged 60, was appointed as our Company Secretary
in October 2012. Mr. Lo is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has over 27 years of experience
in the field of company secretarial services and is now a director of
Fair Wind Secretarial Services Ltd., a secretarial company rendering
secretarial services. Mr. Lo is also the company secretary of several
companies listed on the Stock Exchange, including AAC Technologies
Holdings Inc. (SEHK stock code: 2018), Pak Fah Yeow International
Limited (SEHK stock code: 239), and Good Friend International
Holdings Inc. (SEHK stock code: 2398).
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The Board of the Company is pleased to present the corporate
governance report for the year ended 31 December 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of corporate transparency
and accountability. The Company is committed in achieving a high
standard of corporate governance and leading the Group to attain
better results and improve its corporate image with effective corporate
governance procedures.

During the year under review, the Board is of opinion that the
Company had adopted, applied and complied with the code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

As at 31 December 2014, the Board consisted of six Directors
including Mr. LIN Zhong (Chairman), Mr. LIN Wei (Vice-chairman), Mr.
LIN Feng (Chief Executive Officer) as the Executive Directors; and
Mr. GU Yunchang, Mr. ZHANG Yongyue and Mr. TAN Wee Seng as
the Independent Non-Executive Directors. The overall management
and supervision of the Company'’s operation and the function of
formulating overall business strategies were vested in the Board.

Save as Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng are the brothers of Mr. LIN
Zhong, there are no financial, business, family or other material
relationships among members of the Board.

During the year under review, the Board has at all times met the
requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-Executive
Directors with at least one Independent Non-Executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board composition (Continued)

The three Independent Non-Executive Directors represent half of
the Board, the proportion of which is higher than what is required by
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules whereby independent non-executive
directors of a listed issuer must represent at least one-third of the
board. The Board believes there is sufficient independence element in
the Board to safeguard the interest of shareholders.

Directors’ responsibilities

The Board takes the responsibility to oversee all major matters of the
Company, including the formulation and approval of all policy matters,
overall strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and
monitor the performance of the senior executives. The Directors have
to make decisions objectively in the interests of the Company. As at
31 December 2014, the Board comprised six Directors, including three
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive Directors.
Their names and biographical details are set in the section entitled
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report.

Liability insurance for Directors and senior management officers of the
Company was maintained by the Company with appropriate coverage
for certain legal liabilities which may arise in the course of performing
their duties.

Delegation by the Board

The management, consisting of Executive Directors along with other
senior executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing
the strategy and direction as adopted by the Board from time to time,
and conducting the day-to-day operations of the Group. Executive
Directors and senior executives meet regularly to review the
performance of the businesses of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate
overall resources and make financial and operational decisions. The
Board also gives clear directions as to their powers of management
including circumstances where management should report back, and
will review the delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure
that they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Compliance with the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct of dealings in securities of the
Company by Directors (the “Model Code”). Upon specific enquiries
of all the Directors, each of them confirmed that they have complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code during the year
under review.

As required by the Company, relevant officers and employees of the
Company are also bound by the Model Code, which prohibits them
to deal in securities of the Company at any time when he possesses
inside information in relation to those securities. No incident of non-
compliance of the Model Code by the relevant officers and employees
was noted by the Company.

Directors’ responsibilities for financial statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
also acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the financial
statements of the Group are published in a timely manner. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have
prepared the financial statements of the Company on a going concern
basis.

The reporting responsibilities of our Company’s external auditors on
the financial statements of the Group are set out in the “Independent
Auditor's Report” in this annual report.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Independent Non-Executive Directors play a significant role in the
Board by virtue of their independent judgment and their views carry
significant weight in the Board's decision. They bring an impartial view
on issues of the Company's strategies, performance and control.

All Independent Non-Executive Directors possess extensive academic,

professional and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advice to the Board.

65



1 28 A iR W h
Corporate Governance Report

A) BEESm
Bk TES W)
BEECNRAEBIIERTETERAR
RIEGRE XEREEFTEEHE Y
ER - MREARAR R R ERRE 2 FIZE o

i}

FIBBFAITESTERENTHGOR
=F - RFE-NOF+-_A=+—H#
BB FFATEERARBIREE
o] B B8~ B R AR T LA B AL - TR BB
RARBEMMBRO T HEEELS - REE
FE - EBIUFHTEFCREB LT
HRAIESNBERAARRRERRE 2 BL
1 ARARRRERBUIIFNITESY
REBY AL -

BEECZE - EBRER
BRATEEFRBUIFNTEFHER
NAIAEEEHTLRE A HORERT R
Fk - YRARBRRBFEASG ([IRE
HERE|)BRREREBL - ARAIA
BERMAGIE  EMHEEFSEREN
HEMERSRRETRISMEREST SN
REMES  HILHEZEEARFZ
BABRRRERILE  ERRZAELA
BIRRBEBE -

REBARNREBEIRAA  RARFE
ERRBFRE L HEREFAM=
N EFRRFEER  EEER(E
EAEEEMREZESR)ARIE=F
WmESR—R ERHONTAERLRAE
BRI

ARBRRAIRIRRA R A EBERZA
A BRARBITNERNRRAE EUER
RERBRERL - REHARERNE
= M AWARFASERARKAR
AIRZBRES 2RI 2 T HhEEE
RI|E - WETAINERRARERS
—BATREERML

66

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

The Board also considers that the Independent Non-Executive
Directors can provide independent advice on the Company’s business
strategies, results and management so as to safeguard the interests
of the Company and its shareholders.

All Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a term of
three years. As at 31 December 2014, none of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors held any other offices in the Company or any of
its subsidiaries or is interested in any shares of the Company. For
the year under review, all Independent Non-Executive Directors have
confirmed their independence to the Company in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent
Non-Executive Directors are independent.

Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

Each of the Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive
Directors has entered into a service contract or a letter of appointment
with the Company for a specific term. Such term is subject to his re-
election by the Company at an annual general meeting (“AGM") upon
retirement. The Company's Articles of Association provide that any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board
or as an additional member of the Board shall hold office only until the
first general meeting of the members of Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election at such meeting.

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, at each
AGM of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being,
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director (including
those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The members of the Company may, at any general meetings
convened and held in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, remove a Director by ordinary resolution at any time
before the expiration of his period of office notwithstanding anything
contrary in the Company’s Articles of Association or in any agreement
between the Company and such Director and may by ordinary
resolution elect another person in his stead.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of the
Group. Directors may participate either in person or through electronic
means of communications.

Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the Code, the Board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held as least four times a year.
During the year under review, the Company held four Board meetings
and one general meeting.

BEEMLFERENT ¢ The attendance of each Director is as follows:
No. of Board No. of general
meetings attended/ meetings attended/
Total no. of Total no. of
Board meetings general meetings
HEESESRIE HERRAERE
EEHR Name of Directors EESSEAY BRASEE
HITEF Executive Directors
MRS AE Mr. LIN Zhong 4/4 171
MBS A Mr. LIN Wei 4/4 171
RIS A Mr. LIN Feng 4/4 171
BUIHBITEE Independent Non-executive Directors
EELAE Mr. GU Yunchang 4/4 0/1
ROKESTAE Mr. ZHANG Yongyue 4/4 01
BRIZRC & Mr. TAN Wee Seng 4/4 171
JEIEER (RBDBR AR | ZF—UFF® 67
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board meetings (Continued)

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has arranged in-house trainings for Directors in the form
of seminar and provision of training materials. A summary of training
received by Directors during the year under review according to the
records provided by the Directors is as follows:

BHEER -
EEERR

H A AHBA = REE I
Training on
corporate governance,
regulatory development

EEpE Name of Directors and other relevant topics
HITEF Executive Directors

MRS A Mr. LIN Zhong v/
ME A Mr. LIN Wei v/
RIS A Mr. LIN Feng v
B ITEE Independent Non-Executive Directors

BEEENRE Mr. GU Yunchang v
RKERE Mr. ZHANG Yongyue v
PRIERK S Mr. TAN Wee Seng v
RSB INEE Corporate governance functions

EERRBRTHEXEABBENE

(@) BEREEHAAREREABRK
A

b) RAMEEEENSREEARN
BB ERER

© WIREEARRTBREER A
BTARENMEERE

(d) BE- RIMEEEANEENE
EMRTEYRERFM(ME)
K

(e) A@Ef AR EEST LT AR BIM &40
ZER(EREETAREEE R
&) e
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The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties including:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(e) toreview the Company’'s compliance with Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report).
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the year under review, the positions of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer were held separately. The role of Chairman
was held by Mr. LIN Zhong, and Chief Executive Officer was held
by Mr. LIN Feng. The segregation of duties of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer ensures a clear distinction in the Chairman’s
responsibility to manage and provide leadership for the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer's responsibility to manage the Company’s
business.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees and has delegated
various responsibilities to the committees including the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”). All the Board Committees perform their
distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference
which are available to shareholders on the Company’s website.
The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expense.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph C.3 of the Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to provide the
Board with an independent review of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management system of the
Group, to oversee the audit process and to perform other duties and
responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee consists of three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. TAN Wee Seng (being the chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. GU Yunchang and Mr. ZHANG Yongyue.
In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the chairman of
the Audit Committee possesses the appropriate professional and
accounting qualifications.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two meetings
with the senior management and independent auditor of the Company
to consider the independence and audit scope of independent auditor,
and to review and discuss the internal control system, interim and
annual financial statements of the Company and the opinion and
report of independent auditor before submitting to the Board for their
approval.

BB EREENT The attendance of each member is as follows:
No. of
meetings attended/
Total no. of meetings
HESBRE
REHE Name of members eiEag
PRIERE(ER) Mr. TAN Wee Seng (Chairman) 2/2
BEERE Mr. GU Yunchang 2/2
RAKELE Mr. ZHANG Yongyue 2/2

FNEES Remuneration Committee

ARARRIFMEE S - WER ETR
AP &%+ M= RIEBARMIRE * 513
EHRELE - FNEZEENTERE
BEVERER) (2R ESEREHR
EIEANBHMEOBR MARRE - ARG E
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The Company established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1 of the
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee include (but not limited
to): (a) making recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on such remuneration; (b) determining the terms
of the specific remuneration package of our Directors and senior
management; and (c) reviewing and approving performance — based
remuneration be reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by our Directors from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, of whom
two are Independent Non-Executive Directors. The three members
are Mr. ZHANG Yongyue (being the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. LIN Zhong, our Executive Director and Chairman and
Mr. TAN Wee Seng.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held
one meeting to review the remuneration structure of the Directors
and senior management of the Group and appraisal system of the
key positions of the Group, discuss the challenges of attracting and
retaining senior level staff of the Company, and make recommendation
on the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and senior
management for 2015.

BEREMLFERENT The attendance of each member is as follows:
No. of
meetings attended/
Total no. of meetings
HESERE
REtE Name of members eEEY
FoKELRA (EF) Mr. ZHANG Yongyue (Chairman) 1/1
A S A Mr. LIN Zhong 1/1
BRIE R S Mr. TAN Wee Seng 1/1
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Details of the remuneration payable to the Directors and five highest
paid individuals of the Group during the year under review are set out
in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5 of the Code
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties
of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board, and select and make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of Directors, re-appointment
of Directors, succession planning for directors and assesses the
independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, of whom two
are Independent Non-Executive Directors. The three members are Mr.
LIN Zhong (being the chairman of the Nomination Committee), the
Executive Director and Chairman, Mr. GU Yunchang and Mr. ZHANG
Yongyue.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to review the composition of the Board and its committees
as well as the background and experiences of the Board members
and evaluate the contributions of the Board members to the Group in
2014 and make recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment
of Directors and assesses the independence of Independent Non-
Executive Directors.

EXERHFELHAT The attendance of each member is as follows:

No. of
meetings attended/
Total no. of meetings
HESEIE
REHA Name of members iy
MAPEE(ER) Mr. LIN Zhong (Chairman) 1/1
BEEELLE Mr. GU Yunchang 1/1
RoKELRAE Mr. ZHANG Yongyue 11

ESENESTEBER Board Diversity Policy
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The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Board will consider to set measurable objectives to implement the
Policy and review such objectives from time to time to ensure their
appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards achieving
those objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy from time to time to
ensure its continued effectiveness.
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(B) FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Financial reporting

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the Group.
In preparation of financial statements, International Financial Reporting
Standards have been adopted and the appropriate accounting policies
have been consistently used and applied. The Board aims to present
a clear and balanced assessment of the Group's performance in the
annual and interim reports to the shareholders, and make appropriate
disclosure and announcements in a timely manner. Pursuant to
code provision C.1.1 of the Code, management would provide such
explanation and information to the Board as will enable the Board to
make an informal assessment of the financial and other information
put before the Board for approval.

The working scope and reporting responsibilities of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, the Company’s external auditor, are set out on page 94 of
the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” in this annual report.

External auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the remunerations paid or
payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in respect of its audit services
and non-audit services are approximately RMB3,100,000 and
RMB80,000, respectively. The amount for 2014 non-audit services
comprised mainly the tax-related services fee. The Audit Committee
was satisfied that the non-audit services in 2014 did not affect the
independence of the auditor.

Internal control

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the Group and
for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures have been designed
for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for publications and the
compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The internal control are reviewed and assessed on an on-going basis

by the Executive Directors, and will be further reviewed and assessed
at least once each year by the Board.
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(C) COMPANY SECRETARY AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS

Company Secretary

The Company engages an external service provider to provide
secretarial service and has appointed Mr. LO Tai On as its Company
Secretary. Mr. LO has confirmed that for the year under review, he
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training. The
biography of Mr. LO is set out on page 62 of this annual report. Mr.
LO is not an employee of our Group and Mr. YAU Sze Ka (Albert), our
Chief Financial Officer, is the person whom Mr. LO can contact for the
purpose of code F.1.1 of the Code.

Shareholders’ rights

Convening extraordinary general meeting and putting forward
proposals at shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, shareholders are
requested to follow article 12.3 of the Articles of Association of the
Company. Pursuant to article 12.3 of the Articles of Association of
the Company, general meetings shall be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more members of the Company deposited at
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists,
provided that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. General meetings may also be convened on the written
requisition of any one member of the Company which is a recognised
clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of
the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to
have such a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that such
requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company. If the Board does
not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed
duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the
requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene the
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.
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(C) COMPANY SECRETARY AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS (Continued)

Shareholders’ rights (Continued)

Convening extraordinary general meeting and putting forward
proposals at shareholders’ meetings (Continued)

If a shareholder, who is entitled to attend and vote at the relevant
general meeting, wishes to nominate a person (not being the
nominating shareholder) to stand for election as a Director, he or she
should give to the secretary of the Company notice in writing of the
intention to propose a person for election as a Director and notice in
writing by that person of his or her willingness to be so elected, no
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the relevant
general meeting and no later than 7 days prior to the date appointed
for the relevant general meeting.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director are available on the Company's website.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change to the Company's constitutional documents
during the year. The Company’s Articles of Association is available
on the Company's website and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited's website.

Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries may be put to the Board through the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Suites 2002-2003, One Pacific
Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong (email: ir@cifi.com.cn).

(D) INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The management of the Company believes that effective and proper
investor relations play a vital role in creating shareholders’ value,
enhancing the corporate transparency as well as establishing market
confidence. Effective investor relations can contribute towards lower
cost of capital, higher market liquidity for the Company’'s stocks and
bonds as well as a more stable investor base. The Company’s investor
relations team is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate
transparency and following a policy of disclosing relevant information
to investors, analysts and bankers in a timely manner to keep them
aware of the Group’s corporate strategies and business operations.
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(D) INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

The Company has adopted a stringent internal control system to

ensure true, accurate, complete and timely disclosure of relevant

information pursuant to requirements of relevant laws and regulations

in order to ensure all shareholders and investors equal access to

information.

During the year, the Company has proactively taken the following
measures to ensure effective shareholders’ communication and
transparency:

° maintained frequent contacts with shareholders and investors
through various channels such as meetings, conference calls,
video meetings and emails;

o held numerous roadshows and participated in investor
conferences introducing the Group's development strategies and
recent business developments;

° regularly update the Company’s news and developments through
the investor relations section of the Company's website;

° arranged on-site visits to the Group's projects for investors and
research analysts.

Through the above measures, the Company endeavours to
communicate with the investment community and provide them with
the latest development of the Group and the PRC real estate industry.

In addition, the annual general meeting also provides a useful forum
for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. In 2014, an annual
general meeting was held on 2 April 2014. The Chairman of the Board,
as well as chairman of each of the Board Committees, or in their
absence, members of the respective Committees, and the external
auditors of the Company, were available to answer questions from
shareholders at the annual general meeting. At the annual general
meeting, procedures for conducting a poll were explained by the
Chairman and a resolution was proposed in respect of each separate
issue itemized in the agenda.

The forthcoming 2015 annual general meeting will be held on 17 April
2015.
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(D) INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Major Investor Relations Events Participated by the Company in

2014

DBS Vickers Pulse of Asia Singapore Conference (Singapore)

BNP Paribas Regional FIG Conferences (Property & Financial) (Hong Kong)
Nomura HK/China Property Corporate Day (Hong Kong)

RHB — OSK DMG ASEAN & HK Corporate Day (Singapore)

Citi Hong Kong China Property Top Picks Corporate Day (Hong Kong)

UBS China Investment Conference (Shanghai)

DB China Investment Conference (Beijing)

Citi Fixed Income Conference (Hong Kong)

DB Fixed Income Corporate Day (Hong Kong)

2013 Final Results Announcement Press Conference and Analysts Meeting
(Hong Kong)

Non-Deal Roadshow (Hong Kong, Arranged by Citi,
Nomura and HSBC)

Non-Deal Roadshow (Singapore, Arranged by DB)

Non-Deal Roadshow (New York/Boston/Los Angeles, Arranged by Citi,
HSBC and CS)

Non-Deal Roadshow (London, Arranged by Citi and CS)

HSBC Asia Property Conference (Hong Kong)

Macquarie Greater China Conference (Hong Kong)

DBS Vickers Pulse of Asia Hong Kong Conference (Hong Kong)
Morgan Stanley Annual Hong Kong Investor Summit (Hong Kong)
Barclays Asia Property Conference (Hong Kong)

DB Access Asia Conference (Singapore)

J.P. Morgan Annual Global China Summit (Beijing)
RHB Asean & Hong Kong Corporate Day (Singapore and Kuala Lumpur)

Citi Asia Property Conference (Hong Kong)

2014 Interim Results Announcement Press Conference and Analysts
Meeting (Hong Kong)

NDR (Hong Kong, arranged by Standard Chartered, Nomura and Credit
Suisse for fixed income)

Non-Deal Roadshow (Singapore, arranged by
Citi and OSK for equity, HSBC and Credit Suisse for fixed income)

Non-Deal Roadshow (Hong Kong, arranged by Haitong International)

RHB 0SK Hong Kong Corporate Day (Hong Kong)

Non-Deal Roadshow (Shanghai, arranged by BOCI and Nomura)

Standard Chartered Fixed Income Investors Reverse Roadshow (Hong Kong)

JP Morgan Asia and CEEMEA Emerging Markets Corporate Credit
Conference (London)

Equity Non-Deal Roadshow (London, Arranged by UOB Kay Hian)

UOB Kay Hian Singapore Conference (Singapore)
HSBC's China Conference (Shanghai)

BoA Merrill Lynch China Conference (Beijing)
Citi China Investors Conference (Macau)
Morgan Stanley Asia Pacific Summit (Singapore)
2015

Barclays China Property Corporate Day (Hong Kong)
BNP Paribas Asia Pacific Property & Financial Conference (Hong Kong)
UBS China Investment Conference (Shanghai)

Citi Asia Pacific Investor Conference (Singapore)
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The board of directors (the “Board”) presents the annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in property development, property investment
and property management. The activities and particulars of the
Company's subsidiaries are shown under note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s turnover and operating
profit for the year by principal activities is set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report and note
5 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 96 of the annual report.

PAYMENT OF FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend for 2014
of HK 11 cents (2013: HK 7 cents) per Share (the “Proposed Final
Dividend”). Subject to the approval of the Proposed Final Dividend by
the shareholders at the annual general meeting to be held on Friday,
17 April 2015 (the “2015 AGM"), the Proposed Final Dividend will be
payable in cash but shareholders will have an option to receiving the
Proposed Final Dividend in cash or in form of new fully paid shares
of the Company (“scrip shares”) in respect of part or all of such final
dividend (the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”).

The Scrip Dividend Scheme is conditional upon the passing of the
resolution relating to the payment of final dividend at the 2015 AGM
and the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited granting the listing of and permission to deal in the new
shares to be issued under the Scrip Dividend Scheme.

A circular containing details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme together
with relevant election form will be dispatched to shareholders on or
about Wednesday, 29 April, 2015. It is expected that the cheques
for cash dividends or if scrip shares are elected, the certificates for
the scrip shares will be sent on or about Thursday, 28 May 2015 to
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Friday, 24 April 2015.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS
(a) For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
2015 AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
13 April 2015 to Friday, 17 April 2015, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In
order to determine the identity of members who are entitled to attend
and vote at the 2015 AGM, all share transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 10 April 2015.

(b) For determining the entitlement to the Proposed Final
Dividend

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 23 April 2015 to Friday, 24 April 2015, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be
effected. In order to qualify for the Proposed Final Dividend, all share
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Rooms
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 22 April
2015.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES
Details of the movement in reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out on pages 99 and 207 of this annual report.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report and note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
under review.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the law of Cayman Islands being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. LIN Zhong (Chairman)

Mr. LIN Wei (Vice-chairman)

Mr. LIN Feng (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. GU Yunchang

Mr. ZHANG Yongyue

Mr. TAN Wee Seng

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third
of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation at annual general
meeting and be eligible for re-election. Further, the Company’s Articles
of Association requires that any Director appointed by the Board shall
hold office only until the following annual general meeting and shall be
eligible for re-election at that meeting. Accordingly, Mr. GU Yunchang
and Mr. ZHANG Yongyue shall retire from office by rotation at the
2015 AGM of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company and each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors has signed an appointment letter with the Company. The
appointment of all the Directors is for a period of three years and shall
continue thereafter until being terminated by either party giving not
less than six months’ (in case of Executive Directors) or three months’
(in case of Independent Non-Executive Directors) prior written notice.

None of the Directors who are proposed for election or re-election at
the 2015 AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year, none of the Directors, the management shareholders
of the Company nor their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) had any interest in a business that competed or might
compete with the business of the Group. In particular, Mr. LIN Zhong,
Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng, being the Executive Directors and the
controlling shareholders of the Company declared that they did not
engage in business competed or might compete with the business
of the Group during the year and they have complied with the
undertakings given under the Deed of Non-competition as disclosed
in the prospectus of the Company dated 13 November 2012. The
Independent Non-executive Directors did not notice any incident of
non-compliance of such undertakings.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out in the section headed "Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS UNDER RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING
RULES

The Group entered into a number of loan agreements containing
covenants relating to specific performance of the controlling
shareholders of the Company (the “Loan Agreements”) which were
subject to announcement disclosure under Rule 13.18 of the Listing
Rules and requirements of disclosure in this annual report under Rule
13.21 of the Listing Rules, the details of which are set out below:

() InJuly 2013, the Company signed a syndicated loan facility
agreement (“CIFI Syndicated Loan Agreement”) with a
consortium of offshore banks. The Syndicated Loan is a US
dollar/Hong Kong dollar dual-currency unsecured term loan facility
with an aggregate amount of approximately US$156.5 million,
with final maturity of three years from 8 July 2013, being the
date of the loan agreement and interest rate of LIBOR or HIBOR
plus 5.65% per annum.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS UNDER RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING
RULES (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

In January 2014, the Group’'s 50:50 joint venture companies
formed with Greenland Hong Kong Holdings Limited in respect
of Hangzhou Greenland CIFI Glorious City project signed an
onshore and offshore syndicated loan facilities agreement
(“Hangzhou Glorious City Syndicated Loans Agreements”) with
a consortium of offshore and onshore banks. The Hangzhou
Glorious City Syndicated Loans comprise (i) an offshore US
dollar/Hong Kong dollar dual currency term loan facility with an
aggregate amount of approximately US$320 million, with a final
maturity of three years from the date of first utilization; and (ii)
an onshore RMB project development loan facility with a facility
amount of RMB1 billion, with final maturity of three years from
the date of utilization.

In November 2014, the Group’s 50:50 joint venture companies
formed with Henderson Land Development Company Limited in
respect of the Honggiao project entered into an offshore facility
agreement (the “Offshore Agreement”) and an onshore facility
agreement (the “Onshore Agreement”) with a group of offshore
financial institution and a group of onshore financial institution.
The Offshore Agreement is a Hong Kong dollar denominated
term loan facility with an aggregate amount of HK$1,440,000,000
with final maturity of three years from the date of first utilization.
The Onshore Agreement is a Renminbi denominated term loan
facility with an aggregate amount of RMB1,500,000,000 with
final maturity of three years from the date of first utilization.

In January 2015, the Company entered into a facility agreement
(the "Facility Agreement”) with a group of financial institutions.
The Facility Agreement comprises (i) a US dollar/Hong Kong
dollar dual currency term loan facility with an aggregate amount
of approximately US$120 million; and (ii) a greenshoe option of
an additional US$100 million, with maturity of 36 months after
the date of fist utilization.

Pursuant to the Loan Agreements, it is required that (i) Mr. LIN Zhong,
Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng, their family trust and the companies
beneficially owned by them will collectively maintain beneficial
ownership of at least 51% of the entire issued share capital of the
Company; and (ii) any one of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN
Feng shall remain as the chairman of the Board.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”)
adopted by the Company on 9 October 2012, the Directors may invite
participants to take up options at a price determined by the Board
provided that it shall be at least the highest of (a) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date on which an offer is made by the Company to the grantee
(which date must be a business day, “Offer Date"); (b) a price being
the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (c) the
nominal value of a share of the Company.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed
577,000,000 Shares, representing 10% of the total number of Shares
in issue as at the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme unless
the Company obtains a fresh approval from the Shareholders to
refresh the limit.

The maximum entitlement for any one participant is that the total
number of the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted under the Share Option Scheme to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding Options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue
unless otherwise approved by the Shareholders at a general meeting
of the Company.
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The options may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during the option period which may
be determined and notified by the Board to the grantees at the time
of making an offer which shall not expire later than 10 years from
the grant date. The Company did not grant any options to Directors
or employees under the Share Option Scheme during the year under

review. Particulars of outstanding options in respect of the year under
review are as follows:

EE Directors
BREHE
Number of Share Option
R=Z—NF REFE R-Z-—N0OF
TEER —HB—H & t=A=+-—H
(&) e RATHE Granted e RATHE
®E 51 R B Exercise Price  Outstanding during  Outstanding
Name Capacity Date of Grant (HK$) at1Jan 2014 the year at 31 Dec 2014
Wi 5 A EmEAA —Z-ZETHAZTNH 155870 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
Mr. LIN Feng Beneficial Owner 29 October 2013 HK$1.55
BEERAE EREAA —Z—=%-A=+H 16847 7T 800,000 - 800,000
Mr. GU Yunchang Beneficial Owner 26 February 2013 HK$1.684
—E-—=f+tHA=ZTNH 155787 700,000 - 700,000
29 October 2013 HK$1.55
FoKERAE EnlAEA —T—=%-"A=-+XH 168478 7T 800,000 - 800,000
Mr. ZHANG Yongyue  Beneficial Owner 26 February 2013 HK$1.684
—E-=%+tHZ+hH 155787 700,000 - 700,000
29 October 2013 HK$1.55
BREKTE EmAA —T-=F-A=+XA 168478 7T 800,000 - 800,000
Mr. TAN Wee Seng Beneficial Owner 26 February 2013 HK$1.684
=5+ HZTNH 1.55/87T 700,000 - 700,000
29 October 2013 HK$1.55
== Employees
BREHE
Number of Share Option
R=Z—MmE RAEFE R=ZE—lmFE
TREER —H—H ‘g +=A=+—H
(&) e RATHE Granted e RATHE
B 54 Exercise Price Outstanding during Outstanding
Date of Grant Capacity (HKS) at 1Jan 2014 the year at 31 Dec 2014
“E-=F"A-1+RB EREEA 168475 7T 150,000,000 - 150,000,000
26 February 2013 Beneficial Owner HK$1.684
ZE=FTAZTIE EmlEBEA 1558 7T 144,900,000 - 144,900,000
29 October 2013 Beneficial Owner HK$1.55
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Notes:

1. As for the share option granted on 26 February 2013, the closing price of the shares on
the Stock Exchange immediately before the date on which the options were granted
was HK$1.65. The options are exercisable in 4 tranches of 25% each, from 1 July 2014
to 30 June 2018.

2. As for the share option granted on 29 October 2013, the closing price of the shares on
the Stock Exchange immediately before the date on which the options were granted
was HK$1.52. The options are exercisable in 4 tranches of 25% each, from 1 July 2014
to 30 June 2018.

3. No option was exercised, lapsed or cancelled during the year.

PRE-IPO SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Group adopted a Pre-IPO share award scheme in December 2010
(amended in August 2011)(the “Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme") so
as to build up medium and long term incentive mechanism, retain and
cultivate talent, maintain the stability of the management team and
corporate business and to align the interests of the management team
with those of the shareholders. Selected employees were awarded
shares of the Company which are held by Full Happiness International
(PTC) Limited (“Full Happiness") as trustee for the benefits of the
selected employees under the Full Happiness Trust. The total number
of the shares of the Company granted to Full Happiness as trustee on
the grant date was 136,500,000, representing approximately 2.26% of
the total issued share capital of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”)
as at the date of this annual report. No further shares will be issued by
the Company pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme.

The selected employees are entitled to exercise or enjoy the rights
to the Awarded Shares after the vesting of the Awarded Shares in
accordance with the applicable vesting period. Vesting period is four
years during which the Awarded Shares granted to any particular
selected employee will vest on each anniversary of the first vesting
date in equal portions. The first vesting date for all the relevant
selected employees under the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme is 1
January 2013. Prior to vesting, the selected employees are not entitled
to the rights to and interests in the Awarded Shares, including voting
and distribution rights.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTEREST IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO"), which (a) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares:

L N
BEBRITRAEN
BABEIL
Approximate
B3, #8B8  percentage
RDEE  of the issued
Number share capital
EEERE of Shares/ of the
Name of B EREnE underlying Company
EEEE Name of Director Corporation  Capacity/Nature of interest Shares (%)
MR SEAE Mr. LIN Zhong YN 2RAZFEHBIL A (FIEE) 1,157,675,670 19.21%
Company Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 1)
NS A HFAIA (ME2) 2,130,385,975 35.35%
Company Co-founder of a discretionary trust (Note 2)
NES e Mr. LIN Wei ZA/NE] FE R EE R (F1EE3) 613,765,775 10.18%
Company Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3)
ARRA] RGN HFAIA (MF2) 2,130,385,975 35.35%
Company Co-founder of a discretionary trust (Note 2)
PRI ST Mr. LIN Feng ZA/NE] PREEFERRISZA (FIEE4) 204,588,580 3.39%
Company Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 4)
EANE] REFNHRAILA (M) 2,130,385,975 35.35%
Company Co-founder of a discretionary trust (Note 2)
NS EamA A (5s) 3,000,000 0.05%
Company Beneficial Owner (Note 5)
FAZE%E  MrGU Yunchang VNG Bz R A (F5E5) 1,500,000 0.02%
Company Beneficial Owner (Note 5)
SRAKESLLE  Mr ZHANG Yongyue ZA/NE] EmA A (5s) 1,500,000 0.02%
Company Beneficial Owner (Note 5)
BRIZAKSEAE Mr TAN Wee Seng EA/NS| BB AED) 1,500,000 0.02%
Company Beneficial Owner (Note 5)
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RO RAEABRGIEFR : (

ZERMBSEAERQAABD(IRE])FE -
REMEE D HEITIRAHEternally Success
International Limited([ Eternally Success ))& #&
A - MEternally Successi 2 &R BT AHI
FISCTS Capital Pte. Ltd.([SCTS)2&# & -
SCTSHSun Success Trust#J5 7t AStandard
Chartered Trust (Singapore) Limited([ Standard
Chartered Trust]) 2 & #4E ° Sun Success
TrustJhpRp S £ (YEBBFER T A) BStandard
Chartered Trust(EAZFTEAIR=_T—=FF
A+—BAKIH 2S5 ° Sun Success Trust
HZEABRERPEENETREKE - BB
BHLEE GO EXVE - S E(EASun
Success TrustBBIZ A WIRARRERED
1,157,675,670M AR A R HE A HEzs

ZEROBXKBREGRAA(XKEDFE -
KRN ZIE BT A H Gentle Beauty Assets
Limited([ Gentle Beauty])2&#7%A ' ifiGentle
Beauty M 2 S E TR ANBIASCTS 2 &
A o SCTSHMEK K &5 8 X 7t AStandard
Chartered TrustZ2&# A - MEKREEFLTIM
REE - MELEERMKELRE(EFAMERT
A)EiStandard Chartered Trust({fEASFEA)R
—ZE-—HFRAB+ - AHRRIHNDHERET -
MEREETH o A BB £ RKIE T
ERBETRIEKE - BIFFEH R EEEHIEXV
B AR S - WNME S RN A (TR AR
RiEEAENHERAIZ A FERARXKEFEN
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% % % 12 fA Rain-Mountain Limited ([ Rain-
Mountain])#4 ¢ Rain-Mountainf & 22 %
778 FHBeauty Fountain Holdings Limited
([ Beauty Fountain]) 2 & # A ' ifiBeauty
Fountainf) 2 2 #/TIR AAIHSCTS 2 &
# A o SCTS M Sun-Mountain Trust #) 5 5E
AStandard Chartered Trust®&# 7% ° Sun-
Mountain TrustJhmRIE 5 A (E R ER T A)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTEREST IN
SECURITIES (Continued)

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares: (Continued)
Notes:

1. These Shares are held by Ding Chang Limited (“Ding Chang”). The entire issued share
capital of Ding Chang is wholly owned by Eternally Success International Limited
("Eternally Success”), the entire issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-owned by
SCTS Capital Pte. Ltd. ("SCTS"), which is in turn wholly owned by Standard Chartered
Trust (Singapore) Limited (“Standard Chartered Trust”) as the trustee of the Sun
Success Trust. The Sun Success Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. LIN Zhong as
settlor and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May 2012. The beneficiary objects
of the Sun Success Trust include certain family members of Mr. LIN Zhong. Mr. LIN
Zhong as founder of the Sun Success Trust is taken to be interested in the 1,157,675,670
Shares held by Ding Chang pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

2. These Shares are held by Rosy Fortune Investments Limited (“Rosy Fortune”). The
entire issued share capital of Rosy Fortune is wholly owned by Gentle Beauty Assets
Limited (“Gentle Beauty"”), the entire issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-
owned by SCTS, which is in turn wholly owned by Standard Chartered Trust as the trustee
of the Lin's Family Trust. The Lin's Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up jointly by
Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng as settlors and Standard Chartered Trust as
trustee on 11 May 2012. The beneficiary objects of the Lin's Family Trust include certain
family members of Mr. LIN Zhong and Mr. LIN Feng. Each of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN
Wei and Mr. LIN Feng as a co-founder of the Lin's Family Trust is taken to be interested
in the 2,130,385,975 Shares held by Rosy Fortune pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

3. These Shares are held by Eminent Talent Limited (“Eminent Talent”). The entire issued
share capital of Eminent Talent is wholly owned by Mr. LIN Wei.

4. These Shares are held by Rain-Mountain Limited (“Rain-Mountain”). The entire issued
share capital of Rain-Mountain is wholly owned by Beauty Fountain Holdings Limited
("Beauty Fountain”), the entire issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-owned
by SCTS, which is in turn wholly owned by Standard Chartered Trust as the trustee
of the Sun-Mountain Trust. The Sun-Mountain Trust is a discretionary trust set up by
Mr. LIN Feng as settlor and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May 2012. The
beneficiary objects of the Sun-Mountain Trust include certain family members of Mr.
LIN Feng. Mr. LIN Feng as founder of the Sun-Mountain Trust is taken to be interested
in the 204,588,580 Shares held by Rain-Mountain pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

5. The relevant Director was granted options to subscribe for such number of Shares under
the Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 9 October 2012. Please refer to
the section on “Share Option Scheme” for further details.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at 31 December
2014, the following shareholders, other than those disclosed in
the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interest in
Securities”, had notified the Company of its interests and/or short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO:

As at 31 December 2014, so far as the Directors were aware, persons
other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had
an interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section

336 of the SFO were as follows:

EERT
ERITRAK
BMABDT
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

B4, EEARGE A capital of
TERRERE 510 REME Number of Shares/ the Company
Name of substantial shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest underlying Shares (%)
Gentle Beauty Syl AR (F ) 2,130,385,975 35.35%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1)
%= EmEAAME) 2,130,385,975 35.35%
Rosy Fortune Beneficial owner (Note 1)
Eternally Success REHhEE R (M 5E2) 1,157,675,670 19.21%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2)
88 EmEAAMfE2) 1,157,675,670 19.21%
Ding Chang Beneficial owner (Note 2)
=5 EmEAAMEE) 613,765,775 10.18%
Eminent Talent Beneficial owner (Note 3)
Standard Chartered Trust NG 3,492,650,225 57.95%
Trustee (Note 4)
SCTS AR R (M 5T4) 3,492,650,225 57.95%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 4)
BB (B BRAR | —T—NFFHR 89
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (Continued)

Notes:

1. Rosy Fortune is wholly owned by Gentle Beauty, which is in turn directly and wholly owned
by SCTS. SCTS is wholly held by Standard Chartered Trust as the trustee of the Lin's
Family Trust. The Lin’s Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up jointly by Mr. LIN Zhong,
Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng as settlors and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11
May 2012. The beneficiary objects of the Lin's Family Trust include certain family members
of Mr. LIN Zhong and Mr. LIN Feng.

2. Ding Chang is wholly owned by Eternally Success, which is in turn directly and wholly
owned by SCTS. SCTS is wholly held by Standard Chartered Trust as the trustee of the Sun
Success Trust. The Sun Success Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. LIN Zhong as
settlor and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May 2012. The beneficiary objects of
the Sun Success Trust include certain family members of Mr. LIN Zhong.

3. Eminent Talent is wholly owned by Mr. LIN Wei.

4. These include 2,130,385,975 Shares held by Rosy Fortune, 1,157,675,670 Shares held by
Ding Chang and 204,588,580 Shares held by Rain-Mountain. The entire issued share capital
of Rain-Mountain is wholly owned by Beauty Fountain, the entire issued share capital
of which is in turn directly and wholly owned by SCTS. SCTS is wholly held by Standard
Chartered Trust as the trustee of the Sun-Mountain Trust. The Sun-Mountain Trust is
a discretionary trust set up by Mr. LIN Feng as settlor and Standard Chartered Trust as
trustee on 11 May 2012. The beneficiary objects of the Sun-Mountain Trust include certain
family members of Mr. LIN Feng.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Schemes, at no time during the year was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities including debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance in relation to which the Company, its
holding company or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year under review.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year under review, the Group's five largest suppliers and
customers together accounted for less than 10% of the Group's
purchases and sales respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Sales of Properties

On 31 December 2014, certain subsidiaries of the Company had
entered into a total of six sale and purchase agreements (the “Sale
and Purchase Agreements”) to sell properties developed by the Group
to certain connected persons of the Company and/or their associates.
The details of the transactions were announced in the announcement
of the Company dated 31 December 2014 which were summarized
below:

Bh Bh LIES RE
Vendor Purchaser Property Consideration
AR¥T
RMB
EBBREFEERAF N =t RFE EERTRAME LG fBiE « BE—FET=EEM 22,000,000
(Shanghai Xubai Property Mr. LIN Feng One residential unit of Shanghai CIFI Shilu (=& /B  £/E) located
Co. Ltd¥) at Hongsong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC (FR B &
BIfTIRATHARK)
LBEmEXERAR LEEBIREEREAR  AUNPELERTEANRKE LS BE« ZE—HAF=EEM 6,044,940
(Shanghai Xubai Property /A ] (Shanghai Jianpu One residential unit of Shanghai CIFI Shilu (=& /B £ /E) located
Co. Ltd*) Investment Management at Hongsong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC (R B &
Co., Ltd.*) RIfTIRATHARK)
EEEREERR AR MAZ T RFE EEHERZETIE LG B1E « /8 ERRHEFE 5,995,094

(Shanghai Haiji Real Estate
Co., Ltd¥)

Ms. ZENG Yirong

By

Four residential units within Shanghai CIFI Haishang International ( -
7Z JBFE e B located at Kongjiang Road, Yangpu District,
Shanghai, the PRC (FP B L)@ 15 8 (@ 12/ B% )

ARG S EBARRTRRITEERIT
RRARER - BRI ETARRIE14AE - B A
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EARBRARRNEERS -

fBREER (RE)BRAR | —T—NFEFR

As Mr. LIN Feng is an executive Director and a controlling Shareholder
of the Company, he is a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. /& #HRE EIEAER A A) (Shanghai
Jianpu Investment Management Co., Ltd.*) (“Shanghai Jianpu”) is
owned by Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng as to 60%,
30% and 10% respectively. Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN
Feng are brothers and they all are executive Directors and controlling
Shareholders of the Company. As such, Shanghai Jianpu is an associate
of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng and a connected
person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Further, Ms. ZENG Yirong is the spouse of Mr. LIN Zhong and she is
therefore an associate of Mr. LIN Zhong and a connected person of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
Sale and Purchase Agreements constituted connected transactions of
the Company under the Listing Rules.

91



LRS- S

Directors’ Report

BER S (&)
BEETRAE14A.72FEHIRE

BE FRBIE14AE - RERERBE
MR ENFR20)BRE BEFRS
BEERS - A ARRSHZFEHE
FABEDHLELR01% @ #iRE EHRE
FE14A.7615 » ZBRFBREIERER
EZAN - BERREBTFEEERN  FEX
B RALERIRTE © RIS AZ ERAD R & I
HAR2C)WEZBEFRSGERARARA
HAE-_T-—NME+_A=+—HzA %
WIEE YAEXEEDE] —BPR
gt o 1RIE EHIRAIE14AE - WIBIEE
BRI 42BN - — MEETH
H b BE 5 X 5 W A AR B HY B sE
25

ZEABEFERE

REBEFE @ ARAIE#&F EmHRAIR

ELZRNRIFRE ©

TEER

REBFEA EFSRA/BARAICET
=p

FHX LT RBM S+ EE ST A
F S RINERS

ARBRANTIZLEEAFTREAR
RERPIBADREARS °

92

CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)

Disclosure under Rule 14A.72 of the Listing Rules

The related party transaction disclosed in note 42(b) of the
Independent Auditor’s Report contained in this annual report was
a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
however, since all the relevant percentage ratios in respect of the
transaction were less than 0.1%, the transaction fell within de-minimis
exemption under 14A.76 of the Listing Rules and was exempted from
the annual review, disclosure and shareholders’ approval requirements.
The related party disclosed in note 42(c) of the Independent Auditor’s
Report was disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
31 December 2014 mentioned in the paragraph headed “Sales of
Properties” above. Other related party transactions taken place in
2014 which were disclosed in note 42 of the Independent Auditor’s
Report did not constitute connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the public float as required by the
Listing Rules during the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of opinion that the Company had complied with the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code contained in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules during the year under review.

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are

set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual
report.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2014 have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu who were appointed as auditor of the Company since listing
and will retire at the forthcoming AGM. A resolution will be proposed
at the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
the auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

LIN Zhong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 10 March 2015

Note: The English names marked with “*" of the PRC entities are provided for identification
purpose only. The Chinese names are the official names of the PRC entities.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CIFI
Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “"Group”) set out on pages 96 to 239,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal controls as the directors determine are necessary to enable
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal controls relevant to the Group's preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2014,
and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

10 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROF(T OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2014

—E-NE —T—=F
2014 2013

iz AR®BTRT AR%®TR
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000
WA Revenue 5 16,179,334 11,909,162
HE RS A Cost of sales and services (11,992,548)  (8,840,651)
ER Gross profit 4,186,786 3,068,511
HAaA ~ Wiz K& 1E Other income, gains and losses 7 246,604 174,695
BEMENTEES Change in fair value of investment properties 241,166 753,535
EEREMEFEBEITETAR  Change in fair value of trust and other loans
NEEE) related derivatives 4,000 3,000
ZHERTISHERY Selling and marketing expenses (319,404) (308,662)
TEAY Administrative expenses (529,391) (513,621)
IR EDEEE Share of results of joint ventures (118,708) (14,117)
EE= %N Finance costs 8 (386,228) (188,465)
B %54 A K 578 Profit before taxation 3,324,825 2,974,876
iR Income tax expense 9 (1,325,237) (933,743)
FRABRZEKALLE Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 10 1,999,588 2,041,133
AT &AL - Attributable to:
KA RIRR = Equity owners of the Company 1,861,149 1,894,231
KABATEHBEA Owners of perpetual capital instruments 35913 -
Hab FEIEASE R Other non-controlling interests 102,526 146,902
138,439 146,902
FRFER 2K AL Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 1,999,588 2,041,133
BREF(ARYE) : Earnings per share, in RMB:
2K Basic 13 0.31 0.33
#E Diluted 13 0.31 0.33
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZZ—WF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2014

—EB-mFE —T-=F
2014 2013
izt AR®Tn AR¥ETr
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
FEREBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
LB Investment properties 14 5,206,200 4,650,400
ME - HENEE Property, plant and equipment 15 48,078 47,161
BREERIE Prepaid lease payments 16 57,645 57,645
RS QR AR Interest in an associate 17 15,300 -
A ERER Interests in joint ventures 18 7,891,784 4,298,994
AHHERE Available-for-sale investment 19 54,023 54,023
FIRHSRITER Restricted bank deposit 25 = 21,768
RIETIEEE Deferred taxation assets 32 213,551 147,186
13,486,581 9,277.177
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
BIELEYE Properties held for sale 20 5,419,473 3,951,144
B ErnRsEhE Properties under development for sale 21 9,803,747 13,044,558
FEURER SN R Efth lEUERIE - 354 Accounts and other receivables, deposits and
SN R prepayments 22 3,975,308 3,146,357
FEUT SE1E AR RS TN TE Amounts due from non-controlling interests 23 104,704 64,704
ERA L EN—MEZ NE/  Amounts due from joint ventures and
I an associate 24 1,041,654 223,650
BrEREME T FERERS Deposits for land use rights for properties
held for sale 2,256,720 1,972,562
AU EIFIE Taxation recoverable 326,798 265,197
SHEMIETER Pledged bank deposits 25 30,000 100,000
IRITESRKEIRE Bank balances and cash 25 7,093,654 7,060,748
30,052,058 29,828,920
i i=Rid CURRENT LIABILITIES
FERTBR N S B AT RIS Accounts payables and accrued charges 26 5,183,049 5,140,512
BEES LS Deposits received from property sales 5,015,996 8,067,878
JE T FEFE A 25 IR Amounts due to non-controlling interests 23 477,307 433,202
JENE SR M4 TH  Amounts due to joint ventures and
FIE an associate 24 4,926,725 1,189,758
FERTHRIE Taxation payable 1,472,710 784,341
IRITREMER—N—FAZIE  Bank and other borrowings — due within one year 27 3,035,362 2,934,643
EAREMETIERITETA Trust and other loans related derivatives 28 - 82,000
20,111,149 18,632,334
REEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 9,940,909 11,196,586
BREERABDER TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 23,427,490 20,473,763
R (EE)ARLAA | —F—NEFR 97
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
MZZ—PE+_-A=+—H At 31 December 2014

—E-mE —T—=4F

2014 2013

fizx ARSTR ARETT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000

B EE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
[N Share capital 31 487,896 487,896
(G Reserves 9,717,153 8,123,057
A AR SR i PR AR A R 2 Equity attributable to equity owners of
the Company 10,205,049 8,610,953
KABATEA Perpetual capital instruments 30 585,710 -
Hfh FESE A i Other non-controlling interests 792,159 544,442
1,377,869 544,442
RARERAEE TOTAL EQUITY 11,582,918 9,155,395
ERBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
SRITREADfEE — A —41% 5|8 Bank and other borrowings — due after one year 27 6,468,435 7.219.455
BREE Senior notes 29 4,356,950 3,137,901
ELEFEAE Deferred taxation liabilities 32 1,019,187 961,012

11,844,572 11,318,368
23,421,490 20,473,763

FUZE29EMGREMBMEREMN =ZF The consolidated financial statements on pages 94 to 239 were
—HFE=ZAt+HEESSHENIKE#ET] approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 10

E WA MIATREREE March 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:
e PR LIN Zhong LIN Feng
EF EF DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES [N EQUITY

HE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2014

RRARRERER
Attributable to equity owners of the Company
FRIR EE KA
Elnkt  RHEE HERRE BATE JERRER
BA  RAEE Special  Statutory  EIRIEREE Capital ~ (REBFIE Perpetual Non-
Share Share and other surplus — Shareoption  contribution Retained it capital  controlling gt fzt
capital premium Teserve Teserve Teserve Teserve profits Total  instruments interests Subtotal Total

ARETT ARBTT ARMTR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETRT ARETR ARETT ARETRT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Fizk1)  (H3Es)
(Note 1) (Note 3]

W_E-—=%—-f-H At1 January 2013 467370 1,086,735 202452 377,366 - 26307 4420298 6,549,528 - 391,066 391,066 6,940,594
FRFERZERAES Profit and total comprehensive income for the
year - - - - - - 1,894,231 1,894,231 - 146,902 146,092 201133
EATEE Appropriations to reserve - - - 107,157 - - (107,157) - - - - -
RS KN AT  Acquisition of additional interest n a
FREMER (1)) subsidiary from a non-controlling interest
(note 1(i) - - (374) - - - - (374) - (526) (526) (900)
WEE—REHEAR Acqisition of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 7000 7,000 7000
B RAIER L Recognition of equity-settled share based
BARHBF payments - - - - 36581 17 - 4305 - - - 14305
BATRIA(H3E31() Issue of shares Note 31(z) 056 28137 - - - - - - - - W
Dividend paid - (184,640) - - - - - (184,640) - - - (184,640)
At31 December 2013
487,8% 1159472 202,078 484523 36,581 33,031 6,207,312 8,610,953 - 544,442 544,442 9,155,3%

ERFERZERAES Profit and total comprehensive income

for the year - - - - - - 1,861,149 1,861,149 35913 102,526 138439 1,999,588
BRTEE Appropriations to reserve - - - 251,45 - - (251,745) - - - - -
FERRRER A (M) Capital contributions from non-controlling
interests (Note 2) - - - - - - - - - 79,000 79,000 79,000
FEERESHEMBAT  Disposal of partial interests in subsidiaries
e (e 1(i) tonon-controlling
interests (Note 1(ii] - - 206 - - - - 206 - 76,616 16,616 16822
HENBLR Disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - (10428 (10425)  (10425)
AURFEREE Recognition of equity-settled
THBRRRHR share based payments - - - - 61574 443 - 66,011 - - - 66,011
BITKABRTE(HE0)  Issue of perpetual capital instruments
Note 30) - - - - - - - - 585,710 - 585,710 585,710
DEFKABRTEHEEA  Distribution to owners of perpetual
capital instruments - N E - - - - B (35.913) - (35.913) (35.913)
BfiRE Dividend paid N < )] - - - - - ) - - - )
jime St At31 December 2014
+=A=Zt+-8B 481,89 826,202 202,284 736,268 98,155 31,468 17816776 10,205,049 585,710 792,159 1377869 11582918
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

—UE+-A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2014

BEC
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(i) R-ZZE—=FRA=-+N\H " BE£E
DB R A R LAIR & E AR 900,000
mﬁ%#%%ﬁ%%iﬁhﬁﬁ%ﬁ@

NEI3%ARHE - BFRMREERUIE EEB
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@@?%ﬂﬁﬂ=am#ﬁ%
Mz FT L AR RE A = 58 A R#6374,0000
TR A o

(ii) R-ZZ—WFE—A+A  BBREERG
AR AR AR NKEARY 19,600,000
TRFERESHERMNBRBEERR
NAA9% AR - B U B ER & &M
BHEXERARDSREE BATER
R ZAARET5 950 T ERR A RHE

RZTE—NFEMA+HE  BEEE
BHBERARAMNEBESREBEBARYE
55,000,0007T [7] f3 & FE 12 i i 2= 9 51l i
ErBYREESRAR(I LB
mm%&W%k% B ERN L E
LB ESE ATE RN ESE
AE%@W%x%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ BEXR
SERTRHESHEZEZRE L8LE
A5%[HE - HIVRFBLEERESZESH
REBERERE  FAEEAUHERS
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R-ZZT—MmM&E+A=-+=H  BESE
BROBERARUNREEREARE
2,222,000 7T [A] FF 12 % # %5 H & Suzhou
Xumao Property Co., Ltd. 10% % #E o

RZT—NE—A=B ' FERERA—EEE
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(i) On 28 May 2013, CIFI Group Co., Ltd. (PRC) acquired 3% equity interest in
Shanghai Xupu Property Co., Ltd. from a non-controlling interest at a cash
consideration of RMB900,000. A difference between the consideration paid and
the equity interest of the non-controlling interest at the date of acquisition of
additional interest in Shanghai Xupu Property Co., Ltd. amounted to RMB374,000
was recognised in the reserve.

(i) On 7 January 2014, CIFI Group Co., Ltd. (PRC) disposed of 49% equity interest
in Suzhou Xubang Property Co., Ltd. to a non-controlling interest at a cash
consideration of RMB19,600,000. The difference between the consideration
received and the equity interest at the date of disposal of partial interest in
Suzhou Xubang Property Co., Ltd. amounted to RMB75,950 was recognised in
the reserve.

On 16 April 2014, CIFI Group Co., Ltd. (PRC) disposed of 40% and 15% equity
interest in Shanghai Fengxu Property Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Fengxu”) to two non-
controlling interests at an aggregate cash consideration of RMB55,000,000. The
difference between the consideration received and the equity interest at the date
of disposal of partial interest in Shanghai Fengxu amounted to RMB130,530 was
recognised in the reserve. Though the Group only retains 45% equity interest
in Shanghai Fengxu after the disposal, it continues to maintain the majority of
the voting rights in the board of directors of Shanghai Fengxu, which enables
the Group to approve relevant activities by simple majority. As such, Shanghai
Fengxu remains as a subsidiary of the Company.

On 23 October 2014, CIFI Group Co., Ltd. (PRC) disposed of 10% equity interest
of Suzhou Xumao Property Co., Ltd. to a non-controlling interest at a cash
consideration of RMB2,222,000.

On 2 January 2014, a non-controlling interest provided a capital contribution of
RMB13,000,000 to Hunan Ronghui Properties Development Co., Ltd., a non-wholly
owned subsidiary. On 18 June 2014, two non-controlling interests provided an aggregate
capital contribution of RMB66,000,000 to Shanghai Fengxu. No dilution of ownership
interest resulted from these capital contributions as capital monies were injected by the
Group and these non-controlling interests on a pro-rata basis.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of all subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China, those subsidiaries are required to transfer 5% to 10% of the
profit after taxation to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital. Transfer to this reserve must be made before distributing dividends
to equity holders. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for previous
years' losses, expand the existing operations or convert into additional capital of the
subsidiaries.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2014

—E-mFE —T—=F
2014 2013
AR¥TT AR®ETR
RMB'000 RMB'000
RETH OPERATING ACTIVITIES
FRAR A Profit before taxation 3,324,825 2,974,876
AT SBEELRHE Adjustments for;
BB Finance costs 386,228 188,465
RERBYE Allowance for doubtful debts m 1,793
Y WENMRETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14171 13,100
B REMEFEBEITETAR Fair value gain on trust and other loans
N E related derivatives (4,000) (3,000)
FEMERNFERIEN Increase in fair value of investment properties (241,166) (753,535)
HEEEhEKE Gain on disposal of a joint venture (80,243) -
HEMB A TR Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (62,412) -
HESTRATEFTABER Gain on disposal of certain investments at fair value through
K& Wz profit or loss = (100,000)
HEWE - BiFE kS EHKEFE Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net (837) (131)
BB EEE Share of results of joint ventures 118,708 14,117
FIBUA Interest income (53,949) (38,898)
AJEEERERBA Dividend income from available-for-sale investment (1,958) (1,405)
HERLANG AR 2 45 S0 AR D 5 3K Recognition of equity-settled share based payments 66,011 44,305
REIRE RSB (W) Unrealised exchange loss (gain) 20,084 (69,542)
LERSEHIIKEES R Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 3,486,173 2,270,145
BEEREEIL Increase in properties held for sale (1,539,006) (1,160,682)
RELENRZERYERD Decrease in properties under development for sale 3,650,830 1,500,505
JEUCR I N E M EREUE - Hma Rk Increase in accounts and other receivables, deposits and
B ERIEE HN prepayments (858,435) (1,975,602)
EEREYE TS REIRSEM Increase in deposits for land use rights for properties held for sale (284,158) (1,505,308)
JFEA BRI M FE AT B S 12 00 Increase in accounts payables and accrued charges 456,154 2,809,188
DUEEELRS (B )Em (Decrease] increase in deposits received from property sales (3,051,882) 1,866,127
KEMERE Cash generated from operations 1,859,676 3,804,373
2B AR PRC income tax paid (706,659) (816,614)
BEEDFERSFE NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1153017 2,987,759
BB (SE)ERAR | —T—NFEFR 101
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HE-Z-—MNFE+-_A=1+—BI%Z Forthe year ended 31 December 2014

—E-mF ZT-=F
2014 2013
Bz AR¥®Tr AR®TT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
RETE INVESTING ACTIVITIES
AeBhEN—FREE N T RT Advances to joint ventures and an associate (818,004) -
mIEIRAR RS (BB X (Advances to) repayments from non-controlling interests (40,000) 57,850
BECBRTIREME Purchase of completed investment properties (135,914) -
NEEEREME Additions to investment properties under construction (149,012) (46,140)
BEME  BENEE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (16,317) (16,915)
HEWME - BE MBS0 Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,951 62,539
Ui —FaMt B ARIRIRES AESE  Net cash inflow from acquisition of a subsidiary 33 = 35,388
& B EMIRITER Placement of pledged bank deposits (30,000) (110,871)
RMEERRITER Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 100,000 10,871
RRXRHHEE Withdrawal of restricted cash 21,768 -
HEEPEEAER Capital injection into joint ventures (3,882,155) (4.313,111)
BEUHEEREED Purchase of available-for-sale investment (10,000) (44,560)
EUHE Interest received 53,949 38,898
Bl HERERE Dividends received from available-for-sale investment 1,958 1,405
HE—FHBATNESRAEEE  Netcash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries 35 39,175 10,500
HESENENBERAFSH Net cash inflow from disposal of a joint venture 196,081 -
BERATHAEFT NESNERE Purchase of investments at fair value through
profit or loss - (173,600)
HERATERF ABRZN Proceeds from disposal of investments at fair value
REMBHIE through profit or loss - 273,600
BREZTETHABESEEE NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (4,666,520) (4,214,146)
BEEE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BatFER—fEEEQFMNER Advances from joint ventures and an associate 3,736,967 -
FTIBIRTT R EA AR New hank and other borrowings raised 7,634,148 8,113,435
BEPBTRHMER Repayment of bank and other borrowings (8,188,226) (6,824,745)
BT Issue of shares = 307,903
BITKABRTEMRBHRIEA Proceeds from issue of perpetual capital instruments 30 585,710 -
2RHME Interest paid (1,221,397) (1,065,230)
DIETFXABRIEREA Distribution to owners of perpetual capital instruments (35,913) -
MBI E=HER Repayment to an independent party - (100)
FEIE R R TR B R Advances from non-controlling interests 44,105 169,353
PR S U B — P B A FIAY  Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary
BEIMER from non-controlling interests - (900)
BEREE S k= VNG Proceeds from disposal of partial interest in subsidiaries
RS EIR to non-controlling interests 76,822 -
FEERERTE Capital contributions from non-controlling interests 79,000 7,000
BITBAREMEIIESE Net proceeds from issue of senior notes 1,174,463 3,174,326
BRRE Dividend paid (333,270) (184,640)
RETHFERETHE NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 3,546,409 3,696,402
RERAESENEMFR NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2906 2470015
FNRERBLEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR 1,060,748 4,590,733
ERESRBLEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF
THE YEAR 1,093,654 7,060,748
REeRBESENEHR DT ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
RITHB RS Bank balances and cash 7,093,654 7,060,748
102 CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T—NF+=-A=+—HBLFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

1. —RER
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1. GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 46.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), which is the functional currency of the Company.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has applied for the first time in the current year the
following new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") and International Accounting Standards (“IAS") issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board.

Amendments to IFRS 10, Investment Entities
IFRS 12 and IAS 27

Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-financial Assets

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation

of Hedge Accounting

Amendments to IAS 39

IFRIC 21 Levies

Except for as described below, the application of the above new or
revised IFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 Investment Entities

The Group has applied the amendments to IFRS10, IFRS 12 and
IAS27 Investment Entities for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to IFRS 10 define an investment entity and require a
reporting entity that meets the definition of an investment entity not
to consolidate its subsidiaries but instead to measure its subsidiaries
at fair value through profit or loss in its consolidated and separate
financial statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is required to:

obtain funds from one or more investors for the purpose of
providing them with investment management services;

° commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to invest
funds solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment
income, or both; and

° measure and evaluate performance of substantially all of its
investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to IFRS 12 and IAS 27
to introduce new disclosure requirements for investments entities.

As the Company is not an investment entity (assessed based on the
criteria set out in IFRS 10 as at 1 January 2014), the application of the
amendments has had no impacts on the disclosures or the amounts
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 Investment Entities

(Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised IFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 27

Amendments to IAS 16 and

IAS 38

Amendments to IAS 16 and

IAS 41

Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to IFRS 11

Amendments to IFRS 10 and

IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 10,

IFRS 12 and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRSs

Disclosure Initiative!

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements’

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants’

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions?

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture!

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception’

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-
2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-
2013 Cycle?
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 Investment Entities

(Continued)

Amendments to IFRSs

IFRS 9

IFRS 14

IFRS 15

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-
2014 Cycle!

Financial Instruments*

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue from Contracts with
Customerss

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited exceptions

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

5 Effective for first annual IFRS financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with Customer”

IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including IAS 18 “Revenue”, IAS 11
“Construction Contracts” and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective. The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for goods and
services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with customer
° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

° Step b: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added
in IFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by IFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipates that the application of
IFRS 15 in the future may affect the amounts reported and related
disclosures. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of IFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed
review.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations

The amendments to IFRS 11 provide guidance on how to account
for the acquisition of a joint operation that constitutes a business
as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations. Specifically, the
amendments state that the relevant principles on accounting for
business combinations in IFRS 3 and other standards (e.g. IAS
36 Impairment of Assets regarding impairment testing of a cash
generating unit to which goodwill on acquisition of a joint operation
has been allocated) should be applied. The same requirements should
be applied to the formation of a joint operation if and only if an existing
business is contributed to the joint operation by one of the parties that
participate in the joint operation.

A joint operator is also required to disclose the relevant information
required by IFRS 3 and other standards for business combinations.

The amendments to IFRS 11 apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The directors of the Company
do not anticipate that the application of these amendments to IFRS
11 will have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvement to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle include a number
of amendments to various IFRSs, which are summarised below.

The amendments to IFRS b5 introduce special guidance in IFRS 5 for
when an entity reclassifies an asset (or disposal group) from held for
sale to held for distribution to owners (or vice versa), or when held-
for-distribution accounting is discontinued. The amendments apply
prospectively.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle (Continued)

The amendments to IFRS 7 provide additional guidance to clarify
whether a servicing contract is continuing involvement in a transferred
asset for the purpose of the disclosures required in relation to
transferred assets and clarify that the offsetting disclosures (introduced
in the amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosure-Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities issued in December 2011 and effective
for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013) are not explicitly
required for all interim periods. However, the disclosures may need to
be included in condensed interim financial statements to comply with
IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.

The amendments to IAS 19 clarify that the high quality corporate
bonds used to estimate the discount rate for post-employment
benefits should be issued in the same currency as the benefits to be
paid. These amendments would result in the depth of the market for
high quality corporate bonds being assessed at currency level. The
amendments apply from the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented in the financial statements in which the amendments
are first applied. Any initial adjustment arising should be recognised in
earnings at the beginning of that period.

The amendments to IAS 34 clarify the requirements relating to
information required by IAS 34 that is presented elsewhere within the
interim financial report but outside the interim financial statements.
The amendments require that such information be incorporated by
way of a cross-reference from the interim financial statements to the
other part of the interim financial report that is available to users on the
same terms and at the same time as the interim financial statements.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
these will have a material effect on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

Except for the above impact, the directors of the Company do not

anticipate that the application of other new and revised IFRSs will have
significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for the investment properties and
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value, and
in accordance with accounting policies set out below which are
in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of IAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights
in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size
and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or
other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the

relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of the other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS
39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a joint venture.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement
of financial position at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Investments in joint ventures and an associate

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those polices.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in joint ventures and an associate (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures and an associate
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an
investment in a joint venture or an associate is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the joint venture and associate. When
the Group's share of losses of a joint venture or an associate exceeds
the Group’s interest in that joint venture and associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint venture and associate.

An investment in a joint venture and an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
a joint venture and an associate. On acquisition of the investment
in a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’'s investment in a joint venture and an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with |AS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in joint ventures and an associate (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date
when the investment ceases to be a joint venture. When the Group
retains an interest in the former joint venture and the retained interest
is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at fair
value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition in accordance with IAS 39. The difference between
the carrying amount of the joint venture at the date the equity method
was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the joint
venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that joint
venture on the same basis as would be required if that joint venture
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or
loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture or an associate of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
joint venture and associate are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the joint venture
and associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,
rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from sales of properties in the ordinary course of business is
recognised when all of the following criteria are satisfied:

° the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the properties
are transferred to buyers;

° neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree

usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the
properties are retained;
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction
can be measured reliably.

Deposits received from purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria
for revenue recognition are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under current liabilities.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Property management service income is recognised over the period in
which the services are rendered.

Other property related service income is recognised when the services
are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income from a
financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group's
rights to receive payment have been established (provided that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation (including properties under construction
for such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair values. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties under construction as described
below) are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Prepaid lease payments

The prepaid lease payments represent upfront payments for land
use rights and are initially recognised at cost and released to profit
or loss over the lease term on a straight-line basis, except for those
that are classified and accounted for as properties under development
intended to be held for sale.

Properties under development for sale

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course of
development for sale, the leasehold land component is amortised
over a straight-line basis over the lease term. During the construction
period, the amortisation charge provided for the leasehold land is
included as part of the costs of the properties under development.

Properties under development for sale which are intended to be held
for own use or their investment potential are shown as non-current
assets.

Properties under development for sale which are intended to be held
for sale are shown as current assets and carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost includes the costs of land, development
expenditure incurred and, where appropriate, borrowing costs
capitalised. Net realisable value is determined based on prevailing
market conditions.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount (the higher of value
in use and fair value less costs to sell) of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. In the
event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases,
such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases, in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is released over the lease term on
a straight-line basis except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance
lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowings costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented
in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (its functional currency, i.e., RMB).

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,

and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred taxation.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred taxation is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred taxation liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred taxation assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred taxation liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred taxation assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred taxation assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred taxation assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred taxation liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred taxation are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred
taxation is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation liabilities and deferred
taxation assets for investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged
as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions. Payments made to state-managed retirement
benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contribution
plans where the Group's obligations under the schemes are equivalent
to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options/share awards to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of shares options or share granted at the grant date is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in reserve.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of shares that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest (rate,

except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest
would be immaterial).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held for trading on
initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Loans
and receivables (including accounts and other receivables, amounts
due from non-controlling interests, amounts due from joint ventures
and an associate, pledged bank deposits, restricted cash and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or not classified as financial assets at
FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period subsequent to
initial recognition (see accounting policy on impairment of financial
assets below).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
accounts and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When an account or other
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed through profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative,
their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Perpetual capital instruments with no contracted obligation to repay its
principal or to pay any distribution are classified as part of equity.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s
own equity instruments.

Senior notes

Senior notes issued by the Company that contain both liability and
early redemption option (which is not closely related to the host
contract) are classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition. At the date of issue, both the liability and early redemption
option components are recognised at fair value.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the senior notes
is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
early redemption option is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the senior notes are
allocated to the liability and early redemption option components in
proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to
the early redemption option are charged to profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included in the
carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over the period
of the senior notes using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Senior notes (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Group (including accounts and other payable,
amounts due to non-controlling interests, amounts due to joint
ventures and an associate, bank and other borrowings and senior
notes) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective
interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the group entities are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

() the amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined
in accordance with IAS 37 “Provision, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets”; and

(i)  the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,

cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
revenue recognition policies.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Senior notes (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation liabilities or deferred
taxation assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the Group's
investment properties are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time. Therefore, in
determining the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties,
the directors have determined that the presumption set out in IAS 12
“Income Taxes"” that investment properties measured using the fair
value model are recovered through sale is rebutted.

Construction costs estimation for revenue recognition

Certain projects of the Group are divided into several phases according
to the development and delivery plans. The Group recognises sales
upon delivery of properties. Cost of sales including construction costs
specific to the phases and common costs allocable to the phases
are calculated based on management’s best estimation of the total
development costs for the whole project and the allocation to each
phase at the time when the properties are delivered.

Investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair values based on the valuations
performed by independent professional valuers. In determining
the fair values, the valuers have based on a method of valuation
which involves certain estimates of market condition. In relying on
the valuation report, the directors of the Company have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the assumptions used in the
valuation are reflective of the current market conditions. Changes to
these assumptions would result in changes in the fair values of the
Group’s investment properties and the corresponding adjustments to
the amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Income tax expense

Deferred taxation assets of approximately RMB213,551,000 (2013:
RMB147,186,000) mainly in relation to tax losses and land appreciation
tax that have been recognised at 31 December 2014 as set out in note
32. The realisability of the deferred taxation assets mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will
be available in the future. The directors of the Company determine the
deferred taxation assets based on the enacted or substantially enacted
tax rates and the best knowledge of profit projections of the Group
for coming years during which the tax losses or/and the deductible
temporary differences are expected to be utilised. The directors of the
Company will review the assumptions and profit projections by the
end of the reporting period. In cases where the actual future profits
generated are less than expected, a reversal of deferred taxation assets
may arise, which would be recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the period in
which such a reversal takes place.

Land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the PRC. However, the
implementation of the tax varies amongst different tax jurisdictions
in various cities of the PRC and certain projects of the Group have
not finalised their land appreciation tax calculations with any local tax
authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of land appreciation and its related income
tax provisions. The Group recognised the land appreciation tax based
on management'’s best estimates. The final tax outcome could be
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the income tax expense and the related
income tax provisions in the periods in which such tax is finalised with
local tax authorities.
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Valuation of trust and other loans related derivatives

As described in note 28, assumptions are made based on market
data such as volatility, credit spread, risk free rate, property selling
prices of the project and the property development plan estimated
by management for the valuation of trust and other loans related
derivatives.

Where the actual future market data or property development plan
varies, a material adjustment on the fair values of trust and other loans
related derivatives may arise. When estimating the fair value of the
derivative with reference to the valuation report, management has
exercised its judgment and is satisfied that the assumption adopted
for the valuation is reflective of the current market conditions and its
best estimation on the property development plan.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. The directors of the Company are
responsible in determining the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level
1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation. The directors of the Company work
closely with the independent qualified professional valuers to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The
directors regularly assess the impact and the cause of fluctuations in
the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not
based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of certain
types of investment properties and financial instruments. Notes 14
and 44 provide detailed information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the determination of the fair value
of various assets and liabilities.
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5. REVENUE

Revenue represents income from sales of properties, rental income
and income from provision of property management and property
related services earned during the year, net of discounts allowed, and is
analysed as follows:

—E-NFE —T—=F

2014 2013

AR¥BTT AR%ETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

HEWE Sales of properties 15,653,684 11,579,157
WA Rental income 41,688 47,732
VB IR A R BB ARFS YA Property management and property related services income 483,962 282,273
16,179,334 11,909,162
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on internal
reports about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by
the chief operating decision maker (being the board of directors of the
Company) in order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess
its performance.

Information reported to the Group's chief operating decision maker for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of performance is
focused on three main operations:

° Property development: this segment represents the development
and sales of office and commercial premises and residential
properties. All the Group’s activities in this regard are carried out
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

° Property investment: this segment represents the lease of
investment properties, which are developed or purchased
by the Group to generate rental income and to gain from the
appreciation in the properties’ values in the long term. Currently
the Group’s investment property portfolio is located entirely in
the PRC.

o Property management and property related services: this
segment mainly represents the income generated from property
management and provision of property related services. Currently
the Group’s activities in this regard are carried out in the PRC.

The chief operating decision maker regularly reviews the operating
results by property development projects. As property development
projects are all located in the PRC, their revenue is primarily derived
from the sales of properties, and is related and subject to common risk
and returns. All property development projects are aggregated into a
single reportable segment, property development, in accordance with
IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Segment revenue and profit

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided

to the Group’s chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance for the

year is set out below.

NEEER
EHERE EHERE YWERBRE &t
Property
management
and property
Property Property related
development investment services Total
AEETRE  AR¥TR AR%®TR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BE-Z-ME+-A=1-ALLEE  Yearended 31 December 2014
RENFEEMA 2RI WA Reportable segment revenue from external customers 15,653,684 11,688 483,962 16,179,334
2R HHE Reportable segment profit 3,656,574 32,200 178,608 3,867,382
NEEER
FHERE  BHERE NEAERE @zt
Property
management
and property
Property Property related
development investment Services Total
ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  AR%T:
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
HE-T-=HT-A=T—BIEFE Yearended3! December 2013
RENPEPHTZHRA A Reportable segment revenue from external customers 11,579,157 4773 82,073 11,909,162
BEE: Vil Reportable segment profit 2,623,354 44,628 91867 2759849

(b) ZHEERERE
HREBELERRENAEAEE D
ERRLEFABENREE  Fptt &
ZIDHEENAIRE °

B (RE)BRAR | T HFEFH

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

No assets and liabilities are included in the measures of the Group’s
segment reporting that are used by the chief operating decision

maker. Accordingly, no segment assets and liabilities are presented.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue and profit

The reportable segment profit represents the results by each segment
without including any effect of allocation of other income earned
from operations other than the Group’s main operations, unallocated
head office and corporate expenses, depreciation of property, plant
and equipment, allowance for doubtful debts, change in fair value of
investment properties, change in fair value of trust and other loans
related derivatives, finance costs and share of results of joint ventures.
This is the measurement basis reported to the chief operating decision

maker for the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment.
—E-NF —T—=F
2014 2013
ARBTRT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
WA Revenue
A 2RDERERE WA Reportable segment and consolidated revenue 16,179,334 11,909,162
58 Profit
EEx S Reportable segment profit 3,867,382 2,759,849
HAYA Other income 246,604 174,695
SRR EMEFAERITAETR Change in fair value of trust and other loans related
N EEE derivatives 4,000 3,000
REMELNFEE Change in fair value of investment properties 241,166 753,535
BE R AN Finance costs (386,228) (188,465)
JEMRE B EELE Share of results of joint ventures (118,708) (14,117
WE - BENREREITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (14171) (13,100)
RAREE Allowance for doubtful debts (111) (1,793)
AEEIS R ERS Unallocated head office and corporate expenses (514,509) (498,728)
BB IR S FE Consolidated profit before taxation 3,324,825 2,974,876

(d) HEEHR

R AEBE KL R NP EET

M EZ SR EFR -

(e) FEERF
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AMNMEREBUWAT10%IA L o
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(d) Geographic information

operating activities are carried out in the PRC.

(e) Major customers

amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.

No geographic information has been presented as the Group's

No revenue from transactions with a single external customer
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7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

—E-mE —T-=F
2014 2013
AREBTT ARETET
RMB’000 RMB'000
A HERERIRE WA Dividend income from available-for-sale investment 1,958 1,405
ISR ON Interest income 53,949 38,898
ﬁ’%?ﬁ’z}ﬁ@?)@@ $H) Gain on disposal of certain investments at fair value through

& TR E ) e (i aE) profit or loss (note) - 100,000
HEME  HERERENWRFE Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net 837 131
HE AL EMIE(ME18)  Gainon disposal of a joint venture (note 18) 80,243 -
HERTE A 7 Ay das (i EE35) Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 35) 62,412 -
BRATAE L Government grants 39,058 23,442
B ERZ MRS Forfeited deposits paid by purchasers 2,742 1,422
HIEA Sundry income 5,405 9,397
246,604 174,695

fizx: REBE-ZT—=F+-_A=+—HILFE A%  Note: During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group acquired certain investments at

E LA R #173,600,000 T8 A S TR AFERT
NEBZHIZE - £ UK EARY273,600,000

fair value through profit or loss at RMB173,600,000 and subsequently disposed of at
consideration RMB273,600,000. A gain on disposal of RMB100,000,000 was therefore

TTHE - Bt - & kEs AR 100,000,0007T recognised.
ET#®E -
8. REMRA 8. FINANCE COSTS
—E-mFE —T-=F
2014 2013
ARBTRT ARETRET
RMB’000 RMB'000
ERRFRBEEEENRITR Interest on bank and other borrowings and amounts due to
HAth & 3N FE S FEFE I 25 FOE R non-controlling interests wholly repayable within
2 five years (715,124) (824,451)
BARAFRBBEENRITR Interest on bank and other borrowings not wholly repayable
EERFE within five years (48,887) (52,068)
BEEENFEHX Interest expense on senior notes (503,932) (221,828)
HEEEOTHAE T AMEEHER Interest expense on settlement of trust and other loans
HERH M with derivatives nature (167,638) -
B BHELRENFERMER Less: Amount capitalised to properties under development for
TRIEEMENENM 258 sale and investment properties under construction 1,049,353 909,882
(386,228) (188,465)
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9. FEFRAX

8. FINANCE COSTS (Continued)

Borrowing costs capitalised to properties under development for sale
and investment properties under construction were determined by the
contracted interest rates of respective bank and other borrowings and
senior notes as disclosed in notes 27 and 29 respectively.

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

—E-NE —T—=F
2014 2013
AREBTT ARETET
RMB’000 RMB'000

RBIEEFTISH PRC Enterprise Income Tax:
BNERFR1S Y Current income tax (860,973) (447,639)
B FERERE Overprovision in respect of prior years 462 5,183
(860,511) (442,456)
T IEER ([ b IBER ) Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") (472,916) (320,736)
(1,333,427) (763,192)
BRI TA (MI7E32) Deferred taxation (note 32) 8,190 (170,551
(1,325,237) (933,743

BREB-ZZNF—A—BREXHFP
EAREMBELEMBRERERK
Bl RAGIREBARKEEHE S
25% - WERMBEEZERILER-_TZ
NF—R—BRIZBEBLEMEHE
15%METHEMBARNREE_ZZ
NFE ZFT—ZFFRZFT——F+=A
=+ —HIEFEREBABTEPREL R
SER D RIIR20% ~ 22% K 24% T o &
BB AR —E——F— A — &/
K E25% °

KEZEARBEESRIE  ETHEM
BRARAMES BRIEERBIMA AR E
TEREE25% AT - M FERBUAIRIR IR
BEAPBRBBEEROREAB T ENT
W AHBI8% E10% °
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Under the Law of Enterprise Income Tax and Implementation Rules
of the People’s Republic of China effective from 1 January 2008, the
statutory tax rate of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries is 25% except
for certain PRC subsidiaries, which were previously approved by
competent authorities to enjoy the preferential Enterprise Income Tax
rate of 15% before 1 January 2008, were taxed at 20%, 22%, 24%
for the year ended 31 December 2009, 2010 and 2011, respectively,
pursuant to relevant grandfathering rules and regulations. The tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 256% from 1 January 2012 onwards.

As approved by various competent tax bureaus, certain PRC
subsidiaries are subject to statutory tax rate of 25% on their respective
deemed taxable income, ranging from 8% to 10% of revenue in
accordance with the prescribed tax calculation method pursuant to the
applicable PRC tax regulations.
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the requirements set
forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has been
provided at ranges of progressive rates of the appreciation value, with
certain allowable exemptions and deductions.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI") and the Cayman Islands, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the BVI and the Cayman Islands.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the income
of the companies comprising the Group neither arises in, nor is
derived from, Hong Kong.

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 32.
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

taxation per consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

—F-mFE —T-=F
2014 2013
ARBTT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
BR 754 B A Profit before taxation 3,324,825 2,974,876
TR25% &0 A Hy B Iu—_%ﬁﬁ S5 PRC Enterprise Income Tax at 25% (831,206) (743,719
AR A IS & Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes (79,661) (22,759
BERTWANTH BT E Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes 7,703 2,343
SIS ER LAT (472,916) (320,736)
THIRERNORETE Tax effect of LAT 118,229 80,184
BEFEEERE Overprovision in respect of prior years 462 5,183
RERBRIBERBOREZE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised (71,276) (6,373)
R SR AR IEE R Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised 3,225 38,133
AR R =S & Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not recognised (8,540) (15,056)
B S ARG ] R e A =58 Utilisation of deductible temporary differences previously not
recognised 18,610 21,662
ATHEIMERRRAETE Effect of adopting prescribed tax calculation method by
SRTENEE certain PRC subsidiaries 18,547 24,076
JELE S D EEENTI BT E Tax effect of share of result of joint ventures (29,677) (3,529)
HAth Others 1,263 6,848
FEERIEE R Tax charge for the year (1,325,237) (933,743)
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Notes:

1. Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes mainly represent fair value gain on
trust and other loans related derivatives.

2. Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not recognised represent adjustments of
deductible temporary differences arising from inter-company transactions in relation to
construction of properties.

PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

—E-—NFE —T—=F
2014 2013
AR%STn ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

FRMNEREEBALEETS
RBIBR (FTA) TR -

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

ZHEMEE Auditors’ remuneration 4,716 4,592
SASHE MRS A D EMER A Cost of properties sold included in cost of sales and services 11,678,446 7,991,166
M - WERRERTE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1417 13,100
HEME  HERERENWRFE Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net (837) (131)
REREE Allowance for doubtful debts 7 1,793
P W B RF AR Net exchange loss 19,790 12,592
T MEFHEEHERS Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings 40,822 38,730
BT Staff costs
E 2 (FIEE11) Directors’ emoluments (note 11) 9,963 8,850
Hih 8 TR Other staff costs
BTN (TNEIEERREFA) Staff costs excluding retirement benefit costs 368,599 344,487
RIRBFIRRAR Retirement benefit costs 32,495 22,469
DARS AN #8825 45 & 0 AR AR (~F 30 Equity-settled share-based payment 64,392 43,575
Hih 8 TR A4REE Total other staff costs 465,486 410,531
o AERYMENENMEE Less: Amount capitalised to properties under development
for sale (148,995) (134,292)
316,491 276,239
KEWMEESKA Rental income from investment properties (41,688) (47,732)
B AEERX Less: Related outgoings 9,488 3,104
(32,200) (44,628)
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11. EEREEEHN

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

—E-mE ZE—=F
2014 2013
ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEEE Directors’ emoluments
EE ¥k Directors’ fees 633 633
B IEITEENURA R EE Equity-settled share-based payment for independent
I AREAR (3R non-executive directors 907 561
HITEEMEM N Other emoluments for executive directors
—EARF 4 K2R — basic salaries and allowances 6,526 7,226
— DA A 2R A5 B AT LA A0 15 30 — equity-settled share-based payment 712 169
—1E4T — bonus 908 -
— RIREH R — retirement benefit contributions 2717 261
9,963 8,850
LA A RE
EXFER  £EI1 BNEH
EENRS EEE ROAR A R st
Basic Equity-settled Retirement
Directors’ salaries and share-based henefit
fees allowances payment Bonus contributions Total
ARETT ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARETRT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BHE-E-NF Year ended 31 December
+ZA=t—-HLEEE 2014
HITESHS Name of executive director
M E Mr. LIN Zhong — 1,838 — - 87 1,925
WEEE Mr. LIN Wei - 1,740 - — 88 1,828
NS Mr. LIN Feng - 2,948 n2 908 102 4,670
BUFHTESHE Name of independent
non-executive director
BEELE Mr. GU Yunchang 198 - 302 - - 500
FOKEEAE Mr. ZHANG Yongyue 198 - 302 - - 500
BRIERK SE A Mr. TAN Wee Seng 31 - 303 - - 540
633 6,526 1,619 908 271 9,963
BEER(EE)BRART | —T—NEER 141
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11. EEREEFMN 11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
DA 2R

EXGek HEUMN RIKTEA
by 2B RO TEAL iR st

Basic  Equity-settled Retirement

Directors"  salariesand  share-based benefit
fees  allowances payment Bonus  contributions Total

ARETE ARBTT ARBTL ARBTT ARBTT ARKTRT
RMBOOO  RVMB000  RVBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMB'000

HE-Z—=F Year ended 31 December 2013
TZRA=T—HIEE

HITESHR Name of executive director

LA Mr. LIN Zhong - 1,824 - - 85 1,909

WELSE Mr. LIN Wei - 1725 - - 91 1816

g% Mr. LIN Feng - 3,677 169 - 85 3,931

BUFHTESSSR Name of independent

non-executive director

BEELE Mr. GU Yunchang 198 - 187 - - 385

RAKELE Mr. ZHANG Yongyue 198 - 187 - - 385

BRIERK SE A Mr. TAN Wee Seng 237 - 187 - - 424
633 7226 730 - 261 8,850

MG RARRBITAEE - M EXPT  Mr. LIN Feng is the Chief Executive of the Company and his
FREFGTMRIEELEEITERAIEMEM ©  emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by
him as the Chief Executive.
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11. EEREEFM e

TEREHFMAL
BE_Z-—NEF+_A=+—RHI*F
B hEZmeFMALTEE —REE(Z
T —REF) BHE_TMOF
T A=t HLFENEKTUERES
FMAL(ZZ—=F : HBAMEHESH
AL T

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)
Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals included 1 director for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: 1 director). The emoluments of the
remaining 4 highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 December
2014 (2013: remaining 4 highest paid individuals) are as follows:

—E-mFE —T—=F
2014 2013

AR Tt AR¥TTT
RMB'000 RMB'000

(== Employees

— B &2 — basic salaries and allowances 7,934 6,449

— B4 — bonus 3,272 2,234

— DAME AR RE 25 45 B 0 LARR D ST X — equity-settled share-based payments 251 1,116

— BRI R0 — retirement benefit contributions 2,358 157
13,815 9,956

BRENFHBIA TEE

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

AE N

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

—F-mFE —T-=F

2014 2013

2,500,001/ 723,000,000 70 HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 - 2
3,000,001/ 7T 23,500,000 7T HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 - 1
3,500,001 7T 2 4,000,0007% 7T HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 2 1
4,000,001/ 7T 24,500,000 70 HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 1 -
6,000,001 7T 26,500,000 7T HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 1 -

AEENEAOARBEEHALRH
A X EMFBERMBEASE
SN AN SR B ) SR B Sk BB AR (R - F
A - REARBEFEREEMFM -

fBiEERR (KRB BRAR | —ZT—NFEFR

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None
of the directors of the Company has waived any emoluments during
the year.
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12. KR 12. DIVIDEND
—2-mE —F-=f%
2014 2013
AR¥TR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000
EHRARERE - BT ERE Proposed final dividend — HK 11 cents
(ZZ—=4%F : 7Bl (2013: HK7 cents) per ordinary share 524,572 333,270
BEEeRED KRB _-_ZT—MFEXRBM  The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend for 2014

BAEBERNBIL(ZZE—=F : 781)
(IEZARERE ) - EFERIBREH
BeIff HREAEEEUES AN
8 LA BE 5 sk 2 P URER AN A B 2 5 45 R A%
DR AR S A AU RHARL S, ©

TEMFEEEBEAYREAREART
BRIV EERRBFASHLE

13. BREF
HE_Z-—NFE+-_A=+—HIL*F
ERNEBREAREERFNIEARRD
ARRESELHFERAFNBOARKE
1,861,149,000 (= ZE—=%F : AR¥
1,894,231,00070) KB E =T —OF+=
A=+ BHLFENBBITLERIMNE
Y15 %16,026,579, oooﬂx(_:f—:i :
5,818,504,0000% )5+ &

HE_ZT—NF+-A=+—HILF
B ARKERABTEENR_ZT—HFH
MARITEBHBEARARARRRMDAFEM
B NG ESREERNE - BRERN
—E——F+ANBE ngﬁﬂx%uﬁriﬂ
RZE—=F-_A=Z+ R "BEZZE
FTAZTABREOBREL TE
R °

HRAEBERBE_T-—HOFE_-F
— =+ A=t+—RILFETEDH
TTEBEEEBE R SRR HZMIES
EE2RNBRERRNSEELAR -
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of HK11 cents (2013: HK 7 cents) per share (the “Proposed Final
Dividend”). The Proposed Final Dividend will be payable in cash but
shareholders will have an option to receiving the Proposed Final
Dividend in cash or in form of new fully paid shares of the Company in
respect of part or all of such final dividend.

The Proposed Final Dividend for the year 2014 is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share for the
year ended 31 December 2014 is based on the profit for the year
attributable to equity owners of the Company of approximately
RMB1,861,149,000 (2013: RMB1,894,231,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31
December 2014 of 6,026,579,000 (2013: 5,818,504,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the share options granted
on 26 February 2013 and 29 October 2013 under the share option
scheme adopted on 9 October 2012 are not included in the calculation
of diluted earnings per share as the adjusted exercise price was
greater than the average market price of the Company's shares during
the outstanding period in 2014.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share amount
presented for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 as the
Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during both
years.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2014



14. BEYEE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

ERRENE BRI
Investment REME
properties Completed

under investment ot
construction properties Total

ARETT ARETT ARETI
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R-ZE—=%—H—H At 1 January 2013 974,000 2,981,800 3,955,800
T Additions 68,565 - 68,565
HE Disposal (127,500) - (127,500)
NEER [ncrease in fair value 442,935 310,600 753,535
R-Z—=F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2013 1,358,000 3,292,400 4,650,400
AE Additions 178,720 135,914 314,634
NEEEM Increase in fair value 16,280 224,886 241,166
R-E-WE+=-HF=+—H At 31 December 2014 1,553,000 3,653,200 5,206,200

RBE_T—=F+t-_A=1t—HLF
BA - AEEEBHBAR LEBREE
EARAR(I LEEE] HEE—AR

ERTHREVEREZREDEHURN
TE BTHEE - FEAKEREE
A E R Y R A RBUR A SRR
RIBEDIRAFEEAGFE -

ARER-F-NFT-_A=1+—H#K
AR #4,931,000,0007T( =2 —=% :
AR#4,570,000,00070) B E W - LA
ERAKERIRITREME

fBiEERR (KRB BRAR | —ZT—NFEFR

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group disposed of one
of its investment properties through disposal of a subsidiary, Shanghai
Xujia Property Co., Ltd (“Shanghai Xujia”).

The completed investment properties and investment properties
under construction are all situated in the PRC under medium-term
leases. All the Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation are measured using the fair
value model.

The Group had pledged investment properties of RMB4,931,000,000

(2013: RMB4,570,000,000) as at 31 December 2014 to secure bank
and other borrowings of the Group.
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14. BEYZE )
AEEERIREMERERKLEY
¥R NFRER-FT—=F+=A
=t HRNRAFEIEREREFYT E
BENBYAEREXMAEMTE K
FTEAEHHEREXEMERAANZ
CHHRETHBEEMSSL - E—XFH
HEEENSEEBEMARANEEAE
B BB R ARt B A KB
EFEEEREER

ERTREMENGEIRBERLLR
EAX2REBCRIREMENTS L
ZAILL BT I5R 5 ME B IRAELM
BSHSWAFBRENMEN T AR - I
BEEEBSMEZICRIREMEES
WAREREN

ERREMENGEDRAEZLBOR
WRBHH LA EZE 2 AT LR
7 REE(ERDRIVE 2GR
BR 5 )W IR EDFEHRIBERFNFRET
REBNRRTORE - 51 RTKFREMR
FRANEZEXRAMEL  MRRERT
FEREMNERREREGR

EFEERAGETALEZE) o REE
WMENORTFER  WENREKER
EREERRAE o

RZE—WFEE_ZTE—=F+=H
—t—HMAEEEEMER A FER
RIBEEEFEFIT

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair values of the Group’s completed investment properties and
investment properties under construction at 31 December 2014 and
2013 have been arrived at on the basis of valuations on those dates
carried out by Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited, a
firm of independent qualified professional valuers not connected with
the Group, who have appropriate qualifications and recent experiences
in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

The valuations of completed investment properties were arrived at
with adoption of the direct comparison approach by making reference
to comparable market transactions as available in the relevant markets
on completed investment properties and, by capitalising the net
rental income derived from the existing tenancies with due allowance
for reversionary income potential of the respective properties on
completed investment properties.

The valuations of investment properties under construction were
arrived at with adoption of the direct comparison approach by making
reference to comparable transactions for bare land as available in the
relevant markets and, residual approach, which is based on market
observable transactions of completed properties with the basis that
they will be developed and completed in accordance with the latest
development proposals and taken into account the construction costs
that will be expended to complete the development to reflect the
quality of the completed development and developer’s profit.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in prior
year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

Details of the Group's investment properties and information about
the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 are as
follows:

RZE-ME RZT-=F

tZA=+-B +zZA=1-H

WATE MATE

Fair value as at Fair value as at

E=R 31 December 31 December

Level 3 2014 2013

ARBTT ARETT ARETT

RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R BN ENE Investment properties located in PRC 5,206,200 5,206,200 4,650,400

FRALEEARZ=RIEEREL -
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There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.
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14. BEWE

JHHW

TREHR EF’%DH#EEX&E%%%
NHE R R FTE ARG ETEREA

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of the major investment properties are determined (in particular,

i) - NAFEFSFEIDHAFESR  the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value
AKFE(E—REF=RINER - hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements is observable.
IS SRR
RARAREE
PR B BEBR
Investment o A SR B
properties held NFERRE
by the Group HERER BEELER Relationship of
in the consolidated NHERA  EEHASE A B unobservable
statement of Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant inputs to
financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) fair value
Completed investment  Level 3 Income method (term and Term yield, taking into account There is no indication
property — Jiaxing =4 reversionary approach) of yield generated from that any slight
CIFI Square WASE(FREREERR) comparable properties and change in the term
EEI&%%% — adjustment to reflect the yield would result
= EBERES The key inputs are: certainty of term income in significant higher

(1) Term yield;

(2) Reversionary yield; and

(3) Market unit rent of
individual unit

FEHABER

(1) T EAU Z 2

2 EREW AR

(3 ERI BB T
EXvickn

secured and to be received of
4% (2013: 3.5% t0 4%).

KET AR BRI EE SR
Woas B B BR AT HEAR K i
EXAE BRI A B W E 1 O 3
B HERERERA%(Z

E—=%F :35%%F4%) °

Reversionary yield, taking into
account annual unit market
rental income and unit market
value of the comparable
properties of 4.5% (2013: 4.5%
10 5.2%).

KET B mISFEEE K
ARAIE LR R B AL
e - EHERRERI5%
(:; —=F 1 45%%F
5.2%) °

or lower fair value
measurement.
W RKAE
o] FH BRI a2 B
ERCIESr b
EBHRERSK
BRIRH A FEE

=
E °

A slight increase in the
reversionary yield
would resultina
significant decrease
in fair value and vice

versa.

Bl RN
ﬂmﬂ#%@( $
BEXERD -

Z IR °

TR (RE)ER AR | —F

—PFF R
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14. REY = =) 14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

NG

RREZAAREE

PR E M BEER
Investment o A SRR
properties held NEENRF
by the Group HEFER BEFER Relationship of
in the consolidated AHERA FERAZE LN 674 unobservable
statement of Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant inputs to
financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) fair value

Market unit rent, using direct Aslight increase in

market comparables and
taking into account of location
and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size of
property and facilities range
from around RMB102 sq.m./
month to RMB567 sg.m./month
(2013: RMB136 sg.m./month to
RMB416 sq.m./month).

EREETSLE ALK

FTAGLE KRB - 7
RN HEEE M IR
= FiSmBELHES
NFEFEFREGAARKE
102t 2FFHAREAAN
R¥567L(—T—=4F:
ARE136tE AREE416
JT) °

the market unit

rent would result in
significant increase
in fair value and vice

versa.

5% B A S B
RSB AT
BEXRIEEM - &
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

NG
RREZAAREE
PR &
Investment
properties held

by the Group

in the consolidated NEERA
Fair value
hierarchy

statement of
financial position

mERER
FTEHARE
Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)

EMEER
BWABUR
Significant
unobservable input(s)

Ei97N E

o A\ BUR ER
NHERBR
Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to

fair value

Investment property Level 3
under construction — 25 = 4
Shanghai CIFI Yangpu
Commercial Centre

ERREME —

L8 JBIE ¢ 1508
HEES

Residual approach

FRMEDE

The key inputs are:
Market unit sales rate
(RMB/sq.m.)

SZETBRABER

miGEMHER

(AR®TT/F73K)

Developer's profit and risk rate

BREERFIRERE

Market unit sales rate, using
market direct comparable and
taking into account of location
and other individual factors
at RMB52,106/sg.m. (2013:
RMB50,612/sq.m.).

EAEEMSLEUAI T
AN E R EAERIEER
MISBEUHERRTTYH
KARHB2,1067T(=F
—=F: BF¥HARARE
50,6127T) °

Developer's profit and risk rate,
taking into account of the
progress of the property of 5%
(2013: 5%).

ERBO RN MEARE
PR RMEERES% (=
T—=4 :5%)°

A slight increase in the
market unit sales
rate would result in
significant increase
in fair value and vice
versa.

R dve £
RSk T8
BAFEARES
- RZIRA -

There is no indication
that any slight
change in the
developer’s profit
and risk rate would
result in significant
higher or lower fair
value measurement.

W RETRER
R N B J g

AT ] B
BB RABERS
SR B A FE
g o

MR (EE)ARAR | —B—EFR )
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15. Y% - BMENRE 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
MELHR
BF waEs  REREML @t
Leasehold Equipment
[and and Motor and
buildings vehicles fumiture Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARET:
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
N COST
RZE—=%F—-Hf—H At 1 January 2013 78,850 3723 3157 145,144
nE Additions 60 6,348 10,507 16,915
-2 NG Acquisition of a subsidiary - - 181 181
HeE Disposals (66,834) 3.109) (534) (70.477)
RZF-=F+ZA=1-A At31 December 2013 12,076 31,961 175 91,763
NE Additions - 5029 11,288 16,317
LENBAF Disposal of subsidiaries - () (228) (449)
HeE Disposals 392) 4570) (1915) (6877)
RZE-mE+-F=t-H At 31 December 2014 11,684 38,200 50,870 100,754
ZiE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
RZE—=%—-Hf—H At 1 January 2013 8413 18,392 12,766 39,571
FRHY Charge for the year 560 6,754 5,786 13,100
R &R Fliminated on disposals (6,557) (1,262) (230) (8.069)
RZE-=F+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2013 2416 23,864 18322 44,602
FRFY Charge for the year 639 5274 8258 14171
LENBAF Disposal of subsidiaries - (213) (120 (333)
AR Y Eliminated on disposals (79) 4.332) 1359 (5,764
R-E-MFE+-A=1+-AH At 31 December 2014 2916 24,593 25107 52,676
REE CARRYING VALUES
R-E-ME+ZA=+-H At31 December 2014 8,108 13,607 25,163 48,078
RZE-=F+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2013 9,660 14,098 23,403 47,161
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15. 1%~ BERZRE @

L - BE RREEE R RIE
BTFIF R Em bt IR EERAE
REHTE :

METHEET IRAsAERFHNF
FAEH(AEIEERE)
HENE 20%

BRI 20%

FIAERTHMR T BEERNETREER
BT E o

16. AAHEERKIE
BNHERBENREEREASERT
B BMAEMEA REEE R ER %
RATER AR L FAE -

17. R—EBE QTN ER

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated

using the straight-line method after taking into account of their

estimated residual values at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the estimated useful lives of 20 years
or the term of the leases, whichever

shorter
Motor vehicles 20%
Equipment and furniture 20%

The buildings are all situated on land in the PRC held under medium-
term leases.

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The carrying amount of prepaid lease payments represents land use
rights held in the PRC under medium term leases intended for hotel
property development and administrative usage.

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

—E-mME —T—=%F
2014 2013
ARBTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REER—EHE QA ER Details of the Group's interest in an associate are as follows:
HIEWT
N—REEE R ERIRE KA Cost of investment in an associate
LT Unlisted 15,300 -

fBiEERR (KRB BRAR | —ZT—NFEFR
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17. A—RBE AT MEDR @) 17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
i/
PXAZHE AEBFRR R X
Place of 1R B INEB FE(LRREE Proportion of
L= YNETEA incorporation/ ~ Place of Equity interest voting power held ~ FE 7K
Name of associate establishment operation attributable to the Group by the Group Principal activities
“E-mF —T-=F “F-MmF —F-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
REHLEEHEREERAR & H 25% - 25% - BiERE
([Rzt 4o ]) () PRC PRC Property development

Tianjin Shijixing Real Estate
Development Co. Ltd.
("Tianjin Shijixing ") (Note|

Miz: : R AEBA—EBLE=FHEREFERE
B ARRKEM AL EAN26%MHE - WETFHE
AR R L EMEGIE - NEEFIEE - A&
l%ﬁ%éﬁ@mﬁ%&%-ﬁaﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁ
EEMBA QT

Note: During the year, the Group disposed of 26% equity interests in its non-wholly owned
subsidiary, Tianjin Shijixing to an independent third party and has ceased to have control
over Tianjin Shijixing. After the disposal, the Group owns 25% equity interest in Tianjin
Shijixing which became an associate of the Group.

18. REELENES 18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
—E-E —FT—=%F
2014 2013
AR Tt ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
ASBOEIEFTIREKA Cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures 8,024,368 4,313,111
EﬁTﬁHﬁZﬁ%fﬁ%%ﬁ REMAEYES - Share of post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
B IR B income, net of dividend received (132,584) (14,117)
7,891,784 4,298,994
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18. REELENER ») 18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

RZE—WWER _ZE—=F+ =4 Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures as at 31 December 2014 and
=+t—H AEBEECENFEHRY] 2013 are set out as follows:
LU
/AR 2 KREEEERE REEMFREEL X
Place of T 2k Equity interest Proportion of
LREPHELZRE incorporation/ Place of attributable to voting power held ~ FEHH%
Name of joint venture establishment operation the Group by the Group Principal activities
“E-NE ZB-ZF SN —T-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
BuEELESBEXERRF HE HE - 33% - 3% EHEMRE
Greenland Hefei Dingfeng Property PRC PRC Property development
FERBBEARAR s H 50% 50% 50% 50% BERE
Shanghai Luxu Property Co., Ltd. PRC PRC Property development
LEFsenEEERAR & i 50% 50% 50% 50% it ERI%
Shanghai Xincheng Xudi Real Estate  PRC PRC Property development

Development Co., Ltd.

HERRERARAF hE hE 50% 50% 50% 50% FithERIR

Shanghai Xukang Property Co., Ltd. PRC PRC Property development

FMEFEXRERAF hE hE 49% 49% 49% 19% EiERE

Suzhou Xuyang Property Co., Ltd PRC PRC Property development

REBEEHERZRRAR  PE HE 4151% 4757% 4151% 4151% FHERE

Tianjin Xujin Real Estate Development ~ PRC PRC Property development

Co., Ltd.

REBREXARAA i i 50% 50% 50% 50% FEiERE

Wuhan Xucheng Property Co., Ltd. PRC PRC Property development

JBZBRRT RBRENES TE 50% 50% 50% 50% REER

Xu An Co., Ltd. British Virgin PRC Investment holding
Islands

JEEBR R EEENES HE 50% 50% 50% 50% &R

Xu Bao Co., Ltd. British Virgin PRC Investment holding
Islands
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8. RABLENER = 18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued
B ave:k AEERELRE REBMFREEL X
Place of SR B Equity interest Proportion of
BENELT incorporation/  Place of attributable to voting power held ~ FE 7%
Name of joint venture establishment operation the Group by the Group Principal activities
—E-NF —T-=F -ZB-RF —FT-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
JBERRAR RBRUES o 49% 49% 49% 49% REZR
Xu Zheng Co., Ltd British Virgin PRC Investment holding
Islands
EREEERERARAA h h 50% - 50% - EiERR
Beijing Xuhui Dangdai Property Co., Ltd. PRC PRC Property development
HENEREERERAA h h 50% - 50% - EHERE
Hunan Wuhua Investment Co., Ltd.. PRC PRC Property development
FEKEEEERAA i I 49% - 49% - REER
Shanghai Yong Pan Shiye Co., Ltd. PRC PRC Investment holding
ErEEXKREERERAR  HE I 49% - 49% - REER
Beijing Xuhui Yong Tong Chang Property PRC PRC Investment holding

Co. Ltd.

fizE : FR - ANEERE AR 254,900,0007TR B
INTHEKMEBEEREBSEBRAF -
It - B R Uas AR #80,243,0007T ©

AEERBELENREFBNOT -
ITXAEABRASRESEREEEN
MBERBRE - NEMBERRERRE
2EERBEERM GRS ERNRRNK
REZEERBITEE

BECRDNRESEANZFRA M B R
RAER °
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Note: During the year, the Group disposed of Greenland Hefei Dingfeng Property Co., Ltd.
to an outsider party at a consideration of RMB254,900,000. A gain on disposal of
RMB80,243,000 was therefore recognised.

Details of the Group’s investments in joint ventures are as follows:

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s
joint ventures is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the joint ventures’ unaudited

management accounts prepared in accordance with IFRSs.

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in these
consolidated financial statements.
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18. REELEMNRER »)
ek EEEAR AR ([ LiFKE])

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)
Shanghai Yong Pan Shiye Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Yongpan”)

n=
+=A

11

—mé
-8
At31
December
2014
ARBTR
RMB'000

REEE

Current assets

5,457,026

FRBEE

Non-current assets

REAE

Current liabilities

SERBAR

Non-current liabilities

2,949,000

REz
—B-ME
+=A=t-H
LLEE

Year ended

31 December
2014
ARBTR
RMB'000

LON

Revenue

FREBRRZERXAE

Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year

(8,443)

fBiEERR (KRB BRAR | —ZT—NFEFR
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18. REELENER ») 18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

EekEEXERAT(( LEXKE])(# Shanghai Yong Pan Shiye Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Yongpan*)
(Continued)

P ER M E RS AS M EHRATHE  Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

RE) KB R A ARE AR carrying amount of the interest in Shanghai Yongpan recognised in the

consolidated financial statements:

RZE-ME

+ZA=1+-H

At31

December

2014

ARBT T

RMB'000

BKENEESRE Net assets of Shanghai Yongpan 2,508,026

KEER HEKENERRELD Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in Shanghai Yongpan 49%

AEER HEXKENERNRRE Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in Shanghai Yongpan 1,228,933
BRERAT(TEZR]) Xu An Co., Ltd. (“Xu An”)

R=Z-mF R-F-=F

+ZA=+-H +-R=1+—-H

At31 At 31

December December

2014 2013

ARET T AREFTT

RMB'000 RMB'000

MBEE Current assets 4,601,463 498,336

FRBEE Non-current assets 50 _

mEEE Current liabilities 541,619 69,740

FnEat Non-current liabilities 1,787,998 -
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18. RAEAEMES ) 18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (coninued

BZERAT(BZ]) (&) Xu An Co., Ltd. (“Xu An”) (Continued)
gz BZE
it S
tZA=t-B +ZA=1—-H
ILEE ILERE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
ARETR AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
WA Revenue - -
FREERZEREE Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year (19,078) -

Lt B ER B REGAMEREKRTIE  Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
REEL RN REBESHE - the carrying amount of the interest in Xu An recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

R=Z-mE R-T-=F

t=A=t-8B tZA=t+-H

At 31 At 31

December December

2014 2013

ARETT ARBTIL

RMB'000 RMB'000

BEHEEFE Net assets of Xu An 2,211,89% 428,59
KEBERBLMTEREL G Propartion of the Group's ownership interest in Xu An 50% 50%
AEERBRNERNRER Carrying amount of the Group's interest in Xu An 1,135,948 214,298
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18. REELENER @) 18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)
JEEBRAT([/BE ) Xu Bao Co., Ltd. (“Xu Bao")

R=B-MF R-T-=%
t=A=t-8 +ZA=+-A

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

ARETR ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

MEAE Current assets 6,824,290 3,737,199
ERBEE Non-current asssts 674 612
mBAE Current liabilities 1,224,082 190,148
FRBARE Non-current lablities 210328 930,883
BE CE:

—B-mE ZF-=F

t=A=t+-8B tZA=t+-R

ILEE IHEFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

AR®T R ARETTT

RMB'000 RMB'000

WA Revenue _ _
FREEREZARY 08 Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year (99,897) (5,546)
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18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Xu Bao Co., Ltd. (“Xu Bao") (Continued)

Lt BRI EREGASMERETE  Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
REEEEREMNREESE - the carrying amount of the interest in Xu Bao recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:
RZZE-mE R-T—=F
+ZA=t-H +ZA=1+-H
At31 At31
December December
2014 2013
ARETR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEMEEFE Net assets of Xu Bao 3,459,554 2,616,780
AEERNBEREEEL Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in Xu Bao 50% 50%
AEERNBENERNERE Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in Xu Bao 1,129,111 1,308,390

FERERSELXNERER

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not individually

material

Bz BHE
—E-NF —E-=F
+=ZA=+-B +ZA=+—-H
ILEFE JI=:3:3
At At 31
December December
2014 2013
AE®TT  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
AEERGBERZERZ A8 The Group’s share of loss and total comprehensive expense (55,083) (11,344)
R-Z-ME RIE-Z=F
+=ZA=+-B +ZA=+—-H
At At 31
December December
2014 2013
AEETR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000
FEERZSEAE N ENERRNELS Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interests in these joint
ventures 3,191,126 2,776,306
R (EE)ARLAA | —F—NEFR 169



B 5 S 5 R WY ik

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19. AMtHERE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

—F-mF —F=F

2014 2013

ARBBTT ARETIT

RMB'000 RMB'000

BRARABRRIE EIRAE S Unlisted equity security, at cost 54,023 54,023

EitiIE BT RRARIRE S0 T BRSO AL
LERLSTHBERETEROAR
RE(THERE DRE - REMHER
FHERABBRENTAGE ARG
BAVEGAHERRE  WARAES
RBREDFETREASEFE -

R-_ZE—MmWMFE+-_F=+—H K&
EHEAEREHREAMBRAEI06% (ZF
—=:3.06%) c AAREERAKREY
KNEBEBRITEER -

FRAEBRE-—HIFELTAREH
R AREI10% @ & FE#E A R ¥ 10,000,000
TG WRNEFEARBEEBHEE -

20. HEHEWE
AEBMBEREMEIRNTE -
BREL S EHRK AR A S5 HE
(ABRIE E A% ) 58 -

AEER-_Z—WF+-_A=+—HIK
HH) AR #4,098,823,000T(—T—=
£ AR#2,912,549,0007T) BV EHEL &
M - AERASBMRITREMERK

160

The above unlisted equity investment represents the investment
in CURA Investment Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd ("CURA
Investment”), a private entity established in the PRC. It is measured
at cost less impairment at each financial reporting date because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that its fair value cannot
be reliably measured.

At 31 December 2014, the Group owned 3.06% (2013: 3.06%) of the
paid-in capital of the investee. The directors of the Company consider
the principal activity of the investee is investment holding.

During the year, the Group acquired 10% of the paid-in capital of
an unlisted company amounting to RMB10,000,000, which was
subsequently disposed of during the year.

20. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

The Group’s properties held for sale are situated in the PRC. All the
properties held for sale are stated at lower of cost and net realisable
value.

The Group had pledged properties held for sale of approximately

RMB4,098,823,000 (2013: RMB2,912,549,000) as at 31 December
2014 to secure bank and other borrowings of the Group.
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21. BAEHYE

21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

—E-mFE —F—=F

2014 2013
AR¥TT AR%®TT
RMB’000 RMB'000

2% COST
F] At the beginning of the year 13,044,558 13,040,466
NE Additions 9,779,324 9,358,377
W — R B A A Acquisition of a subsidiary = 405,760
H & (B aE) Disposal (note) - (247 837)
&M B A A) (FaF35(a)&(b)) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 35(a) & (b)) (425,944) -
EREEELEYE Transfer to properties held for sale (12,594,191)  (9,512,208)
FR At the end of the year 9,803,747 13,044,558

FREFVEAMNRTE - BHHHEE
ERTREHEHENFRERYE -

R-Z—NE+-_A=+—8 " st AMH
AR ARE4,134,830,0007T( =
T—=%F: AR¥5,203,606,0007T)1578
HEREHAEA T —@AKRBIIA]
HEERYE -

AEER-_ZT—WF+_A=+—HBHK
HH) AR #6,070,247,000L( T —=
& AR¥10,654,279,0007T ) &) 5 3
M - ERAEBMRITREMMERK

M BHE—T——F+-A=+—RALLFE  FLE
R E IR R B & 0 AN A B 80% 25 #9 Y
BRAREILEEENEEREARARELR
HAE R - ARAEERELFENRETY
SEEITHON o RS I E AR R R T
RERBEGRIZERR BN BE—T—=
TZA=t—BRUEFERTK °

fBiEERR (KRB BRAR | —ZT—NFEFR

The properties under development for sale are located in the
PRC under medium-term leases and represent properties under
development for subsequent sale upon completion.

Included in the properties under development for sale as at 31
December 2014 amounting to approximately RMB4,134,830,000
(2013: RMB5,203,606,000) which represent the properties expected
to be completed and available for sale after more than twelve months
from the end of the reporting period.

The Group had pledged properties under development for sale of
approximately RMB6,070,247,000 (2013: RMB10,654,279,000) at 31
December 2014 to secure bank and other borrowings of the Group.

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2012, IS4 B ETEE B € Tangshan Bay
Eco-city Administrative Committee issued a land resumption compensation letter to
Tangshan Xuhui Yiwen Real Estate Development Co., Ltd, a 80% owned subsidiary of
the Company to carry out the land resumption for the properties under development
for sale held by the Group in Tangshan. The land resumption was completed during
the year ended 31 December 2013 upon the fulfillment of the stipulated compensation
conditions of deregistering the land use right certificates and handover of land.
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22. ERIRARHMERKIE

BERENLRIE
BORKFETERBLEWELES
WA - EEEMENREBIREAEE
BEEHZNGERE BT S a8 st
—BNTF60BE180H AT - IRIEHEE
e HeWARBBELARRMEARNE
e

22. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables mainly arise from sales of properties and rental
income. Considerations in respect of properties sold are paid
in accordance with the terms of the related sales and purchase
agreements, normally with a range of 60 days to 180 days from the
date of agreement. Rental income is paid by tenants within two

months in accordance to tenancy agreement.

—E-mE —F-=F

2014 2013

ARETT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

Z S W R IAE (R ) Trade receivables, net of allowance 2,381,005 1,607,235
H b UG I8 (NG B ) Other receivables, net of allowance 1,353,501 1,038,705
BN RIE Prepaid tax 168,294 239,300
& KA FE Deposits and prepayments 72,508 261,117
3,975,308 3,146,357

AT RRBEMRZGZBRRRENE
5 FEMGRIR R e 0 A (EANBR Bl )

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, based on the
date of agreement and net of allowance, at the end of the reporting

period:
—2-mE —B-Z=F
2014 2013
ARBTT ARETET
RMB'000 RMB'000
MRE0E A Within 60 days 1,675,839 1,309,368
612180H 61-180 days 407,496 106,136
18122365H 181-365 days 100,776 177,242
15345 1-3 years 196,894 14,489
2,381,005 1,607,235

RERETAEERPH - AEEEARN
MEEHEHENLEEERFPNEREE
o r
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Before accepting any corporate customer, the Group uses an internal

credit assessment system to assess the potential customers’ credit

quality.
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22. FERBRRX RIE
Bzﬁ&iéﬁ (4

RZTE—MNF+= H + B - R
EHREBHEAER MR LFTIE
BRENESIRRFEBEEREAENARKE
546,256,000 T( — T —=4F : AR¥
297,867,0007T ) 5T A 2N 58 B A9 & U BR 3K
B REACREEERTESATH
28 - BeBNERATE -

ﬂﬂJ?EE LE

EEERENEE S REFAR - KAE
EEZEEZRURENEEERB NS
RUEEE A REE RS ARHR AT
25 o ANEASEY EEAENT P
RRER  BEERRETREEAR

22. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Included in the Group's accounts receivable balance are trade
receivables with a carrying amount of approximately RMB546,256,000
(2013: RMB297,867,000) at 31 December 2014 which are past due at
the end of the reporting period for which the Group has not provided
for allowance as there has not been a significant adverse change in
credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable.

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivables
from the date credit was initially granted up to the end of the reporting
period. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the large
customer base unrelated to the Group.

BH RHAMEWRERNRIREEEE N Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade and other
™ receivables are as follows:
—E-mE —F-=F
2014 2013
ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Fystek Balance at the beginning of the year (5,177) (3,384)
B Increase in allowance (711) (1,793)
FRERS Balance at the end of the year (5,888) (5,177)

AR EE S EKGIERNRIERE K
—HEEATMNEEAARET (=
T —=F : AR¥14,203,0007T (K 5
42(e)) - ZAERN R RAARIE FIERR
RRESHE RGN BRI AT

R-E—NF+-_HA=+—8 A&EE
WHEARAIMAIRLORES AREK
353,646,000 (T —=F : AR¥

269 620,0007T) * FEW BRI P H EdE
R EBRER(ZE—=F: LBKE

Eli)mitwﬁﬁ%%/\ c BHRERMAR
#348,646,000L( T —=F : AR
269,620,0007T) & E B FEHETTH AR

B - MERER A B RAT) R B R M & 7] 4
lEI/ IE\D

B (RE)BRAR | T HFEFH

Included in the Group's trade receivables was rental receivable from a
related company of RMB nil (2013: RMB 14,203,000 (note 42(e)). The
related company represents a company in which certain controlling
shareholders and directors of the Company have control or beneficial
interests.

At 31 December 2014, RMB353,546,000 (2013: RMB269,620,000)
refundable earnest money was paid by the Group for the acquisition
of ownership interest in land located in Beijing, Shanghai and Nanjing
(2013: Shanghai and Jiaxing), the PRC by auctions. RMB348,546,000
(2013: RMB269,620,000) of which were paid in relation to auctions
that are still in progress and the remaining were receivable due to
unsuccessful bids.
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23. FEUWL e PRI AR R FRIH

JEUFEIERERRIEABER - 28K
AR ESKEE -

RZE—NF+—A=+—H ' BRAH
#) N R #476,963,0007C ( — T — =4 :
/\E?H%Msz 859,0007T ) HY) FE 7t FE 12 AR 42

RERERT RERBERERESR
’>7|\ BREABEEIT - 125.94% (=T —=
F : 5.94% ) WEEFNEFEREBKRE
SKAEIE -

24. B ENEE
NEFRIE

PR RER AR BN R ZIE A

I - B NERENRER -

it Y3

T

25. SRHFBITERSEFR
TERBITEEREAES
RZEBE—=F+"-A=+—H &*&£E
# AR #21,768,000 7T B9 R #ISR 1T 1%
FAANRBEE - B R —EREEX
PREBANERUNEBREIAR i
ERAZRHIBITERE R FE NG (M

40(i)) °

R-ZE—NF+-_A=+—8 it A&
EUBRRARBITEHKR IR SANZR
il $R 17 45 82 89 73 A R # 569,785,000 7T
—T—=%F: AR®¥457,491,0007T)
MZzEFREAREEEHERZEIE
E °

BEERBRTEREERTRITESLE

EERERRTRENERNFR B
MERBRBDEE °
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23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

The amounts due from non-controlling interests were unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.

Except for the amount due to a non-controlling interest of
approximately RMB476,963,000 (2013: RMB432,859,000) at 31
December 2014, which is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand, the remaining balance is unsecured, interest bearing at fixed
rate of 5.94% (2013: 5.94%) per annum and repayable on demand.

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINT VENTURES/
AN ASSOCIATE

The amounts due from/to joint ventures and an associate are

unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand.

25. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT/PLEDGED BANK
DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's restricted bank deposit

of approximately RMB21,768,000 is denominated in RMB. Such

restricted bank deposit was released during the year as the final

decision on a legal dispute with a construction contractor had been

made (note 40(ii)).

Included in bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement
of financial position are restricted bank balances of approximately
RMB569,785,000 (2013: RMB457,491,000) at 31 December 2014,
which can only be applied in the designated property development
projects.

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to secure
short-term banking facilities granted to the Group and are therefore
classified as current assets.
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25. TRFBITERCTEMR
TFR/BITERRREm)
RITEBR MRS BRARERBRS K
REBE A=A TEAERER -
RITRBIERITIBFEL S -

25. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT/PLEDGED BANK

DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continued)
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and demand
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. Bank
balances carry prevailing market interest rates.

—E-EFE —T—=%F
2014 2013
ARBT AR®TT
RMB'000 RMB'000

REBTERIRITAESRNIZES DM ¢+ Analysis of bank balances and cash by currency:

—UAREEEE — Denominated in RMB 6,306,573 4,981,099
—DUBTTEHAE — Denominated in Hong Kong dollars 494,128 959,075
—AETFHE — Denominated in United States dollars 292,953 1,120,574

7,093,654 7,060,748

26. ENERFRESBEX

26. ACCOUNTS PAYABLES AND ACCRUED
CHARGES

—E-mF —T-—=F
2014 2013
ARBTT AR®TRT
RMB'000 RMB'000

B 5 ERBRER Trade payables 2,448,235 2,005,975
E e IE K ERT Y Other payables and accrued charges 2,734,814 3,134,537

5,183,049 5,140,512

ERERNEZRNRBEREAFEXE
mREEKRAREMEBEBERS - %
EXRIREBEAEEFENRBEEX
- BEHRMNKREBENTFHEEHNR60
B> "REEEHIIMBEREREERR -
RERATB BN RS RNEEHRAE
ft o

fBiEERR (KRB BRAR | —ZT—NFEFR

Trade payables and accrued expenditure on construction comprise
construction costs and other project-related expenses which are
payable based on project progress measured by the Group. The
average credit period of trade payables is 60 days. The Group has
financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables
are within the credit timeframe.
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26. FESIRAREFTX @) 26. ACCOUNTS PAYABLES AND ACCRUED
CHARGES (Continued)

UNTARBRERRIZBHEAHFEENE The following is an aged analysis of trade payables, based on the

SN IR DT invoice date, at the end of the reporting period:

—E-mF —T-—=F
2014 2013
ARBTRE ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000

7608 A Within 60 days 940,624 1,086,287
612180H 61-180 days 320,690 66,811
18122365H 181-365 days 698,297 740,890
1824 1-2 years 437,291 41,495
2334 2-3 years 39,859 58,166
IFEM L Over 3 years 11,474 12,326

2,448,235 2,005,975

HAARAEFBHMmEMNREBELESFSZ Included in the Group's other payables and accrued charges is
MRIB AR —HEEATMHESES rental deposit received from a related company of RMB nil (2013:
BARBET(—DZE—=4: AR RMB6,000,000) (note 42(d)). The related company is a company in
6,000,0007T ) (Fffzx42(d)) - 3%f8:E /A& which certain controlling shareholders and directors of the Company
EHRANTE TR NEEHE AT have control or beneficial interests.

BB SRR -

HuppeMNZE R EE Y E 255t 181&  Other payables and accrued charges mainly represent accrued loan
EHTmIAREABEWEE ESTE  interest, various deposits received from contractors in relation to

TF B R EIERS o tendering and execution of construction contracts.
27. TR E M 27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

—E-mE ZT-=F
2014 2013
ARBTT AR¥ETTT
RMB'000 RMB'000

BEMRTERHIEE) Bank loans, secured (note (d)) 6,858,948 6,733,762
IR RITE R (FEE() Bank loans, unsecured (note (d)) 900,000 -
BEHERETEER (I EeE) Trust loans, secured (note (&) 310,000 1,884,738
EfEIEFETER Other trust loans, unsecured = 446,780
HEih AR EE (M 3E) Other loans, secured (note (f)) = 157,985
Hi M ER Other loan, unsecured 500,000 -
IREE (M) Syndicated loan (note (g)) 934,849 930,833

9,503,797 10,154,098
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27. ﬂﬁ& Lt 18 R ()

REREHRNE TIRITREMERTD

uwﬁw%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ TFHB A A
D IRRESELR o

27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

Certain bank and other borrowings as at the end of each reporting
period were secured by the pledge of assets asset out in note 37 and

certain equity interest in certain subsidiaries.

Notes:

(a) The borrowings are repayable:

—E-NF —T—=F
2014 2013
ARET T AREBFIT
RMB’000 RMB000
—FRIZER Within one year or on demand 3,035,362 2,934,643
—FLAE - BERNEBBARF More than one year, but not exceeding two years 4,135,940 1,883,615
MENE - BB =5 More than two years, but not exceeding three years 1,760,860 4,716,808
FF L More than five years 571,635 619,032
9,503,797 10,154,098
BooRBAREBE NI —FENEHSE Less: Amount due within one year shown under current liabilities (3,035,362) (2,934,643)
—F1& B e Amount due after one year 6,468,435 7,219,455
—E—F —T—=F
2014 2013
AR¥T T AREBFIT
RMB'000 RMB'000
LAEHE B DRI R DT - Analysis of borrowings by currency:
—UAREHE — Denominated in RMB 8,568,948 9,223,265
— LA TTEHE — Denominated in HKD 486,948 469,911
—AFETTAHE — Denominated in USD 447,901 460,922
9,503,797 10,154,098
(b) R-ZE—MWE+-_A=+—"H aHHA (b) Fixed-rate borrowings amounted to approximately RMB2,886,700,000 (2013:

E‘%zssmooooofc( T—=F: AR¥
2,479,135,0007T) B9 BB FIEZN F5% £9.6%
mi%n%%ﬁ%(:;—:i 5.6%%E16.5%) °

RMB2,479,135,000) carry interest ranging from 5% to 9.6% (2013: 5.6% to 16.5%) per
annum at 31 December 2014 and expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
remaining borrowings are arranged at variable rates with the effective interest rates

%K%ﬁﬁ@%ﬁﬂ%ﬁtl‘n ﬁ?ﬂ‘*mﬁz/?
¢ilj$n¥62%185%( B 45%E
15.5%)  SASEEHR ST ERER -

0 MEREHRNERMNZHBENT -

ranging from 6.2% to 8.5% (2013: 4.5% to 15.5%) per annum at 31 December 2014,

and expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

The range of effective interest rates at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

=k —F=5F

2014 2013

AR¥T T ARETTT

RMB'000 RMB'000

RITEK Bank loans 5.6% — 8.5% 5.6% —12.5%
{ErtER Trust loans 9% 10% — 16.5%
HiER Other loans 5% — 9.6% 9% — 15.5%

B (RE)BRAR | T HFEFH
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27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(9

Included in the Group's bank loans, amount of approximately RMB450,000,000 as at 31
December 2014 is secured by equity interests of the wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, being 100% equity interests of Hefei Xuyuan Property Co., Ltd. (note 37).
Included in the Group's bank loans, amounts of approximately RMB15,000,000 as at 31
December 2013 are entrusted by an individual, of which approximately RMB15,000,000
as at 31 December 2013 are guaranteed by CIFI Group Co., Limited ("CIFI (PRC)"), an
indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

These borrowings are mainly in the form of trust arrangement with trust financing
companies. The conventional loan trust arrangements are loan agreements entered into
by the Group and trust financing companies. The trust arrangements with obligation to
repurchase equity interest involve either capital increase in, or transfer of equity interest
in project companies with repurchase obligations at the maturity of the loans. The
substance of the latter type of trust arrangements is borrowing, with the equity interests
in the project companies legally transferred as collateral. The borrowings under trust
arrangements are secured by certain property development projects undertaken by the
relevant borrowing subsidiaries and shares of subsidiaries of the Company (note 37).

These borrowings are entered into with investment companies and CURA Investment,
an investee of the Group. The Group entered into cooperation agreements with the
investee or investment companies to raise fund of approximately RMB909,496,000 in
aggregate as at 31 December 2012. Pursuant to the terms stipulated in the cooperation
agreements with the investee and the investment companies, the Group transferred
certain equity interests, varying from 10% to 30%, of Shanghai Xuwei Property Co.,
Ltd and Shanghai Xutong Property Co., Ltd (“Shanghai Xutong”) to the investee or
investment companies. The Group was then obliged to repurchase the entire equity
interests of respective project companies held by CURA Investment and investment
companies at the maturity date. The borrowings under these arrangements are
secured by equity interests of these project companies held by the Group (note 37) and
guaranteed by CIFI (PRC).

On 8 July 2013, the Company as borrower, and certain offshore subsidiaries of the
Company as initial guarantors, entered into a syndicated loan agreement (“Syndicated
Loan") with a group of financial institutions as lenders. The Syndicated Loan is a dual-
currency term loan facility with an aggregate amount of approximately US$156.5 million
divided into two tranches: (i) United States dollars tranche with an aggregate amount
of US$75 million; and (ii) Hong Kong dollars tranche with an aggregate amount of
HK$636 million, with final maturity of three years from the date of the Syndicated Loan
agreement and interest of LIBOR or HIBOR plus 5.65% per annum.
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28. TRUST AND OTHER LOANS RELATED
DERIVATIVES

The borrowings of Hefei Xubin included in the note 27(e) are in the
form of trust arrangement with trust financing companies involving
either capital increase in, or transfer of equity interest in project
companies with repurchase obligations. In addition, the borrowing of
Shanghai Xutong included in the note 27(f), the Group was obliged
to repurchase the entire equity interest of the project company held
by the investee of the Group. The repurchase prices of the equity
interests and loan principal of these trust arrangements reflect the
fixed returns and the floating premiums that the trust financing
companies and CURA Investment are entitled to and are linked to
the selling prices or valuation of equity interest of the relevant project
companies at the time as stipulated in the relevant agreements.

The proceeds received from the trust companies and the investee of
the Group have been split between the trust and other loans element
and financial derivatives component, representing the fair value of the
embedded derivatives in respect of the floating premiums.

These trust and other loans contain embedded derivatives which are
not closely related to the host contract and are treated as separate
derivatives. The embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. The classification
of these derivatives are determined based on the earliest repayment
dates that can be demanded by trust financing companies and the
investee.

The fair value of trust and other loans related financial derivative
instruments is calculated using the Monte Carlo simulation by
considering a number of parameters including volatility, credit spread,
risk free rate, property selling prices of the project, the property
development plan estimated by management and maturity dates
determined by the terms of the relevant agreements and the property
sale plan estimated by management.

Both the borrowings of Hefei Xubin and Shanghai Xutong were
matured during this year and the floating premiums in relation to the
projects were then finalised. Subsequently, the equity interests in
respective project companies were repurchased by the Group during
the year.
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28. TRUST AND OTHER LOANS RELATED
DERIVATIVES (Continued)

The movements of the embedded derivatives are set out below:

—E-—mE —E—=%F

2014 2013

AR¥BTT AR%ETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

£ At the beginning of the year 82,000 85,000

N EZFEEENRE Gain arising on changes in fair value (4,000) (3,000)

PR EBEER Y MO RIE Amounts paid upon finalisation of floating premium (78,000) -

FR At the end of the year - 82,000
EREEA TS EDHT - Carrying amount analysed into

BIEREE 7> Current portion = 82,000

29. BEERE
RZZE—=FWMA+HRB ' XARRAA
P ITEEAFEE275,000,0003 7T (4
AR#1,717,593,0007T ) B EIRHE BE
EEB(ZZ2—=FREEE]) =%
——FRAEZBUEF12.25%E LGB
(B¥FIN—REFFE) iR =
- N\FHA+HBBEERE -

RZZE—=ZFhLA+N\HB AR
AL R EBA4% M ARBETHESR
%8 ¥ 225,000,000 = JT (9 A B #&
1,393,470,00070 ) BRI TE BB L ZE
([ZZ2—=FFIER]) —T—=F
BINEB AT E1225% L8 (F¢E
FRH—IREEFE) - WER=ZF—N
FNA+RAAREEE -

RZE—WNF—A=_++tH AR
Al LA04B5% T M A R E(TH A
48 %F 3% 200,000,000 & 7T (49 A R #&
1,216,800,0007T) B R E BB LR
B ZE—NFRAZR]) —F—K
FRAZIEAFFE8.875EME LT E
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29. SENIOR NOTES

On 15 April 2013, the Company issued guaranteed fixed rate
senior notes to the public at par with aggregate nominal value of
US$275,000,000 (approximately RMB1,717,593,000) (the “2013
Original Notes"”) which carry fixed interest of 12.25% per annum
(interest payable semi-annually in arrears) and will be fully repayable
by 15 April 2018.

On 18 September 2013, the Company issued guaranteed fixed rate
senior notes to the public at premium of 4% with aggregate nominal
value of US$225,000,000 (approximately RMB1,393,470,000) (the
“2013 Additional Notes”) which carry fixed interest of 12.25% per
annum (interest payable semi-annually in arrears) and will be fully
repayable by 15 April 2018.

On 27 January 2014, the Company issued guaranteed fixed rate senior
notes to the public at discount of 0.455% with aggregate nominal
value of US$200,000,000 (approximately RMB1,216,800,000) (the
“2014 Original Notes") which carry fixed interest of 8.875% per
annum (interest payable semi-annually in arrears) and will be fully
repayable by 27 January 2019.
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29. SEN'OR NOTES (Continued)

The 2013 Original Notes, the 2013 Additional Notes and 2014
Original Notes are listed on the Stock Exchange. They are unsecured,
senior obligations of the Company and guaranteed by certain of the
Company's existing subsidiaries, other than those organised under the
laws of the PRC. The guarantees are effectively subordinated to the
other secured obligations of each guarantor, to the extent of the value
of assets serving as security.

For the 2013 Original Notes and 2013 Additional Notes at any time
prior to 15 April 2016, the Company may redeem up to 35% of the
aggregate principal amount of the 2013 Original Notes and 2013
Additional Notes at a redemption price of 112.25% of the principal
amount of the 2013 Original Notes and 2013 Additional Notes,
plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the
redemption date, with the net cash proceeds from sales of its
common stock in an equity offering, subject to certain conditions. In
addition, at any time and from time to time prior to 15 April 2016, the
Company may at its option redeem the 2013 Original Notes and 2013
Additional Notes, in whole but not in part, at a redemption price equal
to 100% of the principal amount of the 2013 Original Notes and 2013
Additional Notes plus the 2013 Applicable Premium as of, an accrued
and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the redemption date.

“2013 Applicable Premium” means with respect to the 2013 Original
Notes and 2013 Additional Notes at any redemption date, the greater
of (1) 1.00% of the principal amount of such 2013 Original Notes and
2013 Additional Notes and (2) the excess of (A) the present value at
such redemption date of (i) the redemption price of such 2013 Original
Notes and 2013 Additional Notes on 15 April 2016 plus (ii) all required
remaining scheduled interest payments due on such 2013 Original
Notes and 2013 Additional Notes through 15 April 2016 (but excluding
accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date), computed using
a discount rate equal to the adjusted treasury rate plus 100 basis
points, over (B) the principal amount of such 2013 Original Notes and
2013 Additional Notes on such redemption date.
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29. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

At any time and from time to time on or after 15 April 2016, the
Company may redeem the 2013 Original Notes and 2013 Additional
Notes, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to the
percentage of principal amount set forth below, plus accrued and
unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the redemption date, if
redeemed during the 12-month period commencing on 15 April of any
year set forth below:

fBoE
HAfA Period Redemption Price
—T-RF 2016 106.1250%
—E—+F 2017 103.0625%

R —EHFERAZEMS @ A2FR
—E—+tF A+ LtHABEREEN
B EAHEERAEERNTBES
WETBHRIEREFE  E-T—WOFR
HEE ARG EE108.875% N ELOE - 3
MErZ=CERNEIE) B R B e s Kok
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M- —MFRERB(AZE THRER
#) e I ARRBR =T —+F— A
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For the 2014 Original Notes, at any time and from time to time prior
to 27 January 2017, the Company may redeem up to 35% of the
aggregate principal amount of the 2014 Original Notes at a redemption
price of 108.875% of the principal amount of the 2014 Original
Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including)
the redemption date, with the net cash proceeds from sales of its
common stock in an equity offering, subject to certain conditions. In
addition, at any time and from time to time prior to 27 January 2017,
the Company may at its option redeem the 2014 Original Notes, in
whole but not in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
principal amount of the 2014 Original Notes plus the 2014 Applicable
Premium as of, an accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not
including) the redemption date.

“2014 Applicable Premium” means with respect to the 2014 Original
Notes at any redemption date, the greater of (1) 1.00% of the principal
amount of such 2014 Original Notes and (2) the excess of (A) the
present value at such redemption date of (i) the redemption price
of such 2014 Original Notes on 27 January 2017 plus (ii) all required
remaining scheduled interest payments due on such 2014 Notes
through 27 January 2017 (but excluding accrued and unpaid interest
to the redemption date), computed using a discount rate equal to the
adjusted treasury rate plus 100 basis points, over (B) the principal
amount of such 2014 Original Notes on such redemption date.
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29. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

At any time and from time to time on or after 27 January 2017, the
Company may redeem the 2014 Original Notes, in whole or in part,
at a redemption price equal to the percentage of principal amount
set forth below, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not
including) the redemption date, if redeemed during the 12-month
period commencing on 27 January of any year set forth below:

BEE
HAfE Period Redemption Price
—E—+F 2017 104.4380%
—E-N\F 2018 102.2190%

EERR RUTHINBEHRR &
PEEBERENQFELTERX -

T =FREER  ZT—=FFH
ZEER T -NFRAZENEREDFE
LAFNBR B1TR X A& ££13,319,000F 7T (47
AR #82,528,0007T ) FI7K °

—E-ZFRAEEE  —T—ZFFEII
ZEEN T -NMFRAZENEERFX
DRATEIZTT%  12.34% %9.47% °

TR ZFZFRERE - ZF—=
FRIRBR T -—NFRARBNE
BHENAT

In the opinion of directors, the fair values of the early redemption
options are insignificant at initial recognition and the end of the
reporting period.

The net carrying amounts of the 2013 Original Notes, 2013 Additional
Notes and 2014 Original Notes are stated net of issue expenses
totalling US$13,319,000 (approximately RMB82,528,000).

The effective interest rates of the 2013 Original Notes, 2013 Additional
Notes and 2014 Original Notes are 13.77%, 12.34% and 9.47% per
annum respectively.

The movements of the 2013 Original Notes, 2013 Additional Notes
and 2014 Original Notes for the year are set out below:

—E—OF —B—=F

2014 2013

ARBTT AREFTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

MR—HA—BHEEE Carrying amount as at January 1 3,137,901 -

RETHBN LS A FE Initial fair values on the dates of issuance 1,174,463 3,174,326
P 78518 (U es) Exchange loss (gain) 20,084 (69,542)

FIBFASY (M3ES) Interest expenses (note 8) 503,932 221,828
FAEAHE Interest paid during the year (479,430) (188,711)

R+ A=+—HBHREE Carrying amount as at December 31 4,356,950 3,137,901
BB (EE) AR AR | —T—NFFR 173
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29. SENIOR NOTES (continued)

The fair values of the 2013 Original Notes, 2013 Additional Notes and
2014 Original Notes as at 31 December 2014, with reference to the
quoted market price available on the Stock Exchange amounted to
approximately RMB4,604,577,000 (2013: RMB3,499,524,000).

On 17 December 2014, the Company has entered into a subscription
agreement pursuant to which the subscriber has agreed to subscribe
for additional fixed rate senior notes with the aggregate nominal
value of US$200,000,000 which carry fixed interest of 8.875% per
annum and will be fully repayable by 27 January 2019. This batch of
senior notes will be consolidated and form a single series with the
2014 Original Notes with the same terms and conditions of the 2014
Original Notes, except for the issue date and the issue price.

30. PERPETUAL CAPITAL INSTRUMENTS

On 26 June 2014, a wholly owned subsidiary (the “Subsidiary”) of
the Company issued perpetual capital instruments (the “Perpetual
Capital Instruments”) with the aggregate principal amount of
RMB578,710,000 by entering into an agreement (the “Agreement”)
with a trust financing company. Subsequently, an addition of
RMB7,000,000 of the Perpetual Capital Instruments was issued by the
Subsidiary.

Pursuant to the Agreement, the Perpetual Capital Instruments have no
fixed maturity date and redeemable at the Subsidiary’s option at the
principal amount together with accrued, unpaid or deferred distribution
payments. The distribution rate for the instruments is 12.5% per
annum for the first and second year, then increases to 14% per
annum for the third year and 16% per annum for the fourth year and
years after. If no distribution is paid in that year, the distribution rate
will be adjusted by a 10% premium in the next year and so on. The
distribution rate is capped at 16% per annum. No guarantee or pledge
was made by the Group for the Perpetual Capital Instruments.

The payments of distribution can be deferred at the discretion of the
Subsidiary until declaration of dividend to ordinary shareholders of
the Subsidiary by or the liquidation of the Subsidiary. Therefore, the
Perpetual Capital Instruments are classified as equity instrument and
presented as a part of equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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31. SHARE CAPITAL

—E-mFE ZT—=F
2014 2013
ARBTT AR®TT
RMB'000 RMB'000

AT Authorised:
10,000,000,000/% ( —ZE—=4F : 10,000,000,000 (2013: 10,000,000,000) ordinary shares of
10,000,000,000% ) &A% EI{E0.17E 7T HK$0.1 each (2013: HK$0.1 each)

(ZZF—=F : SREEIET)N

=il 810,000 810,000
BEEIT R Issued and fully paid:
6,026,579,0000% ( =T — =14 : 6,026,579,000 (2013: 6,026,579,000) ordinary shares of

6,026,579,0007% ) &A% EI{E0.178 7T HK$0.1 each (2013: HK$0.1 each)

(Z2—=%F : SRABEIEIL)W

Tk 487,896 487,896

BAZBIT -
@ BEBRER-B-=F=A-+t
ARBMABRRN E—=F+

AT "BRMEEHE  AQFK
1628 TR E R A —BIHIA T
17256,579,000 % Bk 17 - BL & FT 15
FRIFF R 73390,000,000/ 7T

(b) 7|‘ETF ﬂiﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ A5E24.21% -
7R ) AT SR B AR ) )i (B B S AN R
Hx,% °
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The movements in share capital are as follows:

(@) Pursuant to a resolution of the shareholders passed on 27
March 2013 and the placing agreement on 16 October 2013, the
Company issued 256,579,000 shares to an outsider at a price
of HK$1.52. The net proceeds from the placing is approximately
HK$390 million.

(b)  Pursuant to article 24.2 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
the Company is permitted to pay out final dividend from share
premium account.

A summary of the transactions with reference to the above-mentioned
movements in the Company's issued share capital is as follows:

BETHR LakaE  RO&RE
LEREE ERREE ROEE %@ EE 5t
Number Equivalent
of issued Nominal nominal
fully paid value of value of Fquivalent
ordinary ordinary Share ordinary share
shares shares premium shares premium Total

TEL TEL ARETT ARETT ARETR
HK§ 000 HKS 000 RIB'000 RIB'000 RIB'000

WZE-=F—-f—H At 1 January 2013 5,770,000,000 577000 12304610 167310 1056735 154,105
FRERD (@) Placing shares (note (a) 256,579,000 25,658 364,342 20526 2873771 307,903
BRRA(HE®D) Dividend paid (note (b) - - - - (184,640) (184,640)
MWZF-=F+-A=1t—H8 A3 December2013 6,026,579,000 602658 1,668,952 0§78% 1159472 1647368
BRABRE (D) Dividend paid (note (b) - - - - (333.270) (333.270)

RZE-ME+=A=+—H  At31December 2014

6,026,579,000 602,658 1,668,952 487,896 826,202 1,314,098

B (RE)BRAR | T HFEFH
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32. EREBIE 32. DEFERRED TAXATION
IWTNAERERNERNTERELERIEEE The following are the major deferred taxation assets (liabilities)
(BB RAETEE : recognised and movements thereon during the years:
RARARS
RETNE THEER
(BB RED% BaH)
R ES DHE  HEEE  EEES 5
Temporary
differences on
unrealised
gain {loss) Fair Temporary
arising from value of differences
inter-company ~ investment Tax on LAT
transactions properties losses provision Total

ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

RZE—=5-A—H At 1 January 2013 1419 (737,347) 26,161 56,492 (643,275)
WEABSREMREYRER A Credit charge) to consolidated statement of profit or loss and

(11%) other comprehensive income (999) (188,384 3685 15,147 (170,551)
RZE-=%+-f=1—H At 31 December 2013 10,420 (925,731) 29,846 71639 (813,826)
NEABRREMZERERTA  Credit(charge) to consolidated statement of profit or loss and

(%) other comprehensive income 5,804 60,292) 23624 39,054 8,190
R-E-ME+=-A=+-H At 31 December 2014 16,224 (986,023) 53,470 110,693 (805,636)

BERGEFEMRAR - EFEEME  For the presentation purposes on the consolidated statement of

BEBE)BEY - U TNARBMEHRSE  financial position, certain deferred taxation assets (liabilities) have been

VEH AEETIBAE A DT - offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred taxation balances
for financial reporting purposes:

—F-NF —FT=F
2014 2013
ARMTRT ARMTT
RMEB000  RMB'000

ELEFIEE E Deferred taxation assets 213,551 147,186
ELEFIEAE Deferred taxation liabilities (1,019,187) (961,012)

(805,636) (813,826)
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32. EEBIA (4
RZE—NWF+_A=+—H " &K
EEHEERADABREEBEERENOARK
558,865,000 L ( — T —=4F : AR¥
192,165,0007T ) A 3 EH AR R FIH - B
—E-MFE+-A=+—H BHRHA
R¥213,880,000t(—T—=F : AR
#119,384,0007T) B EERELERIEE
EE o AR A TERIR RFE AROR - MR
—E-NFE+-A=1+—BBERHBT
BB AR #344,985,000C (—F—=
F 0 AR¥72,781,0007T ) R IE T 18
BE - ABERBEEHEEBRTIFERE
w

i

32. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 31 December 2014, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately RMB558,865,000 (2013: RMB192,165,000)
available to offset against future profits. Deferred taxation assets
have been recognised in respect of such losses of approximately
RMB213,880,000 (2013: RMB119,384,000) at 31 December 2014.
No deferred taxation asset has been recognised in respect of
the remaining losses of approximately RMB344,985,000 (2013:
RMB72,781,000) at 31 December 2014 due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses will expire in the
following years:

—F-mFE T =F

2014 2013

AR¥TT AR%®TT

RMB'000 RMB'000

—T-OF 2014 . 1448
—E—F4E 2015 1,028 2,607
—E—RF 2016 20,819 26,825
—E—+F 2017 16,892 17,349
—E-N\F 2018 21,142 24,552
—E-NF 2019 285,104 -
344,985 72,781

RZZE—NFE+-_A=+—H AKEH
RKEEBEEMENRFRER S A
FiERps =584 A AR #33,789,0007T( =
T — =4 : AR¥74,069,0007T) > AR
RO BEH R AE o] K 5 ] 18
FRRF =58 MW ERZSAINHBREZ
HERELEHRBEEE -

BBCRBESEMEHE) BZTEN
F—HA—HiE  HPEKER BRI
FEATE RIS ABWTBIRATER © 48
BUBRERPRERR T —NF+=
A=Z+— BT ERRRFHEE
1hEERRF =54 A R #6,063,769,0007T( —
T—=%: AR¥4,397,195,0007)1EH
EEFIEEAE - YA AEE LT TR
MmO BRShESEAER
RASRA AR -

fBiEERR (KRB BRAR | —ZT—NFEFR

At 31 December 2014, the Group had deductible temporary
differences arising from inter-company transactions in relation to
construction of properties of approximately RMB33,789,000 (2013:
RMB74,069,000). No deferred taxation asset has been recognised in
relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the PRC enterprise income law, withholding income tax is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not
been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the
PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately RMB6,063,769,000
(2013: RMB4,397,195,000) as at 31 December 2014, as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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33. ZRWNE—BEMEB LT WE
EEREE

RZZE—=FA++tH ~&EEHEF
VEZHHEREEHEREER AR
SN AEREE - Bt - AEBWENE
BEEMEREAR AR ([HERE])
H80% #z + KB & A K% 28,000,000
7T|:o

MR EEIRY « BB « RILEMIER
ANaE o HERENEEEEAMMNHE
KRB T o

PIRBEEHEBRENTEERARE

33. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

THROUGH ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
On 17 June 2013, the Group entered into a cooperation arrangement
with SR EEHERZBER AT (Hunan Kehui Properties
Development Co., Ltd.), an independent third party, pursuant to which
the Group acquired 80% interest in ME B EMERZEARE A
(Hunan Ronghui Properties Development Co., Ltd. (“Hunan Ronghui”)
for a consideration of RMB28,000,000.

Hunan Ronghui is the project company for Hunan CIFI Comfortable
Joyous Bay (R efBiEeH 1} &). The major asset of Hunan Ronghui is

the land parcel situated in Changsha, Hunan.

The acquired net assets comprise the following assets and liabilities:

—E—=F
2013
ARETTT
RMB'000
RAFEBERNEESE Net assets acquired at fair value:
M -~ BE RS Property, plant and equipment 181
FAEE R Y2 Properties under development for sale 405,760
RITHEBREIRE Bank balances and cash 63,388
HAb e 708 Other payables (434,329)
35,000
eI RS R (R E SR ER(E - Identified net assets shared by non-controlling interests (7,000)
LIRS RBRE Total consideration satisfied by cash 28,000
WHEEANRSMAFEE Net cash inflow arising on acquisition:
[EENEER Cash paid 28,000
BEMRITESREIRS Bank balances and cash acquired (63,388)
(35,388)
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34. WiE—EWEBARINEIIME

=
BHE_Z—=F+_A=Z=+—H1HF
£ - BB E AR & K E AKR®900,000
TTEFZERERWE ESRBEEXER
NEIHI3% AR - ETREEKEE
BIEHEBEXBRAREIIMERE BHIE
TRESHBRAER BN EBEARKE
374,000TC IR AR IR - WEHB AR
BEA -

35. HEKHEAT

(a) HEWBRFE

BEr—FE—NEf—A=1—HIFZF

() —FE-—MOFEA-+—H FEHE
AR AE 4 A K #30,000,0007T [ —
BBUFE="STHERENBAR L
BXIEEREEEARARA( £
BXZDRE2ERBMNBERR L
BIEEEXBR AR LEBEE])
B2 B AR o EAEKIA L
B8 55 R =40 & 22 AR A 5 3t 2
TR -

iy —T—WFE+—A+N\H ~&EE
AR B4 A R ¥ 43,747,000 7T [ —
HEBUE-HHERENB AR E
BEEEXEFRAR (I LEEE])
MR AER - EEBERES
HIER T -

iy, —TE—WE+-_A+HAB  A&EH
AR (B 49 AR #:60,000,0007T [A] —
BRI E=ZFHEREWB AR
RBEEE¥AFR AR (L8 HE
b e 2R AR o b RBEE
W EEHERIBEERS

fBiEERR (KRB BRAR | —ZT—NFEFR

34. ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN A
SUBSIDIARY

During the year ended 31 December 2013, CIFI (PRC) acquired
3% equity interest in Shanghai Xupu Property Co., Ltd. from a
non-controlling interest at a cash consideration of RMB900,000.
A difference between the consideration paid and the equity
interest of the non-controlling interest at the date of acquisition of
additional interest in Shanghai Xupu Property Co., Ltd. amounted to
RMB374,000 was recognised in equity and attributed to the owners of
the Company.

35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries

For the year ended 31 December 2014

() On 21 July 2014, the Group disposed of its 100% equity
interest in its subsidiary, Shanghai Yongli Assets Investment
Management Company Limited (\E/&x 7 BEREEEER AT
(“Shanghai Yongli”), together with its wholly owned subsidiary,
Shanghai Xubo Property Company Limited (/G/BIEE % 5R
28] (“Shanghai Xubo”), to an independent third party for a
consideration of approximately RMB30,000,000. Shanghai Yongli
and Shanghai Xubo were engaged in investment holding and
property development respectively.

(i) On 18 November 2014, the Group disposed of its 100% equity
interest in its subsidiary, Shanghai Xucao Property Company
Limited (E/BBEE AR AF]) (“Shanghai Xucao”) to an
independent third party for a consideration of approximately
RMB43,747,000. Shanghai Xucao was engaged in property
development.

(i) On 15 December 2014, the Group disposed of its 100% equity
interest in its subsidiary, Beijing Xuxinglong Property Company
Limited (Jt RfBE[E B ZBR A 7)) (“Beijing Xuxinglong”) to an
independent third party for a consideration of approximately
RMB60,000,000. Beijing Xuxinglong was engaged in property
development.
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35. HEMBAT @)

(a) HEMBAR (%)
BE—FE—pmFEf—H=+—HILFF
(&

Pl X GEHEERBARAR - 5@
M2 SHEMNEEFEFBRMT

35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Continued)

The above transactions are accounted for as disposal of subsidiaries.
Details of the net assets disposed of in respect of the above

transactions are summarised below:

AR¥T T
RMB’000
TRREF Consideration satisfied by:
Be Cash 73,747
—FREARE Consideration receivable within one year 60,000
133,747
MAEIRHENEERBERNDIT Analysis of assets and liabilities over which
control was lost:
W -~ BEME Property, plant and equipment 116
AHHERE Available-for-sale investment 10,000
EELEME Properties held for sales 70,677
BIEEHENMRERYE Properties under development for sale 74,183
JFE UK BR R R ELAth R U SR TR Accounts and other receivables 113,526
RITHEBRIRS Bank balances and cash 1,816
JE AT BR SR % EL At FE AT R0IE Accounts and other payables (198,983)
HEMEEFE Net assets disposed of 71,335
T B A BTSN - Gain on disposal of subsidiaries:
HeRE Cash consideration 73,747
FEUAR(E Consideration receivable 60,000
HEZEFE Net assets disposed of (71,335)
HETE I Gain on disposal 62,412
HEREEANRSMAIFRE : Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
HWERE Cash consideration 73,747
HEMIRITESRNIIRS Bank balances and cash disposed of (1,816)
71,931
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35. HEMBAT @)

(a) HEHBARE)

P E— == = —HILEE
BE_ZEZ—=F+-_A=+—HI1t#&
E - RNEENARKEAKRY10,500,0007T
M—EBIE=FHERNENBRR L
GBS R 2 BN AN RS o

MEARNLERRNEEFENT

35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group disposed
of its 100% equity interest in its subsidiary, Shanghai Xujia to an
independent third party for a consideration of RMB10,500,000.

The net assets of the subsidiary at the date of disposal are as follows:

ARETT

RMB'000

B YE Investment properties 127,500

E b e IE K ERT S Other payables and accrued charges (117,000)

] Consideration 10,500
HEREENRESMAFE Net cash inflow arising from disposal:

BUIRERE Cash consideration received 10,500

(b) HEMBARBIERERAEE

iR
BE2—F—FEf+—A=+—HIFE
ZTE-MFE+ZANR  AEBME—F
BUE=FHEXAAEBIEZTENS
NE|REM L EE26% B ARERS - B
MR BTKEBREZGE - ZERXHIR
6 B B A R BP9 A E BUK A Il
ABR - BETH 2% REMLEK A
REBMBERR - KEEHEEZE AR
RIZM LA 25% IR E = A FER
VRN E BRI E DA ERRES
R o

fBiEERR (KRB BRAR | —ZT—NFEFR

(b) Disposal of partial interest in subsidiaries result in loss of
control

For the year ended 31 December 2014

On 8 December 2014, the Group disposed of 26% equity interests
in Tianjin Shijixing, previously a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, to an independent third party resulting in loss of control upon
completion of the transaction. These transactions were accounted
for as disposal of partial interests in subsidiaries resulting in loss of
control. After the completion of the disposal, Tianjin Shijixing became
an associate of the Group. The fair value of the 25% retained interest
in Tianjin Shijixing at the date on which the control was lost was
regarded as the cost in initial recognition of the Group's interest in an
associate.
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BB E i — f = —
(&)
NEERAEWT

35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Disposal of partial interest in subsidiaries result in loss of
control (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Continued)

Assets and liabilities derecognised at the date in loss of control of
Tianjin Shijixing are as follows:

AR¥T T
RMB'000
BIELEMRBER Y Properties under development for sale 351,761
JE AT BR TR K LA B U SR TR Accounts and other receivables 18,692
RITHEB MRS Bank balances and cash 32,756
JRE A~ BR R % ELAth B A< 5KIE Accounts and other payables (265,336)
RIT R EMIER Bank and other borrowings (96,223)
S FEFERSAE S Less: non-controlling interests (10,425)
31,225

B NEERAR20%RE IR AR Less: 25% retained equity interest held by the Group

— DA —REE N AR —classified as interest in an associate (15,300)
JEUARAE Consideration receivable 15,925

R-ZZF-—NFE+-_A=1+—8  REA
R #15,925,000 T ARER © thFRIBET
AE AL EUCGRIR (R BEHE) - WA —
FAEE -

36. RIKERNFTE

RIFFBERBEEARRER - ARBRH
[0 P B8 % B 7R 2 B 75 T BURT HETT B SR
EHRFURNREE - AEEWTEMNEA
RIRM T MERFAARE FHREF T H
ETADLLRF SR - AsEE R
RENENES - AEEHBEKER
AEMEREEAREAEELAHHE

o
A °

AEBNATEMERERREEZER
HERTEEFTE - ZABMEERN
SEEEDH  FRREXAABTENE
& AEERZTEFLNEASER
HERARNE% - MiE 8 IFAIEL RSMH

o
N
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As at 31 December 2014, the consideration of RMB15,925,000 was
still outstanding. This amount is included in other receivables, net of
allowance which is repayable within one year.

36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
Company's PRC subsidiaries are required to participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes administrated by the local municipal
governments. The Group's PRC subsidiaries contribute funds which
are calculated on certain percentage of the average employee salary
as required by local municipal government to the scheme to fund the
retirement benefits of the employees. The principal obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustee. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the
scheme, which contribution is matched by employees.
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37. IKHEE
THEERRE AR T AE I LAERAE
EEBERETRTREMAE

37. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The following assets were pledged to secure certain banking and
other facilities granted to the Group at the end of the reporting period:

—E-mE ZT-=F
2014 2013
AR®TT AR®TT
RMB'000 RMB’000

WEE Investment properties 4,931,000 4,570,000
BELENREPYE Properties under development for sale 6,070,247 10,654,279
BIEHLEWE Properties held for sale 4,098,823 2,912,549
EHEMRITER Pledged bank deposits 30,000 100,000

15,130,070 18,236,828

Mzt : AEERETHAS TEREROEEL SHME
RYERIE R F (BIE LA R) KRR AR -
B PR RRAEEEEE TRITRE - R
—Z—NFE+-A=1+—0 ZEHBRANE
BEFEAARE,362,0007(ZF—=4 : A
K#¥132,847,0007T) °

38. HEZH

AEMERBHEA
R|BEHR - AEBE EBAS AKX
REEBERZOT :

Note: The Group's equity interests in certain subsidiaries, which hold certain pledged
properties under development for sale included above, have been pledged to secure
certain banking facilities granted to the Group. As at 31 December 2014, the net assets
of these subsidiaries amounting to RMB99,352,000 (2013: RMB132,847,000).

38. LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as a lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments as follows:

—B-NFE —T—=F
2014 2013
AR®BTT AR®BTRL
RMB'000 RMB'000

—FR Within one year 36,571 65,518
FoFEFERT(REEREME) In the second to fifth year inclusive 52,262 180,288
hFE After five years 5,345 285,367

94,178 531,173

AEERFEHERENREVEEEA
PNF—2+—F(ZFT—=ZF: —F
ZHRIMERTOER - REMENHEL
HAEIARHESER > MIXAESAEE
PRI EXBETEDLERE -

fBiEERR (KRB BRAR | —ZT—NFEFR

The investment properties held by the Group for rental purpose have
committed tenants from one to eleven years (2013: one to twenty
years). Lease of an investment property has clauses of contingent
rentals determined by a certain percentage of turnover earned by the
tenant.
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38. HEZHw)

AEBERAEEA

RBEER - AEERBETATHEELE
MARBRHEEMESZNHRRKER
ERFWT -

38. LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

The Group as a lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
leased properties as follows:

—g-mEF —T-=F

2014 2013

ARETT AR®BTT

RMB'000 RMB’000

—FNR Within one year 10,049 4,508
F_FEFLF(BEEEWNEF) In the second to fifth year inclusive 10,562 1576
heF& After five years - 59
20,611 6,143

REMENFTEARERETHAE
ERMNMEE - HENELNO TR
R—E=F(ZT—=F: —E+%)-
HERZERE s A MRETE -

39. &I
RIRAEHRR - NEEEAR TFIEE

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated for an average
term of one to three years (2013: one to ten years) and rentals are
fixed at the date of signing of lease agreements.

39. COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
commitments:

—E-mE —FT=F

2014 2013
AR¥TR AR®TT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EETRMEARNEG A MBEHRER Expenditure in respect of acquisition of land use rights
BB BBUE T E FAERRISZ  contracted for but not provided for in
the consolidated financial statements 2,853,928 3,360,470
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;AR \,\ﬁ
AEER-_ZT—NE+-_A=+—
M&%$%l8ﬁ$%%aﬁ
MEBETERREHOARE
2,761,637,0007t(ZE—=4F : A
R #977,717,00070 ) B #ER - &

RAEFRA  AEEZEWHE
RE KD HER Y PR R F

BEX BARAREERREMIN

TTEKM AR/ - R ET MY
FEANRER -_ZT-—NOF+_-A
=t+— BWERA MBI ER A E
MBI -

$El“§>—%ﬁ—ﬁhﬁﬁﬁ
EAEBRNERUD —F——
FA - %L%%aﬁﬁ*ﬁ&

PEHMNNEHHEMRZEEEB RA
ARAIETHBARREHOARE
40,600,000 7T HY R £ B B F &
R EFEEAAINERZRERAR
BHORES  MEBHRITEE
BEANSIZFUARBHRES KA R
TREEEROFE - REBAIR
1T#5 8 40 A R ¥ 21,768,000 7T A

T—TF+_RAEHTRLES
ﬁm@lﬁ/\%ﬂﬂuﬁﬂ o bigmE—F
BMARERE EZADELREIA
Bt AEEEARZEEEREEX
49 A R ¥ 25,985,000 7T ° % &K
HERFRZEEE - #E=F

—MET=A=+—B - RERSF
HERERBE-T—=F =7
=+ AWERHBTERARE

21,758,0007T 2 2 ©

—FF R

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(i)

(ii)

The Group provided guarantees amounting to approximately
RMB2,761,537,000 (2013: RMB977,717,000) as at 31 December
2014 in respect of mortgage bank loans granted to purchasers of
the Group's developed properties. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the fair values of these financial guarantee
contracts of the Group are insignificant at initial recognition and
the directors of the Company consider that the possibility of the
default of the parties involved is remote, accordingly, no value
has been recognised at the inception of the guarantee contracts
and on the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2014.

The Group was involved in a legal dispute with a construction
contractor. In April 2011, a construction fee dispute claim of
approximately RMB40.6 million, which included amounts of
outstanding construction fee and performance bond, plus
penalty in respect of outstanding construction fee and interest
in respect of performance bond and outstanding construction
fee, was brought by the construction contractor against
certain subsidiaries of the Company in relation to a property
development project in Suzhou, the PRC. The Group’s bank
balance of approximately RMB21,768,000 was held in custody
of the People’'s Court of the Qingpu district in Shanghai, the PRC
since December 2010. The case has been decided by Shanghai
No. 2 Intermediate People’s Court (M E =R FEARER)
that an amount of approximately RMB25,985,000 was required
to be paid to the construction contractor. Such amount has been
fully paid during the year. Up to 31 December 2014, the legal
proceeding has been finalised and the restricted bank deposit of
RMB21,758,000 as at 31 December 2013 has been released.
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40. IAREE @)

(i) FR - AEBBRBEBFMN G EIE
W% S EEBER ORI
B REMAIENRIBERRTE
o ARTHEEREZSHED
AV EHIEINRIBERRTERE
T E IR IR B (7 B 3 3R i
BOHER R _E—NFE+—A
=+—H AEEYHEHEALLYE
HIRTT B FUR M IR D B R A H A
AR#51,997,278,0007T °

41. URBXNHRS

a. HBHRARBEANRGEBTE

RE B EIR DR E R A ) 2R 8l
(RBERBERZF LW ZZELERT)
(Tt BREETEI D) IR —F—TF+ =
ARMABMKRARER _—FTLEFR
AT N BEBHRBERRMNH &R
T R B2 RN ET ) o RIRRX D BER) AT
g AAREBRBRRESMH LR
AR AR R Bt ([ R A |) B
AEBETREERER - Bip R
FNEMARGAKESE TREREMEL
H BRI 45 T E2R) -
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40.

(iif)

41.

a.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES continued)

During the year, the Group's joint venture companies in respect
of the development Hangzhou Greenland CIFI Glorious City
and Shanghai Henderson CIFI Center have utilised offshore
and onshore bank loans. The Company provided guarantees on
several basis covering its respective equity shares of outstanding
obligations under the offshore and onshore bank loans incurred
by the joint venture companies developing these projects. As
at 31 December 2014, the Group’'s aggregate share of such
guarantees provided in respective of loans incurred by these joint
ventures amounted to approximately RMB1,997,278,000.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

Pre-IPO share award scheme

The Group's Pre-IPO share award scheme, as amended in accordance
with the proposed listing on the Stock Exchange, (the “Share Award
Scheme”) was adopted in December 2010 and then replaced the Pre-

IPO share award scheme originally adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 19 May 2007. Under the Share Award Scheme, Mr. Lin
Zhong, a controlling shareholder and director of the Company, awards

the Company's shares (the “Awarded Shares”) held by him to certain
employees of the Group. The objective of the Share Award Scheme is
to recognise the contributions of certain employees of the Group and

to incentivise them.
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—E—=%F: AR¥7,724,0007T) K
ggo

fBiEERR (KRB BRAR | —ZT—NFEFR

41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(Continued)

a. Pre-IPO share award scheme (Continued)

Under the Share Award Scheme, the total percentage of equity
interest in respect of which Awarded Shares had been granted on 31
December 2010 was 3.25% of the issued capital of the Company to
be incorporated in connection with the proposed listing on the Stock
Exchange. The Awarded Shares, subject to a vesting period, are being
held by the trust on behalf of the grantees. The vesting period is four
years, from the beginning of each instalment, during which 25% of
the Award Shares granted to employee will vest on each anniversary
of the first vesting date in equal portions. The first vesting date is 1
January of the year following the Company to be successfully listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The fair value of the Awarded Shares granted under the Share Award
Scheme at 31 December 2010 was RMB58,000,000, and was
determined by using a mix of asset-based and market approach. The
significant inputs into the model were estimated fair value of shares
at the grant date and estimated price-to-book ratio. The price-to-book
ratio is estimated by reference to comparable listed companies on the
Stock Exchange engaged in property development in the PRC.

The Awarded Shares are contingent at grant date and are subject to
the cancellation in the event of resignation of the grantees; and the
vesting conditions of successful listing of the Company’s shares on
the Stock Exchange and satisfactory performance of such employee
based on his or her annual performance appraisal. During the year
ended 31 December 2014, the Group recognised an expense in
relation to the Awarded Shares granted to certain employees of
the Group amounting to approximately RMB4,437,000 (2013:
RMB7,724,000).

187



B3 4 1 85 R W ik

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41. ARG ANRS @) 41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)
a. HRALHAREARGREBIE(E) a. Pre-IPO share award scheme (Continued)
FAGFERDGERRGEDT The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the year are
as follows:
HZED
RinEE

Number of 53 /& {515
share awards Vesting Conditions

KT EERERRD 136,500,000 25% 5 —E—=F—A—ARRE=_ZT—~F+-_A=+—HI
- ZE—TF+_A=1+—H 25% from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2016

Share Award granted to employees: 5% -_E—NF—A—HEE-_T—+F+-_A=+—HIt
—on 31 December 2010 25% from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2017

B%E_E—RF—A—BRE-_ZE—N\F+_A=+—HIt

25% from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2018
B%A_FT—RF-A-—HRBRE-ZE-NF+-A=1+—RHIt
25% from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2019

BENENZARATEEIMEES) ©  The movements of the Company’s share awards held by employees
during the year:

RENRH 2B
Number of share awards

R_Z—MmF R_ZE—MmF

—A—H +-A=1+—8
BTSN RERNREB BITHS
Outstanding Vested Outstanding
FH B as at during as at
Grant date 1 January 2014 the year 31 December 2014
BRI —E-EF+-A=+—H 102,375,000 (34,125,000) 68,250,000

Share awards 31 December 2010
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41. BRBZANRS

put;

a. BARLRABEANRMDERE (R

41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(Continued)
a. Pre-IPO share award scheme (Continued)

REA 2B

Number of share awards
RZT—=%F RZT—=%F
—H—H +=ZA=+—~H
BTSN RENETE BTSN
Outstanding Vested Outstanding
=g as at during as at
Grant date 1 January 2013 theyear 31 December 2013
HER D —T-TF+-HA=1—H 136,500,000 (34,125,000) 102,375,000

Share awards

31 December 2010

b. [BIRETE
BERARAIR-_ZE-—_F+ANLBEKA
R AT 8l ([ B AERTE ) - B
BELEEREECBETNERESE
Bt HREREAZELR/ATZENK
2% (QRARBRAFARARZEEZNE
B(ZAAREXR  [EHNBEHIER
PrERRINABRMDKWHE () ERR
#) B AR 5B & 3 A B AT B R A 51 AR
ARRBEFEHRHE(EEEEAM
YRR R R £ BT B R = 5k A /Y
WHE  MARFREREX A A A E
BERAARLTM) 0 RC)ANRARBMDHE
18 -

BRI B IGAE AT B R AR Rl H b BE AR
EFTES TERENMEBRERTER
A FEITHRMDEBE - BRIEARFTRE
IRERFTHOEAEF LR - FRITSHEA
& #£577,000,000 & D (= E—=4F -
577,000,000% f% 7 ) + HERAKNFEH A
IR BT BEAI10% °

fBiEERR (KRB BRAR | —ZT—NFEFR

b. Share option scheme

Pursuant to the share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”)
adopted by the Company on 9 October 2012, the directors may invite
participants to take up options at a price determined by the board of
directors provided that it shall be at least the highest of (a) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date on which an offer is made by the Company to the
grantee (which date must be a business day, “Offer Date”); (b) a price
being the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the Offer Date (provided that
the offer price shall be used as the closing price for any business day
falling within the period before listing of the shares of the Company
where the Company has been listed for less than five business days
as at the Offer Date); and (c) the nominal value of a share of the
Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed
577,000,000 (2013: 577,000,000) shares, representing 10% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date of this annual report
unless the Company obtains a fresh approval from the shareholders to
refresh the limit.
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RO HHRS )

b. BRETE(®)
BRBRERARRIRERE FBITHE
Sh - REMI2EABER - BusEE
EITE R BB SR B RE (R
BETHEREARITEBRE) MEEITR
BFEITHROBER LR - THBEE
BITIRID A % o

ARATTEEZENREZENEEE R
MEARANBREDSENTORERA
AR R B At SRR T RE M - % 18
BN BN H B B 0F ARfER -

MtIEREEREBEE-T—=F+=A4
“+—ALEFEERY  c ZEBREMND
FEDEAZEAEL;E - X0
AT -

41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(Continued)

b. Share option scheme (Continued)

The maximum entitlement for any one participant is that the total
number of the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted under the Share Option Scheme to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue
unless otherwise approved by the shareholders at a general meeting
of the Company.

The option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during the option period which may
be determined and notified by the board of directors to the grantee at
the time of making an offer which shall not expire later than 10 years
from the grant date.

Two tranches of share options have been granted during the year
ended 31 December 2013. Fair value of these share options were
calculated using the binomial model. The inputs into the model were as
follows:

AT B E3R i e B Ak i
Share options granted on

—F—=F —T—=F

—R=Z+/XB +AZ=+AhA

26 February 29 October

2013 2013

R B AR (B Grant date share price HK$158587C  HK$1.518 7T
TEE Exercise price HK$1.684%87C  HK$1.558 7T
TEEREFHA Expected life Note Fff5E Note B &E
TEHRR I8 Expected volatility 60% 57%
Hﬁ s = Dividend yield 2.53% 2.65%
[2 Bz 1| = Risk-free interest rate 0.624% 0.830%

e - AARMEEO TG SRR (S I+ T EEAERD), 2
MEREE -
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Note: Expected life of the option is calculated by the formula of (vesting period + exercise
period)/2.
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b. MBREE(®)

FEHDR IR TR IR AT B LA R A B 3
MELKBETE GEEEEBEHEME
T BAPNEHMEHCREN A EE
- TERRITAERRENZEM
TR FHEE

R-ZE—NFE+=—_A=+—8 " REE
MRREET &I 2 5 R M AR TT 0 60 B AR i P
R %15 88 B 302,400,000 (=F
— =4F : 302,400,0008%) » {hARRQ AR

—%—@$+—H:+—E%ﬁﬁam
5% (ZF—=F :5%) °
R-E—Z=ZF_A-+"BER-_ZT—=

FHAZ+TNBERENERESGBTD
SE{ED B A AR 78,388,0007T & AR
#71,393,0007T °

BRENTTERENT

41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(Continued)
b. Share option scheme (Continued)
Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of
the daily return of comparable companies. The expected life used in
the model has been adjusted, based on management'’s best estimate,
for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

The number of shares in respect of which options had been granted
and remained outstanding under the Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2014 was 302,400,000 (2013: 302,400,000), representing
5% (2013: 5%) of the shares of the Company as at 31 December
2014.

The estimated fair values of the options granted on 26 February
2013 and 29 October 2013 are RMB78,388,000 and RMB71,393,000
respectively.

The exercisable period of the share options is as follows:

RoE—=F—"F - +/,NB e

Share options granted on 26 February 2013

%% RZE-—MOFLtA—BRE YE-_T—NFLA—AEZE 25%: vested on 1 July 2014 and exercisable from
—E-)\FA=ZFTHATE 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2018

5% RZE—AF+tA—BREE YBE-T—hFtHA—HRE 25%: vested on 1 July 2015 and exercisable from
—E-)\FAA=FTHATE 1 July 2015 to 30 June 2018

5% R_F—R"FEtA—BBE VE-ZT—"FtH—HEE 25%: vested on 1 July 2016 and exercisable from
—E-N\EXA=THATE 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2018

%% RZE—+FLtA—BRE ¥YE-_T—tFLA—AEZE 25%: vested on 1 July 2017 and exercisable from
—E-\FA=ZFTHATE 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018

RIZZE—=F+AZ TN BRLHNOERE Share options granted on 29 October 2013

5% RZE—MFE+A—BHEE YBE-_ZT—NF+tHA—HiE 25%: vested on 1 July 2014 and exercisable from
—E-)\FA=THATE 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2018

%% RZE—hF+tA—BREE YBE-T—hFtH—HRE 25%: vested on 1 July 2015 and exercisable from
—ZE-N\FRA=THATE 1 July 2015 to 30 June 2018

%% RZE— X F+tA—HBEEB YTE_ZT— FtA—HEE 25%: vested on 1 July 2016 and exercisable from
—E-)\FENA=ZFTHATE 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2018

5% R—E—tF+tA—BEE VBT —+tFtHA—HEE 25%: vested on 1 July 2017 and exercisable from
“E-)\FA=THATE 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018

B (RE)BRAR | T HFEFH
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41. AIBRBZNHRS ) 41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)

b. ﬁ%ﬂx%ﬂri ) b. Share option scheme (Continued)

REBREZE-ZT—MNFE+-A=+—  The Group recognised the total expense of RMB61,574,000 (2013:

HIEFERARD ﬂ?xﬁ BIBEPLHERERRT  RMB36,581,000) for the year ended 31 December 2014 in relation to

S EEE A NREE61,574,000T( ZZF—= share options granted by the Company.

F : AR¥36,581,0007T) °

BB
EIEHE TFEE HESER
Number of Contractual life
Options  Exercisable period of options
BE-2-=F+-A=t-HL
FERS:
Granted during the year ended
31 December 2013:
BETEENERE 2400000 256%  NZE—NE+A—HEBEE YE-_ZT—NF @HEF
-RZE—=F-A=1+"H tﬂ HREZZ—\FEA=1THATTE 4years
Share Options granted to directors: 25%: vested on 1 July 2014 and exercisable
—on 26 February 2013 from 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2018

5% R_E-HF+A—BRE YE_T—1F NF
+tA—ABEZZT-N\FA=TRHATE 4years
25%: vested on 1 July 2015 and exercisable from
1 JuIy 2015 to 30 June 2018
26% R E—A"FLtA—HEE YBE-ZT—X~F @HEF
tﬂ HREZZT—\FEA=1THATE 4years
25%: vested on 1 July 2016 and exercisable from
1 JuIy 2016 to 30 June 2018
25% R-_ZE—+Ft+tHA-BRE UB-_T—+F WEF
Jcﬂ HBREZZ—N\FA=THAUTE 4years
25%: vested on 1 July 2017 and exercisable from
1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018

—T-=FtAZTNH 5100000 25% : R=F—MF+A—HHEE WE-_T—NF NF
—mwmmmmm tﬂ HRZE=% A¢AH THATE 4years
25%: vested on 1 July 2014 and exercisable from
1 July 2014 to 30 June 2018
25% : R_ZE—hFLtA—BHRBE TE-T—HF WF
TtA-—HREZZT-N\FXA=THATE 4years
25%: vested on 1 July 2015 and exercisable from
1 July 2015 to 30 June 2018
6% RZEBE—A"FLA—HEB YBE-ZT—X F WEF
tA-BRE-ZT-\FR A= +HTﬁﬁ 4 years
25%: vested on 1 July 2016 and exercisable from
1 July 2016 to 30 June 2018
25%  R_E—+F+A—BRE TE_T—+F NOF
tﬂ HREZZ—\FEXA=1THATTE 4years
25%: vested on 1 July 2017 and exercisable from
1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018
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b. MBREE(®)

41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(Continued)
b. Share option scheme (Continued)

BIREHE
Number of
Options

il

Exercisable period

AR
HESE=1
Contractual life
of options

BT EENBRE :

Share options granted to employees:
—-RIZE-—=FZ"A=1+<H
—on 26 February 2013

-RZE—=F+A=1+NH
—on 29 October 2013

150,000,000

144,900,000

25% R_T—NFEtA—BRE YB_T—MNF
+tA—BREZF-N\FA=THATE
25%: vested on 1 July 2014 and exercisable from
1 July 2014 to 30 June 2018
TRIZE-hFLA-HBBE YB-FT—0F
+tA-BRE_ZE-N\FA=Z+THATE
25%: vested on 1 July 2015 and exercisable from
1 July 2015 to 30 June 2018
26% R BE—-A~"FLHA—HHRE T8-S —~F
+tHA—BRE-_E-N\F-A= ‘f‘ HAl{7f#
25%: vested on 1 July 2016 and exercisable from
1 July 2016 to 30 June 2018
RZZE—+5+tA—AEE UBE-T—+F
tA-AREZZ-\FRA=THATRE
25%: vested on 1 July 2017 and exercisable from
1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018

25%

25% :

R-ZZE-HF+A—REE YE_T—NF
+A—HBREZE-N\FA=THAUTE
25%: vested on 1 July 2014 and exercisable from
1 July 2014 to 30 June 2018
R-E-RFHA-RRE - YE_T—RF
+A-BRE_ZE-N\FAA=+THATE
25%: vested on 1 July 2015 and exercisable from
1 July 2015 to 30 June 2018
6%  RZE— A FtA—HEB YBE-_ZT—F
‘tﬂ HEE-Z-N\F1 A= "f’Ei—Jﬂﬁ
25%: vested on 1 July 2016 and exercisable from
1 July 2016 to 30 June 2018
RIZE—LFLA-HBBE YB-_FT—*tF
+A—HBREZE-N\FA=THUTE
25%: vested on 1 July 2017 and exercisable from
1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018

25% :

25%

25%

itk

4 years

o4

4 years

P

4 years

itk

4 years

o4

4 years

o4

4 years

I

4 years

o4

4 years

RZE—NF+ZA=+—HRK

T =F+ A=+ HREREAE
Total share options at 31 December 2014 and

31 December 2013

302,400,000

R_Z—mET—A=1—ATFE

Exercisable at 31 December 2014

75,600,000

—F =1 _A=1—RATOE

Exercisable at 31 December 2013

B (RE)BRAR | T HFEFH
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42. BBA RS R EEH% 42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

ANEBFRNEELBEE T EITIATEAZ  During the year, the Group entered into the following significant

Z transactions with its related parties:

(a) E—FEREBATHEWE (a) Sales of properties to a related company

—E-mE ZE-=F
2014 2013
ARMTT ARETE
RMB'000 RMB'000

HEEIIREEEAR AR (ME1)  Shanghai Fukai Investment Management Co., Ltd. (note 1)

(HMARLE  HEXER (company controlled by Mr. Lin Zhong, Mr. Lin Wei and
FRIE S A PRI A F)) Mr. Lin Feng) - 33,331
(b) RE—EEBHATNESKRA (b) Rental income from a related company

—E-mE ZEB-=F
2014 2013
ARMTT ARETE
RMB'000 RMB'000

BBEHREEEAER AR (1) Shanghai Jianpu Investment Management Co., Ltd. (note 1)
(AR SEAE - MBS E RARIES A (company controlled by Mr. Lin Zhong, Mr. Lin Wei and
S AT]) Mr. Lin Feng) 1,400 -
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42. BBERZ RiEER 42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(c) MARA—RBEFN BB AT (c) Depositreceived from pre-sales of properties to a director of the

BEMEWRNES Company and a related company

—2-mE —T—=fF
2014 2013
AR¥TRT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
PRIg S Mr. Lin Feng 800 -

HERBIREEEARAR(MFE1)  Shanghai Jianpu Investment Management Co., Ltd. (note 1)

(MR LAE « IMELRER (company controlled by Mr. Lin Zhong, Mr. Lin Wei and

MRS AEESI A R]) Mr. Lin Feng) 200 _

(d) JEU (FERT) A aizpepassks  (d) Particulars of the amounts due from (to) Jiaxing Xucai, a related
%M&E}J S K R A R B RE B A T company in which Mr. Lin Zhong, a controlling shareholder and
SHEBRIERES ¢ director of the Company, has control:

—E-NE ZT—=F
2014 2013
ARETT ARETRT
RMB'000 RMB'000

Hofth & I 32 BB # 5K00R Other receivables from Jiaxing Xucai 17,000 -
REREBEANESHKA Rental receivable from Jiaxing Xucai - 14,203
Y EEERHEERS Rental deposit received from Jiaxing Xucai - (6,000)
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42. BBERZ RiEER 42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(e) FEW EFEEOLER—MEZL (e) Amounts due from/to joint ventures and an associate

RRIE
—E-mE —T—=F
2014 2013
AR¥TRT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000
EW HERBEERRARIFUE Amounts due from Shanghai Luxu Property Co., Ltd. - 93,833
JEWEEIBIRE X B R D AIFIE Amounts due from Wuhan Xucheng
Property Co., Ltd. 251,963 12
e R IR 2 EMER I ER A TIZIE  Amounts due from Tianjin Xujin Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. - 129,805
FEWCHR Y= BB R AR A TIZIE  Amounts due from Hunan Wuhua Investment Ca., Ltd. 16,420 -
EWAL R E R EX AR ARZRIE  Amounts due from Beijing Xuhui Dangdai Property Co., Ltd. 51,471 -
FEUCBIE AR A R 2 IE (B 5E3) Amounts due from Xu Zheng Co., Ltd. (note 3) 239,100 -
FEN B 22 B IE (FTEE3) Amounts due from Xu An (note 3) 455,000 -
R K 2t 40 R IE Amounts due from Tianjin Shijixing 27,700 -
1,041,654 223,650
e BB IBE X AR ARIFIA Amounts due to Shanghai Luxu Property Co., Ltd. 191,767 506,100
AR ERIEEE AR ARFUE Amounts due to Wuhan Xucheng Property Co., Ltd. - 148,078
JERTERMBIG B 2GR A RIFIA Amounts due to Suzhou Xuyang Property Co., Ltd. 465,400 512,850
fEf EBBEREEXE AR ARFIEA Amounts due to Shanghai Xukang Property Co., Ltd. 298,230 22,730
JERTBZ 28 (M7E3) Amounts due to Xu An (note 3) 1,291,509 -
FERT BB R IE (FT3E3) Amounts due to Xu Bao (note 3) 1,070,537 -
EEHB B EEER AT FHIEA Amounts due to Shanghai Xincheng Xudi Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. 420,451 -
FERHE BB KR E BEERATIZKIE Amounts due to Beijing Xuhui Yong Tong Chang
Property Co., Ltd. 39,251 -
FERTHEMEREHREERATFIE  Amounts due to Hunan Wuhua Investment Co., Ltd. 60 -
e RN R EHERZE AR AT FE  Amounts due to Tianjin Xujin Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. 541,490 -
JERTBIEARR A B FUE (H5E3) Amounts due to Xu Zheng Co., Ltd. (note 3) 596,369 -
e K =t 40 IR Amounts due to Tianjin Shijixing 11,661 -

4,926,725 1,189,758

JEUWTEMAEDER—MEBZ AR The amounts due from/to certain joint ventures and an associate are
HAEER 2B RAREREER - unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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42. BEBAERZ K&tk

put;

() REANENRENETIEARFTES
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43. EXRRABER
AREEEBEEAUERAEBETE
RENHELCE  RNBEBREERE
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(f)  The remuneration paid and payable to the key management
personnel of the Group who are also the directors of the
Company for the year is set out in note 11.

Note 1: The English names of these companies represent the best effort made by

management of the Company to directly translate their Chinese names as they did not
register any official English names.

Note 2: The Group entered into a lease agreement with Jiaxing Xucai for a term of fifteen

years in respect of an investment property in June 2011, RMB6,000,000 was received
from Jiaxing Xucai as the deposit of the lease at 31 December 2013 and 2012,
respectively. Rental income, calculated on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease agreement, from this operating lease with Jiaxing Xucai of RMB1,625,000
(2013: RMB19,620,000) was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2014. The
lease agreement was terminated during the year and the rental deposit was refunded
accordingly.

Note 3: Included are certain amounts due from/to wholly-owned subsidiaries of the joint

ventures.

43. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 27 net of cash and cash equivalents,
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital,
and take appropriate actions to balance its overall capital structure.

197



B 5 S 5 R WY ik

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

44. TETHE

(a) BAEHBE

ERSELREE 2RMAEBEREAT
AFTRBMEASHBE (BEERME
%) FrENEERKARASHERE
HER BN B RE -

(b) &I AMESH

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies adopted, including the
criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on
which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class
of financial assets, financial liabilities and equity instruments are
disclosed in note 3.

(b) Categories of financial instruments

—E-—ME —T—=F
2014 2013
AR¥TRT AR®TT
RMB’000 RMB'000
ERMEE Financial assets
AEHERE Available-for-sale investment 54,023 54,023
ERRERFIE(BERE R Loans and receivables (including cash and
REEEY) cash equivalents) 12,004,518 10,116,810
Gz =R Financial liabilities
B Amortised cost 24,219,285 19,860,000
AESTET A Embedded derivatives -~ 82,000

(c) MERBEEBEREE
AEENTESRTITABEAHIEER
B BSREGR - HMEYRHRIEA - X
[REFEE  SEPRITER - RITER
RS - BN FEERRER IR -
R FER & & B K — R E R ER
R EHEMNFE - HMBENFIE R
TREMER - ERREMEFBEET
ETAREBARE - ZFLBM T AN
BENEEME B ESRTAEH
B L e % ] R AR % 5 L e O B R D
wr e EEEEEREERERR -
RN B G RO BREUE & 1546
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(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investment, trade receivables, other receivables, restricted cash,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, amounts due from/to
non-controlling interests, amounts due from/to joint ventures and an
associate, trade payables, other payables, bank and other borrowings,
trust and other loans related derivatives and senior notes. Details of
these financial instruments are set out in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Market risk

The Group's activities expose primarily to the market risks of changes
in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and other price risk
(see below).

There has been no significant change to the Group's exposure to
market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk
over the year.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due to the
fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on bank deposits and
bank and other borrowings which carry at variable rates based on the
interest rates quoted by the People’s Bank of China plus a premium.

The Group's fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to its fixed rate
amounts due to non-controlling interests, bank and other borrowings
and senior notes. The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However, the
management will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been prepared based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments (bank
balances and bank and other borrowings). The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis
point increase or decrease for bank and other borrowings and a 50
basis point increase or decrease for bank deposits are used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represent management’s assessment of the possible change
in interest rate in respect of bank and other borrowings and bank
deposits respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been increased/
decreased by 100 and 50 basis points in respect of bank and other
borrowings and bank deposits respectively and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s profit would increase/decrease by
approximately RMB10,643,000 (2013: RMB7,614,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2014.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Market risk (Continued)

Foreign currency risk management

The Group collects all of its revenue in RMB and most of the
expenditures including expenditures incurred in property sales as well
as capital expenditures are also denominated in RMB.

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign
currencies, hence exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arises. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had bank balances and cash,
bank and other borrowings and senior notes denominated in foreign
currencies as set out in notes 25, 27 and 29, respectively, which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

Foreign currency rate sensitivity

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in Renminbi against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% is
the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjust their translation at
the end of reporting period of 5% changes in foreign currency rates. A
positive number below indicates an increase in profit where Renminbi
strengthen 5% against the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening
of Renminbi against the relevant currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit and the balances below would be

negative.

—E-NE ZT—=F

2014 2013

AR¥TR AR®TET

RMB000 RMB'000

BT Hong Kong Dollars 359 14,538

=T United States Dollars 252,904 143,285
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Credit risk management

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’'s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and
financial guarantees issued by the Group is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the amount of
contingent liabilities disclosed in note 40. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the monitoring procedures are carried out to ensure that
follow up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each individual
trade and other receivables and amounts due from related companies
at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The amounts presented in
the consolidated statement of financial position are net of allowances
for bad and doubtful debts, estimated by the Group’'s management
based on prior experience and their assessment of the current
economic environment.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating
agencies or state-owned banks in the PRC.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the Group has
no significant concentration of credit risk, which exposure spread over
a number of counterparties and customers.

For properties that are presold but development has not been
completed, the Group typically provides guarantees to banks in
connection with the customers’ borrowing of mortgage loans to
finance their purchase of the properties for an amount up to 70% to
80% of the purchase price of the individual property. If a purchaser
defaults on the payment of its mortgage during the period of
guarantee, the bank holding the mortgage may demand the Group
to repay the outstanding loan and any interest accrued thereon.
Under such circumstances, the Group is able to forfeit the sales
deposit received and re-sell the repossessed properties. Therefore,
the management considers it would likely recover any loss incurred
arising from the guarantee by the Group. The management considers
the credit risk exposure to financial guarantees provided to property
purchasers is limited because the facilities are secured by the
properties and the market prices of the properties are higher than the
guaranteed amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(f) Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding generated from operating activities and the flexibility through
the use of borrowings. The directors of the Company closely monitor
the liquidity position and expect to have adequate sources of funding
to finance the Group’s projects and operations.

The following table details the Group's expected remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s liquidity analysis
for its derivative financial instruments. The analysis for the Group's
derivative financial instruments are prepared based on the maturities
estimated by the management with reference to the progress of
property development projects.

R-2-1%

tZR=1-A FERBLR

HiREE a5

Carrying amount Total

ik at 31 December 02/60A 612/1808 18123657 1226 1BIE 3EBLE  undiscounted

Interest rate 2014 0-60days  61to180days  181to 365 days 1-2years 2-3years Over 3 years cash flows

ARBTT  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR ARBTR

RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

HTESREE Non-derivative financial liabilities

THE Non-interest bearing - 10,358,195 10,358,195 - - - - - 10,358,195

EEIA Fixed interest rate instruments 56%-123% 6,854,787 508,426 1010832 1392362 1,389,640 597,764 4673853 9512811

2EIE Variable interest rate instruments 6.2%-8.5% 7,006,303 1,164,238 2,296,545 3,285,962 4,130,600 1619571 3013832 15,570,754

BRER Financial guarantees - - 2761537 - - - 1997218 - 4,758,815
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(f) Liquidity risk (Continued)

RZE-=F%
+=A=t-H RUREEN
il &%
Carrying amount Total
il at 31 December 0l608 §13)180R 1812365 (EVES PENES SEALE undiscounted
Interest rate 2013 (0-60days  61to180days  181to 365 days 1-2 years 2-3 years Qver 3 years cash flows
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB1000 RMBI000 RMB1000 RMB'000 RMB1000 RMB'000 RMB1000 RMB'000
FiTEERER Non-derivative financial liabilities
TEt8 Non-interest bearing - 6,567,658 6,567,658 - - - - - 6,567,658
FEIE Fixed interest rate instruments 56%16.5% 5617379 89,7% 153844 1603753 1213598 902,414 3,137,900 7,101,304
#EIAR Variable interest rate instruments 45%-155% 7674963 133,930 309,076 1,171,968 2,086,513 362119 1836872 9,159,578
BHER Financial guarantegs - - 977917 - - - - - 977917
TETE-£E3E Derivative - net settlement
EERAMETBETETE  Trustand other loans related derivatives
(Wi3E) Note) - 82,000 - - 97299 - - - 9729
(M) EEREMAEFMBITETARIERMNTESRE (Note) The expected contractual cash outflow upon the maturity of the trust and other loans

HREMEATREAE
mEEKAERD

SEERIEA ARKRAE

M BRERENBEENEEREER
HFARERBRT  AEERELHEA

ERABNEZ2BEREENRSEHE - R
EEMERRNEAY  AEERREAR

BB REOB SR - AT - ZhE
AR T 5 F T IR BERIE L RER AT RE
EMARMRE - MiEh REMN R BRI
BORT S F 77 P 15 78 HEOR B 7% FE W 5R0R
HIREE R AT RENE -

B (RE)BRAR | T HFEFH

related derivatives are subject to change which are linked to the selling prices or
valuation of equity interest of the relevant project companies.

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the
maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed
by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the
end of each reporting period, the Group considers that it is more
likely than not that no amount will be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject to change depending on the
probability of the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is
a function of the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the
counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

203



B3 4 1 85 R W ik

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

44, E@T A @)
(g)

REEMERZUQAFEFENEE

EEmAENLQFE
AEEHF O ERABNEREHREQ
FEFE - TREAR=_ZFT—=F1=
A=t+—BABMAEEZSERAE
M AFEG IR ERNGETE NS

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(9)

Fair value of the Group’s financial liabilities that are

measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Some of the Group’s financial liabilities are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial liabilities are determined
as at 31 December 2013 (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and

ASIB)HER - inputs used).
RB-Zf
t=A=1-H BEEREA
WATE fEERER FERANTER
Fair value BN U4 EZRLBE B
asat  ATEME Valuation HAHE Relationship of
LRER 31 December  Fairvalue technique Significant unobservable inputs §EE
Financial liabilities 213 higrarchy and key input(s) unobservable inputs to fair value Sensitivity
ARBTR
RMB'000
RAASTETARNGARBRRR 82000 =8 Monte Carlo. EBEEEERAALE ABEEEERS - WEERANABEEER
AERERRAMETRETE MEEBERERCER NEERCK A/ TR - MEAEEM
I8 IZEABBAEE  hagE- SHERTE  BIRASS
BEEE EER ETAMRTERARIEM
M RBERE ARHE,800,0007 Felsl
AEE7.3000007T ©
Embedded derivatives classified as trust Level 3 Monte Carlo. The underlying asset value consisted  The higher the underlying I the underling asset value to the

and other loans related derivatives in
the consolidated statement of financial
position

The key inputs are:
underlying asset
value, risk free rate,
volatility discount rate

of the value of unsold properties asset value, the higher  valuation model is 5% higher/

and the total realised revenue of the fair value. lower, whilg all the other

the project. variables were held constant, the
fair value of embedded derivatives
would increase by RMBY,800,000
and decrease by RMB7,300,000
respectively.

KEASREARRERE KBRS ATE  WRELA/ TR WA
EABENRRNEREE AR EHEGERTE - BRA

{LEERE - NTNETRZE
WIT%

AFTETENATERAS
SEMAR 35000007 K
AYARE21000007 ©

If the volatilty is 5% higher/lower,
while all the other variables were
held constant, the fair value of
embedded derivatives would
increase by RMB3,500,000 and
decrease by RMB2,100,000
respectively.

Volatility is the adjusted annualised
standard deviation of the
continuously compounded rates of
daily return on the daily adjusted
share price, ranging from 39.67%
to 44.17%.

The higher the volatility,
the higher the fair
value.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(g) BETUHEELUAFEEMNAE (g) Fair value of the Group’s financial liabilities that are
EemEsEnN A TE®) measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)
R=B-=F
TZA=1-H EEEZHA
WAYE hERER SEEATER
Fair value IEBEATE BERABE Iz
asat  ATERH Valuation AL Relationship of
SRER 31 December  Fairvalue technique Significant unobservable inputs BRI
Financial liabilities 2013 higrarchy and key input(s) unobservable inputs o fair value Sensitivity
ARETR
RMB'000

SZBUNELTERRE

ETABRcmERE
MERE - N TI98%E
275%

Discount rate for lack of
marketability, determined by
reference to the share price of
listed entities in similar industries,
ranging from 19.84% to 22.75%.

BERZTERDE MRRELA/ TR f

MEREDR - BEMESERTE - Al
NTEDIE - MNATETANATES
ARIFD ARE1020000070
TIE AR 11,500 0007 °
The higher the discount  If the discount rate is 5% higher/

rate for lack of
marketability, the
lower the fair value.

lower, while all the other variables
were held constant, the fair value
of embedded derivatives would
decrease by RMB10,200,000

and increase by RMB11,500,000
respectively.

BER-_ZE—=F+"HA=+—HHNM
SHE  ARANESTRARGE PR
REREBERATLENEREENSRE

BRREERIEQFE -

F-RETHMEEATVEHITENHEE

Based on the market data as at 31 December 2013, the directors of
the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated

financial statements approximate thei

r fair values.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial

liabilities

EREREMER
HBTETR
Trust and

other loans
related derivatives

AR¥T Tt
RMB’000
MN_E—NFE—HA—H At 1 January 2014 (82,000)
Bz Gain in profit or loss 4,000
I Y e BRANE NS Amount paid upon finalisation of floating premium 78,000
RZE—MFE+=A=+—H At 31 December 2014 -
BN (EEB)AR AR | —F—NFEFR 205
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45. AAFMEEER
(a) ERATDHBRROSEER :

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial
liabilities (Continued)

Of the total gains for the year included in profit or loss, RMB4,000,000
(2013: RMB3,000,000) relates to finalisation of floating premium of
trust and other loans related derivatives during the year.

45. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

(a) Financial information of the financial position of the

Company:

—E-mFE —T-=F
2014 2013
ARBTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - BERFE Property, plant and equipment 33 445
R B ATHIRE Investments in subsidiaries 842,151 610,247
FEU B~ RIFIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 6,826,116 4,813,350
7,668,300 5,424,042
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
R LS AR R % EL At P L KT Accounts and other receivables, deposits
e MBI RIE and prepayments 2,879 3,034
JEUE B ERIE Amounts due from joint ventures 13,949 -
IRITEB RIR S Bank balances and cash 405,078 1,241,590
421,906 1,244,624
RBERE CURRENT LIABILITIES
BRI ERTF X Accounts payables and accrued charges 25 25
FERHI B A B 5IE Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,056,441 1,032,287
FERHE B EIE Amounts due to joint ventures 546,179 -
1,602,645 1,032,312
RE(EB)EEEE NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES) ASSETS (1,180,739) 212,312
BEERRDE & TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 6,487,561 5,636,350
BARRGEE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
[N Share capital 487,896 487,896
fEE Reserves 707,866 1,079,726
RSB TOTAL EQUITY 1,195,762 1,567,622
FRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
BRERE Senior notes 4,356,950 3,137,901
RITER — —F1&EIH Bank borrowings — due after one year 934,849 930,831
5,291,799 4,068,732
6,487,561 5,636,354
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45. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
(b) FAREARRFEERE : (b) Movements of capital and reserves of the Company:
LA
BA  BROEE ERERE Capital ~ ZEHEHE
Share Share  Shareoption  contribution  Accumulated ek
capital premium reserve reserve osses Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARBT:R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R-E-=F—F—-H At1 January 2013 467,370 1,086,735 - 25,307 (85,318) 1,464,094
FABEREERTER Loss and total comprehensive expense
for the year - - - - (64,040) (64,040)
B1nEeT Issue of shares 20,526 2813171 - - - 307,903
TR AR R A E W LARR (1950 Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments - - 36,581 1,124 - 44,305
ERRE Dividend paid - (184,640) - - - (184,640)
RZE-—=F+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2013 487,8%6 1159472 36,581 33,031 (149,358) 1,567,622
ENEBRRZERZESE Loss and total comprehensive expense
for the year - - - - (104,601) (104,601)
DB ERS & E AR Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments - - 61,574 4437 - 66,011
BRRE Dividend paid - (333.270) - - - (333,270)
R-E-M&E+-A=1+—-A At 31 December 2014 487,396 826,202 98,155 37,468 (253,959) 1,195,762
(c) RHMIBATKIKRE (c) Investments in subsidiaries
—E-mE ZT-=F
2014 2013
AR¥TRT ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB’000
IE TR (EHEERAR) Unlisted share, at deemed cost 842,151 610,247

(d)

BB E & o

FE Uk (FEAY) B BB 22 TR IR

(d)

and no fixed repayment term.

B (RE)BRAR | T HFEFH

Amounts due from (to) subsidiaries
EUW(EMA B ATZRIEA®EILM « %  The amounts due from (to) subsidiaries are unsecured,

interest-free
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(e) MEW(EFM)EERERE
R (BN A2 REFASELRN %
BNBRBERER -

(f) SRITER

R-_T——F KRR —FEBRITEA
—EF BERAR469,800,0007T * 1#
SEETFAE12(8A - 1321818 A R 19%E24
RAMNEMESRIASE - 10EK12E -
BEXBARRREEREAMN15,128,000
BRARNBROET  WHEKRRER
BEERRARER -

BRER R ERN EHRER - RITH
RER_ZT—=FREEE -

R-ZZ—=FtAN\B  ARa({EAE
KAV EARBI G THERBAR(ER
MPERAN) B—EHEHIE(ERER
ARV ER(ZE—=FREEZ D%
Feo T —FREERAREKEMNE
TEHIRENRBME - 4% 49156,500,000
XL oRAMBL W ELHrEH
75,000,000k 7T ¢ K ()BT H 2 & £
636,000,000 T * XEBEXRHAABE =
T - —FIREERBHF LB BB =
F o WIEBBRITRAEREE(BFTAER
1TRIZES B R N6 65FEMEF|RETE -
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45. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
(e) Amounts due from (to) joint ventures
The amounts due from (to) joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

(f) Bank borrowing

In 2011, the Company borrowed from a bank for a fixed-rate
borrowing of RMB469,800,000 at 8%, 10% and 12% per annum
for first 12 months, 13 to 18 months and 19 to 24 months,
respectively as stipulated in the agreement. The loan was secured
by 115,128,000 shares of the Company beneficially owned by the
Ultimate Shareholders and guaranteed by the shareholder companies
beneficially owned by the Ultimate Shareholders.

Such security and guarantee were released upon the Listing. The bank
borrowing was fully repaid in 2013.

On 8 July 2013, the Company as borrower, and certain offshore
subsidiaries of the Company as initial guarantors, entered into a
facility (2013 Syndicated Loan") agreement with a group of financial
institutions as lenders. The 2013 Syndicated Loan is a dual-currency
term loan facility with an aggregate amount of approximately
US$156.5 million divided into two tranches: (i) United States dollars
tranche with an aggregate amount of US$75 million; and (ii) Hong
Kong dollars tranche with an aggregate amount of HK$636 million,
with final maturity of three years from the date of the 2013 Syndicated
Loan agreement and interest of LIBOR or HIBOR plus 5.65% per
annum.
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46. TEMBARFE
AARNTERBARNR-_Z—MF K Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2014

—E-=F+A=1+—HANFBEET

and 2013 are set out below:

46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

LU
r5E
R+ZR=+—-H
RAUTZAYE:LE ) Felb kg
=p: Equity interest attributable to BRIRARRE S2E
HENBARLHE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of direct subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
“B-mEF —ZT-=F
2014 2013
% %
JBRBRRA EERUES 100 100 dMER  &E REER
Xu Sheng Limited ZET-Z5HANE 50000%7  Hong Kong Investment holding
BvI 4 VNE
9May 2012 Registered USD50,000
paid up capital USD1
T5E
W+ZR=+-H
BauiZAvE:LE )4 Felb kg
A Equity interest attributable to BETREGERA  REHE
GRS Place and date of the Group at Issuedand fully paid ~~ Place of TEEH
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
~F-mF —F-=F%
2014 2013
% %
FTRERWEERARAR  HE 100 100 HMER  E MEER
(FizE) “ETCE ARE3000,0000t  PRC Property management
Beijing Xudong Property AA=1—H EHENR
Management Co., Ltd. note) PRC AR H3,000,0007C
31 May 2002 Registered
RIMB3,000,000
paid up capital
RMB3,000,000
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46. FEMBATFHB @

46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

T5E
“+=A=+-H
BRIAYE DY FelbkiE
At Equity interest attributable to BETRBRRA A2
S NGES Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“B-mEF —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
TRIBEBREXERAR T8 100 100 AfER FHERE
(Pfsr) —E-—F AE#10,0000007,  PRC Property development
Beijing Xuhui Shuntai Property +=A+-A EHEK
Co. Ltd. [note) PRC AR#10,000,0007T
11 December 2012 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
FTREEERESXERAT & 100 100 HHER FiERE
(M) 32— ARE100000000 RO Property development
Beijing Xuhui Shunxin Property +=A+=8 BEHEAR
Co., Ltd. (note PRC AR 100,000,000
12 December 2011 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
TREEGAERARAR  E 80 80 AR SE FHERE
(BizE) “T——F ARE1000000007T  PRC Property development
Beijing Xuhui Sunshine Property —A+=H BHEXR
Co., Ltd. note) PRC AR #£80,000,0007T
13 January 2011 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB80,000,000
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46. FEMBATFHB @

46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
AEHE
“+=A=+-H
BaAYE U= JE(h AE
At Equity interest attributable to BETRBRRA A2
kNGRS Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“B-mEF —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
TREBRBEXERAR HE 100 100 HftER HE FHERSE
(Fi3E) “2——F AEH100000007  PRC Property development
Beijing Xuhui Xingsheng Property ~NATAE EHEAR
Co. Ltd. [note) PRC AR#10,000,0007T
16 June 2011 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
ERENEEERAR (M) +E 100 100 AftER i FHERE
Beijing Xuke Property Co, Ltd (note) —Z—=4 ARE20,0000007c  PRC Property development
=A+ThE EHEXR
PRC AR E20,000,0007T
19 March 2013 Registered
RMB20,000,000
paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
EREEHERER A e 100 100 AMER  E FHERE
(BizE) “T——F AEE100000007T  PRC Property development
Beijing Xuxingcheng Property —A+=H EHER
Co., Ltd. note) PRC AR #£10,000,0007T
13 January 2011 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
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46. FEMBATFHB @

46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
T5E
“+=A=+-H
BRIAYE DY FelbkiE
At Equity interest attributable to BETRBRRA A2
kNGRS Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“B-mEF —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
tRIBEENEXERAR  TE 100 100 AMER  E FEHERE
(Fi3E) “EENEF AEH1000000007  PRC Property development
Beijing Xuhui Xingke Property NA+ZH EHEAR
Co., Ltd. (note] PRC AR H100,000,0007T
12 August 2009 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
TREEREESERAR  FE 100 100 HHER  hE FiERE
(M) “ETNF AR1000000007c  PRC Property development
Beijing Xuhui Xingteng Property NATZH BEER
Co., Ltd. (note PRC AR 100,000,000
12 August 2009 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
RAEEEEERAR e - 100 AR SE FHERE
(BizE) “T——F AEE100000007T  PRC Property development
Beijing Xuxinglong Property +ZA+-AH EHER
Co. Ltd. (note PRC ARE10,000,0007T
11 December 2012 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
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46. FEMBATFHB @

46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
T5E
W+ZR=+-H
BRIAYE DY FelbkiE
= Equity interest attributable to BRIRARRE Q2%
HEHBAREE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“B-mEF —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
ERKBERERAT] HE 100 100 aftEx  HE FHERSE
() —TTEE ARH20000007C  PRC Property development
Beijing Yongxu Property mARA EHEAR
Co., Ltd. (note PRC AR 20,0000007C
5 April 2004 Registered
RMB20,000,000
paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
IREREXERAR(ME) & 100 100 AftER i FHERE
Beijing Wangxin Property S ARE100000000  PRC Property development
Co, Ltd. (note) +=ANA EHEXR
PRC AE10,0000007C
8 December 2003 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
KORBEHERZARAR FH 100 100 iftaR R FHERE
(FizE) —T——F AEE100000007  PRC Property development
Changsha Dingzun Real Estate +=A~A8 BHER
Development Co. Limited note] ~ PRC AZ%10,000,0007C
6 December 2012 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
R\B10,000,000
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46. FEMBATFHB @

46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
AEHE
W+ZR=+-H
BaAYE U= TEfGHRIE
At Equity interest attributable to BETRBRRA A2
HEHBAREE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“B-mEF —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
EEMTRHEREERAR FE 100 100 aftEx  HE FHERSE
(BizE) —E-=F 290000000%7C  PRC Property development
Chongging Xuzhong Real Estate NA+RA EHEAR
Development Co., Ltd (note) PRC 168,539,9805% 7
19 August 2013 Registered
USD290,000,000
paid up capital
USD168,539,980
EEMNEHEREERAR +E 100 100 AftER i FHERE
(B3E) —T-CF AR#80000007T  PRC Property development
Changsha Xuhe Real Estate +-A=+=8 EHEXR
Development Co. Limited (note) ~ PRC AR H8,000,0007C
22 December 2012 Registered
RMBS8,000,000
paid up capital
RMB8,000,000
ROAFHEREARAR FH 100 100 AR FE FHERS
(PsE) —ETLF ARH500000007c  PRC Property development
Changsha Xuxiang Real Estate NB=+H BHER
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC A 50,000,007
20 August 2007 Registered
RMBA50,000,000
paid up capital
RMBS50,000,000
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46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
T5E
“+ZA=+-H
BRIAVEE Y FEfGHRIE
= Equity interest attributable to BRIRARRE S2uE
G INGEL Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
—E-mE —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
ERMEEHEREERLR TE 100 100 aftEx  HE FEHERE
(FizE) —ZTTF ARH800000007c  PRC Property development
Chongging Xupeng Real Estate +ANA EHEAR
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AR #80,000,0007C
4 July 2005 Registered
RIMB80,000,000
paid up capital
RIVIB80,000,000
BEEERHERAR () & 100 100 AMER  BE RERR
CIFl Group Co., Ltd. {note) —TTTF AR 600000000 PRC Investment holding
NA+RA ERER
PRC AR 600,000,000
15 August 2000 Registered
RMBG600,000,000
paid up capital
RMB600,000,000
JREREBRAF e 100 100 AMER BB RERR
CIFI Enterprises Co. Limited —E——F 10000%7c  Hong Kong Investment holding
RATZH ERETIATL
Hong Kong Authorised
12 May 2011 HK$10,000

paid up capital HK$1
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46. TEMBARFR @) 46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
T5E
W+ZR=+-H
BRIAYE DY TEfGHRIE
At Equity interest attributable to BETRBRRA A2
S NGES Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“B-mEF —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
EEMERNEREERAR +E 100 100 aftEx  HE FHERSE
(FizE) —E——F AR®200000007c  PRC Property development
Chongging Xuchang Real Estate =A+H8 EHEAR
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AR 20,000,007
10 March 2011 Registered
RMB20,000,000
paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
ROBERMEREERAR PE 100 100 AfMER  HE EHERS
(M) —2——f ARE100000000 RO Property development
Changsha Xuhai Real Estate ~ATH EHEXR
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AR 100,000,000
10 June 2011 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
ROMESEHERE e 100 100 AMER  E FHERE
BRAR K —2——f AEH100000000C  PRC Property development
Changsha Lilongchang Real Estate L A7 A BHER
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC A 100,000,007
6 September 2011 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
R\B10,000,000

216 CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2014



46. FEMBATFHB @

46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
AEHE
“+=A=+-H
BaAYE U= JE(h AE
= Equity interest attributable to BRIRARRE Q2%
HEHBAREE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“B-mEF —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
BREBEFHEREERAR HE 100 100 afiEx  HE FEHERE
(KE) —T——F ARH2000000007T  PRC Property development
Hefei Xubin Real Estate Development  — A+M.B EHEAR
Co,, Ltd. [note) PRC AR #200,000,0007T
19 January 2011 Registered
RMB200,000,000
paid up capital
RMB200,000,000
EEEREHEREERAR FE 100 100 AftER i FiERE
(FitzE) —E-=f AEH100000007  PRC Property development
Hefei Xuwan Real Estate ~AtA BEHEAR
Development Co., Ltd note) PRC A 10,000,007
7 June 2013 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
MMBEEXERAR (i) +H 100 100 FMER  HE EiERE
Hangzhou Xuguang Property —E-=F ARE10000000  PRC Property development
Co., Ltd (note) ~NAZTE BHER
PRC AR #£10,000,0007T
20 June 2013 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
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46. FEMBATFHB @

46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
AEHE
“+=A=+-H
BaAYE U= JE(h AE
At Equity interest attributable to BETRBRRA A2
HEHBAREE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“B-mEF —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
HEREEHEREERLAR HE 80 80 AftER HE FHERSE
(Fi3E) —E-CF ARH35000000T  PRC Property development
Hunan Ronghui Real Estate +=-A+/N\R EHEK
Development Co., Ltd note) PRC AR 28,000,007
18 December 2012 Registered
RMB35,000,000
paid up capital
RMB28,000,000
EERERHEREERAR FE 100 100 AftER i FiERE
i3] S 3 ARH500000007T  PRC Property development
Hefei Xuhai Real Estate Development  +—F-+—=H BEHEAR
Co., Ltd. (note PRC AR 50,000,007
12 November 2007 Registered
RMB50,000,000
paid up capital
RMBA0,000,000
HERREXERARAA  PH 100 100 AR FE FHERS
(PsE) —EEREF ARH500000007c  PRC Property development
Hunan Longsheng Property TAZFAAE BHER
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC A 50,000,007
29 May 2006 Registered
RMBA50,000,000
paid up capital
RMBS50,000,000
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46. FEMBATFHB @

46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
T5E
W+ZRA=+-H
BaAYE U= JE(h AE
= Equity interest attributable to BRIRARRE S2uE
NG ESE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TREK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
—E-mE —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
BRNBIFEHEREERLA T 100 100 AMER  E FHERE
(Fi3E) —“TEMF ARE100000007T  PRC Property development
Fuzhou Wancheng Real Estate tA+mA EHEAR
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC A 10,000,007
14 July 2004 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
REBEHEERARLA  PE 100 100 AMER  E MEER
(Pfsr) —T——f AR50000000c  PRC Property management
Jiaxing Xumei Business Management  — A =+H BHEXR
Co., Ltd. note) PRC AR 5,000,0007T
20 January 2011 Registered
RMB5,000,000
paid up capital
RMB5,000,000
REREEXARAA(ME) HE 100 100 FfEx  HE FHERE
Jiaxing Xuling Property Co., Ltd (note) —F—=4 25500000%7C  PRC Property development
=ARA BEHER
PRC 25,500,000 7T
6 March 2013 Registered
USD25,500,000
paid up capital
1SD25,500,000
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46. FEMBATFHB @

46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
T5E
W+ZRA=+-H
BRIAVEE Y FElbkiE
A Equity interest attributable to BETRBRRA A2
HEHBAREE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
—E-MNE —F-=F
2014 2013
% %
REMHEXERAR(E) +E 100 100 afigx FiHERE
Jiaxing Xucheng Property “E2-=F 60,000,000  PRC Property development
Co., Ltd (note) +—RA-AR EHEX
PRC Registered
1 November 2013 USD60,000,000
paid up capital
LESREHERRAT  HE 5 5 wfEr 4@ RHERE
Cif3) “ZTRE ARH1700000007C  PRC Property development
Shanghai Haiji Real Estate ZAt+-H BHEXR
Co., Ltd. (note] PRC AZ 90,100,007
11 March 2005 Registered
RMB170,000,000
paid up capital
RMBA90,100,000
HEEREFARERARAA FH 100 100 iftax  fE AR
GRS “F——F 100000007  PRC Investment holding
Shanghai Hanpuka Commercial NA+EH BEHEX
Management Co., Ltd. (note) PRC 10,000,000 7T
17 August 2011 Registered
USD10,000,000
paid up capital
USD10,000,000
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46. FEMBATFHB @

46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
T5E
“+=A=+-H
BRIAYE DY TEfGHRIE
At Equity interest attributable to BETRBRRA A2
S NGES Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“B-mEF —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
DERMEXERAR () & 100 100 afigx FEHERE
Shanghai Xuhe Property “E-—F ARE10000000  PRC Property development
Co, Ltd. {note TAZtmA EHER
PRC AR 10,0000007C
24 QOctober 2012 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RIMB10,000,000
LBRREXERAR(ME) & 100 100 AftER i FHERE
Shanghai Xubang Property —T——fF AK#30,0000007,  PRC Property development
Co., Ltd. (note mA+EA BEHEAR
PRC AR 30,000,0007C
14 April 2011 Registered
RMB30,000,000
paid up capital
RMB30,000,000
LEREEXARAR ) wE 100 100 AR FHERE
Shanghai Xuyu Property —F——F ARE440000000  PRC Property development
Co. Ltd. (note) —f+=E BHER
PRC A 844,000,007
12 January 2011 Registered
RMB44,000,000
paid up capital
RMB44,000,000
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46. TEMBATFF =) 46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
T5E
“+=A=+-H
BRIAYE DY FelbkiE
At Equity interest attributable to BETRBRRA A2
S NGES Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“B-mEF —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
DEMREXERAR(HE) & 100 100 afigx FEHERE
Shanghai Xugiang Property “E-——F ARE10000000  PRC Property development
Co, Ltd. (note) NATAE EHEX
PRC AR 10,0000007C
19 September 2011 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RIMB10,000,000
DEREEEERAR(E) + 100 100 HHER FiERE
Shanghai Xuxiang Property —E-CF AR#50000007  PRC Property development
Co. Ltd. (note) +=ZA+H EHEXR
PRC AR 5,000,0007C
10 December 2012 Registered
RIB5,000,000
paid up capital
RMB5,000,000
HEBRERARARI(HE) +E 100 100 iftaR R FHERE
Shanghai Xuwei Property —E-CZF AK5,0000007T  PRC Property development
Co. Ltd. (note) +=A1E BHER
PRC AR 5,000,007
10 December 2012 Registered
RMB5,000,000
paid up capital
RMB5,000,000
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46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
T5E
W+ZR=+-H
BRIAYE DY TEfGHRIE
At Equity interest attributable to BETRBRRA A2
kNGRS Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“B-mEF —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
DERREXERAR(E) & 100 100 afigx FEHERE
Shanghai Xubai Property “E-=F ARH5000000c  PRC Property development
Co., Ltd (note) —ARA EHEX
PRC AR 5,000,007
5 January 2013 Registered
RMB5,000,000
paid up capital
RMB5,000,000
DERRBEERERAR  PE 100 100 afEx  HE FiERE
(PizE) —T-=% AR¥10000000  PRC Property development
Shanghai Xuxie Hotel Management ~ R A=H EHEXR
Co., Ltd (note) PRC AR H1,000,0007C
3May 2013 Registered
RMB1,000,000
paid up capital
RMB1,000,000
LEBEEEERAT(ND HE wo ai FAERE
Shanghai Xusuo Enterprise —T-=F ARE10000000T  PRC Property development
Co., Ltd (note) +—AAA BHER
PRC AR H1,000,0007C
5 November 2013 Registered
RMB1,000,000
paid up capital
RMB1,000,000
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46. FEMBATFHB @

(Continued)

46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

T5E
“+=A=+-H
BaAYE U= JE(h AE
At Equity interest attributable to BETRBRRA A2
S NGES Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“B-mEF —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
LBREEEERAGME) +E 100 100 HftER HE FHERSE
Shanghai Xugen Enterprise “E-=F ARE1000000c  PRC Property development
Co., Ltd (note) +—A%A EHEX
PRC ARE1,000,0007C
5 November 2013 Registered
RMB1,000,000
paid up capital
RMB1,000,000
DBEMEXERAR(ME) & 100 100 HER  HE FHERE
Shanghai Fengxu Property —E-=F AK#90000007T  PRC Property development
Co., Ltd (note) +=A=+%A BEHEAR
PRC AR 9,000,007
25 December 2013 Registered
RMB9,000,000
paid up capital
RMB3,000,000
EHRZEXARAR(EE) +E 100 100 AMER  E FHERE
Shengyeng Xuquan Property —E-=F ARE10000000  PRC Property development
Co., Ltd (note) +A=-+-8 BHER
PRC ARE10,000,0007T
21 October 2013 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
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46. FEMBATFHB @

46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
AEHE
“+=A=+-H
BaAYE U= JE(h AE
= Equity interest attributable to BRIRARRE Q2%
NG ES Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~~ Place of TREK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“B-mEF —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
LERBEEHEERERLAR HE 155 755 afigx FEiERE
(FizE) —ZTTF AR®100000007c  PRC Property development
Shanghai Tongshuo Real Estate —A-8 EHEAR
Development Co., Ltd. [note] PRC ARE7 550,007
1 February 2005 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB7,550,000
LBEREXRRBRAR H 100 100 AftEx FHERE
(B3E) —NNE ARH300000007c  PRC Property development
Shanghai Xinchen Property mA+EA BEHEAR
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC A 30,000,007
14 April 1998 Registered
RMB30,000,000
paid up capital
RMB30,000,000
HEMEEHEERAR H 100 100 FfER EiERE
(PsE) —FZ= ARE80,0000007  PRC Property development
Shanghai Xinbo Real Estate ZA+=H BHER
Co., Ltd (note) PRC AR E80,000,0007T
13 March 2003 Registered
RMBB0,000,000
paid up capital
RMBB0,000,000
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46. FEMBATFHB @

46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
T5E
W+ZR=+-H
BRIAYE DY TEfGHRIE
At Equity interest attributable to BETRBRRA A2
HEHBAREE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“B-mEF —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
ERERETIRARAR  HE 100 100 AMER  hE MEER
(BizE) “EERF AEHB0,0000007  PRC Property construction
Shanghai Xinzhi Construction +A=tH EHEAR
Co., Ltd. (note PRC AR 60,000,007
20 July 2005 Registered
RIMB60,000,000
paid up capital
RIMB60,000,000
LEREREEARRAR  E 100 100 AMER  E RERR
(M) “EERE ARH160,000000  PRC Investment holding
Shanghai Xuhui Investment T—AAR EHEXR
Advisory Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AR 160,000,000
9 November 2006 Registered
RMB160,000,000
paid up capital
RMB160,000,000
TERREEEREER e 100 100 AMER  E MEER
BRAR K —2-%F ARH200000007C  PRC Property management
Shanghai Xumei Business ~ANR BHER
Investment Management PRC AE 20,000,007
Co., Ltd. (note) 8 June 2010 Registered
RMB20,000,000
paid up capital
R\MB20,000,000
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46. FEMBATFHB @

46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
T5E
“+=A=+-H
BRIAYE DY TEfGHRIE
= Equity interest attributable to BRIRARRE Q2%
S NGES Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“B-mEF —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
DEMBEXERAR(H) & - 100 AR FHERS
Shanghai Xubo Property —T-%F ARE10000000  PRC Property development
Co, Ltd. (note) HATMEA EHEX
PRC AR 10,0000007C
14 May 2010 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RIMB10,000,000
LBRAIEXARAR(MEE) +E 100 100 AMER  HE FHERE
Shanghai Xuchuang Property “ERE AEK#60,0000007,  PRC Property development
Co, Ltd. (note) NA+T—H EHEXR
PRC A 60,000,0007C
11 September 2007 Registered
RIMB60,000,000
paid up capital
RMBG0,000,000
LEBEEXERAR(ME) +E 100 100 iftEx e FHERE
Shanghai Xuhui Property —ZENF AK35000,000T  PRC Property development
Co., Ltd. (note TA+MA BHER
PRC AE 35,000,007
14 October 2009 Registered
RMB35,000,000
paid up capital
RIB35,000,000
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46. FEMBATFHB @

46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
T5E
W+ZR=+-H
BRIAYE DY FelbkiE
At Equity interest attributable to BETRBRRA A2
HEHBAREE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“B-mEF —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
DEMREXERAR(HE) & 100 100 afigx FEHERE
Shanghai Xutong Property “E-—F ARE10000000  PRC Property development
Co., Ltd. (note NANB EHEX
PRC AR 10,0000007C
8 August 2012 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RIMB10,000,000
FNBBRHMEXARRA  E 100 100 AMER  HE FHERE
(K3E) ZTEhE AR649,0000007c  PRC Property development
Suzhou Xuhui High-Tech Property +=A=8 BEHEAR
Co., Ltd. (note PRC AR 649,000,000
3 December 2009 Registered
RMBG649,000,000
paid up capital
RMB649,000,000
HNBEEEXARLA e 100 100 AMER  E FHERE
(M3E) S 3 ARH140000000C  PRC Property development
Suzhou Xuhui Property Co. Ltd. ZA+=H BHER
(note) PRC A #140,000,0007T
13 March 2007 Registered
RMB140,000,000
paid up capital
RMB140,000,000
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(Continued)
AEHE
“+=A=+-H
BaAYE U= JE(h AE
= Equity interest attributable to BRIRARRE Q2%
NG ES Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~~ Place of TREK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“B-mEF —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
FNEBREEXARAR HE 100 100 HfER HE FHERSE
(WsE) “ETNE ARH191,0000000t  PRC Property development
Suzhou Xuhui Xingteng Property +=A=E EHEAR
Co., Ltd. (note PRC AR H191,000,0007T
3 December 2009 Registered
RMB191,000,000
paid up capital
RMB191,000,000
FNBLEXARAA(MEE) +E 100 100 AMER  E FHERE
Suzhou Xu Ming Property “T——F AR560,0000000  PRC Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (note) EA-TAAE EHEXR
PRC AR #560,000,0007C
29 May 2012 Registered
RMB560,000,000
paid up capital
RMB560,000,000
FMBEEXBRAR (M) HE 100 100 FMER  HE EiERE
Suzhou Xufeng Property —E-=F ARE20000000c PR Property development
Co., Ltd (note) —A=Z+ZH BHER
PRC AR #£20,000,0007T
22 February 2013 Registered
RMB20,000,000
paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
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46. TEMBARFR @) 46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
T5E
“+=A=+-H
BRIAYE DY TEfGHRIE
At Equity interest attributable to BETRBRRA A2
kNGRS Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“B-mEF —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
BNBAELERAR () & 100 100 afigx FEHERE
Suzhou Xubang Property “E-F AR®20000,000T  PRC Property development
Co., Ltd (note) NA+ZH EHEX
PRC AR 20,0000007C
12 September 2014 Registered
RMB20,000,000
paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
FHBRRARAERAT  +E w o aftax 48 R
(FitzE) —E-=f AEHE500000T  PRC Provision of consultancy
Suzhou Xuying Investment Advisoy ~ +A+A BEHEAR services
Co., Ltd (note) PRC AR 500,000
10 October 2013 Registered
RMB500,000
paid up capital
RMB500,000
LERRERBRAR (M) +E 100 100 AR FE FHERS
Shanghai Xuming Property —E-ZF ARHE1000000000  PRC Property development
Co., Ltd. (note +=A=1+NR BHER
PRC ARE100,000,0007T
28 December 2010 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
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46. TEMBATFF =) 46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
T5E
W+ZR=+-H
BaAYE U= TEfGHRIE
= Equity interest attributable to BRIRARRE Q2%
HEHBAREE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“B-mEF —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
LBRREEERAA(ME) +E 100 100 AftEx H FHERSE
Shanghai Xupu Property “EE=F ARE30000000  PRC Property development
Co, Ltd. (note) +—A%A EHEX
PRC A 30,000,007
5 November 2003 Registered
RMB30,000,000
paid up capital
RMB30,000,000
LBRREHELLERAR + 100 100 AftEx RUEERIZRE
(FitzE) “ZTRE ARH10000007  PRC Provision of property
Shanghai Xusheng Real Estate +—AZt++H EHEKR agency service
Agency Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AR H1,000,0007C
27 November 2006 Registered
RMB1,000,000
paid up capital
RMB1,000,000
TERERHEREERAR PE 100 100 AMER  E FHERE
(PfsE) “TEREF ARH800000007c  PRC Property development
Shanghai Xufeng Real Estate —A-+HA BHER
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC A 80,000,007
25 January 2005 Registered
RMBB0,000,000
paid up capital
RMBB0,000,000
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46. FEMBATFHB @

46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
AEHE
“+=A=+-H
Bl R JE(h AE
At Equity interest attributable to BETRBRRA A2
HEHBAREE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“B-mEF —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
LBRRRHESRLR HE 100 100 HER  HE FiERE
(BizE) —Z-TF ARK590000007T  PRC Property development
Shanghai Xutai Real Estate +—-A%A EHEAR
Co., Ltd. (note PRC AR 59,000,007
5 November 2010 Registered
RMB59,000,000
paid up capital
RMB59,000,000
DBKERHEREERAR +E 100 100 HER  HE FEiERE
(FitzE) “EE-F ARH80000007T  PRC Property development
Shanghai Yonghui Real Estate mA+N\R EHEXR
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AR H8,000,0007C
18 April 2001 Registered
RMB8,000,000
paid up capital
RMBB,000,000
PREKTDEERARRA  HE 100 100 AMER  E MEER
(M3E) 3 ARH100000007C  PRC Property management
Shanghai Yongsheng Property 1A=F-H BHER
Management Co., Ltd. note) PRC AE#10,000,0007T
31 May 2002 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
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46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
AEHE
“+=A=+-H
BaAYE U= JE(h AE
= Equity interest attributable to BRIRARRE Q2%
HEHBAREE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“B-mEF —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
LRERRERNEN HE 100 100 AftEx H AR
BRAR () —ET-F ARE1000,0000  PRC Provision of consultancy
Shanghai Yijian Architectural Design ~ \ A+=F EHEAR services
& Consulting Co., Ltd. [note) PRC ARE1,000,0007C
12 August 2002 Registered
RMB1,000,000
paid up capital
RMB1,000,000
REM R EFERE H % 51 iAftEx A FHERE
BRAA(H) “E-EF ANEE612245007t  PRC Property development
Tianjin Shijixing Real Estate mA+<H BEHER
Development Co. Limited (note) ~ PRC AR 15,306,157
16 April 2010 Registered
RMBG61,224,500
paid up capital
RMB15,306,125
ELRRE FHERE H 80 80 FfER EiERE
BRAR K —2——f ARH100000007C  PRC Property development
Tangshan Xuhui Yiwen Real Estate ~ + A+ H BHEAR
Development Co. Ltd. {note) PRC A #8,000,0007T
7July 201 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB8,000,000
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46. TEMBATFF =) 46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
T5E
W+ZR=+-H
BRIAYE DY TEfGHRIE
At Equity interest attributable to BETRBRRA A2
S NGES Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“B-mEF —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
REMBRHEREERAR FE 100 100 afigx FEHERE
(FizE) —E——F AEH1000000007c  PRC Property development
Tianjin Xuhai Real Estate NARA EHEAR
Development Co. Ltd. (note) PRC AR H100,000,0007T
5 August 2011 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
REIREEIBELRER e 100 100 AfMER  HE EHERS
BRAR (M) —E-F 20000000%7C  PRC Property development
Tianjin Xu Bin Creative Industrial +A-t+wA EHEXR
Park Managements Limited (note)  PRC 20,000,000 70
25 July 2012 Registered
1SD20,000,000
paid up capita
USD20,000,000
REMBERERN HE 100 100 AMER  HE A Z R
BREFAR () “E-=F ARH5000007T PR Provision of consultancy
Wuhan Xurun Investment Advisoy ~ BA=+ 7. BHER services
Co., Ltd (note) PRC AE 5000007
29 May 2013 Registered
RMB500,000
paid up capital
RMB500,000
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46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
T5E
“+=A=+-H
BaAYE U= JE(h AE
= Equity interest attributable to BRIRARRE Q2%
HEHBAREE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“B-mEF —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
EFXAEFERERAR  FE 100 100 HftER HE FHERSE
(KE) “NEF ARH450000000C  PRC Property development
Xiamen Yongsheng Enterprise +—-A=1H EHEAR
Development Co., Ltd. {note) PRC AR 845,000,007
20 November 1997 Registered
RMB45,000,000
paid up capital
RMB45,000,000
EFmAANEREERAR FE 100 100 AftER i NRER
(B3E) “WNEE ARH300000007C  PRC Property management
Xiamen Yongsheng Property +—A+=8 BEHEAR
Services Co., Ltd. note) PRC A 30,000,007
13 November 1995 Registered
RMB30,000,000
paid up capital
RMB30,000,000
JEEL( LB RABRBRAR HE 100 100 iftEx e BT
(BsE) —EZRE AEE20,0000007  PRC Investment holding
Xukai (Shanghai) Investment MANE BHER
Consultant Co., Ltd. [note) PRC AR #20,000,0007T
8 April 2005 Registered
RMB20,000,000
paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
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46. TEMBATFF =) 46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
T5E
W+ZRA=+-H
BRIAVEE Y FElbkiE
A Equity interest attributable to BETRBRRA A2
NGRS Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
—E-mE —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
JBRBRAR EERAES 100 100 AMEx  FE REER
Xu Ming Limited “2——F 50000%7  Hong Kong Investment holding
NA=+E - EeNE
BVI Registered
20 September 2011 USD50,000
paid up capital USD1
8% (FE)BRAR 0 100 AfMEx  FE REER
Xu Ming (HK) Limited “2——F 100007 Hong Kong Investment holding
AA=++A BEHER
Hong Kong 1B
27 September 2011 Authorised
HK$10,000
paid up capital HK$1
BIMBIRERS e 100 AR SE FHERE
BRAR(HE) “ZENF AEH200000007T  PRC Property development
Zhenjiang City Xujiang Real Estate AR BHER
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AZ#20,100,0007C
4 February 2008 Registered
RMB20,000,000
paid up capital
RMB20,100,000
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46. TEMBATFF =) 46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
T5E
“+=A=+-H
BRIAYE DY TEfGHRIE
= Equity interest attributable to BRIRARRE Q2%
NG ES Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~~ Place of TREK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“B-mEF —T-=F
2014 2013
% %
EImEEEERE HE 100 100 afigx FEHERE
BRARHE) “T-TF AEH500000007T  PRC Property development
Zhenjiang City Xurun Real Estate tA+nA EHEAR
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AR 50,000,007
19.July 2010 Registered
RMB50,000,000
paid up capital
RMB50,000,000
MIEBEXERAR (M) + 100 100 AftEx FHERE
Zhejiang Xuhui Property —TTRE AREE1000000007c  PRC Property development
Co., Ltd. (note NA=+=8 BEHEAR
PRC AR 100,000,000
23 August 2006 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
PRAEHEREARAR e 100 100 AMER  E FHERE
(M3E) ZTTNE AEH100000000C  PRC Property development
Zhongshi Real Estate Development ~ +— A48 EHER
Co., Ltd. note) PRC AR #100,000,0007C
14 November 2006 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital

RMB100,000,000

Msr : ARZEATWESMERERE L - HE Note: The English names of these companies represent the best effort made by management
AYEZRIBAARTNEIEERHEEZEFRXSR of the Company to directly translate their Chinese names as they did not register any
TBEK - official English names.
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46. TEMBE A TAFB @)

FRINGNEZRATEZEFAFAL
BAAREEEEFERRNIDHARA
MEAR - EFR /I HEMHERR
HEETREBMNILE -

S - AR R EEE R VA FE B EERE
B EEAIFE 125 B B RN RS BRE
1TakE - EERS - BENE 2 E5
WHEAH AN EBE AR IR -
FHitk - W EpL UL FIEREMB R RRKE
EFIER

47. HEHRESE

a. MZZE—AF—A+=H ARQA
2% K REREXREEZITHE
B #2 %4 3% 200,000,000 & JT A H#E (R
EEEBAEE([ZZT—NFHEINE
Bl —ZT-—EFHEIEBUAGE
8.875ETE B E(BXEXN—
RFE)  WBR=ZF—hF—A
—t+tHZEEE -

ZE-MOFRERER T —NF
BINEBRHRE R LT + AEAA
RIERIFELET  BARFAET
I IEAR IR B AR LRI IR B B
NEER - ZZFEREBUBRS
BRAOEMBEELE - WA
KRR EEBEARR
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46. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

In addition, the directors of the Company made an assessment as at
the date of initial application of IFRS 12 and at the end of the reporting
period. In the opinion of the directors, there are no subsidiaries that
have non-controlling interest individually that are material to the Group
and therefore no information is disclosed for these non-wholly owned
subsidiaries.

47. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

a. On 12 January 2015, the Company issued guaranteed fixed
rate senior notes to professional investors at premium of 2%
with aggregate nominal value of US$200,000,000 (the “2014
Additional Notes"”) which carry fixed interest of 8.875% per
annum (interest payable semi-annually in arrears) and will be fully
repayable by 27 January 2019.

Both the 2014 Original Notes and the 2014 Additional Notes
are listed on the Stock Exchange. They are unsecured, senior
obligations of the Company and guaranteed by certain of the
Company's existing subsidiaries, other than those organised
under the laws of the PRC. The guarantees are effectively
subordinated to the other secured obligations of each guarantor,
to the extent of the value of assets serving as security.
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47. HERREEE @) 47. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING

PER'OD(Comimued)

b. RZZT—RF—HF=-+H Z&RKXF b. On 20 January 2015, the Company as borrower, and certain
(ERERT ) RAREIE TR offshore subsidiaries of the Company as original guarantors,
BARI(ERRERA)BE—HEI B entered into a facility (“2015 Syndicated Loan") agreement with
W (ERERA)FIVER( =T a group of financial institutions as lenders.

—RFREER]DHE -

—E-AFREBERNVITSSELN The 2015 Syndicated Loan has an initial size of approximately
#$120,000,000E 7T (5 BME S - US$120 million (divided into two tranches: US$100 million and
100,000,0003€ 7t K& 156,000,000, HK$156 million) and a greenshoe option of an additional US$100
7t) - B E{&%ESN00,000,000% 7T million, with final maturity of 36 months after the first drawdown
WEEIMEREE - RIEERHAREE date, and bearing interest of LIBOR or HIBOR plus 4.75% per
RIRENGRIE B BAREET361E A - Wik annum.

RBIRITREH/R B ERXEFBRITH
EFEENMA. 75 ENFREETS ©
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Six Years’ Financial Summary

REt-AZ-ALER

For the year ended 31 December

2009 2010 01 2012 013 20
FAF FRF FF Fof IERf CERmR
RMBO00 RMBI000 RVB000 RVBO00 RMBO00 RMB'000
ARBTTL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
E4- RESULTS
WA Revenue 2631460 1162440 4008330 8,143,949 11,909,162 16,179,334
BAAE Profit before taxation 710,799 1034007 2204504 2839603 2974876 33825
FEmEY Income tax expense (261999 (359,046 (742.449) (818,809 933743 (1,325.231)
FRfE Profit for the year 148,801 67491 1,462,055 200834 200113 199,588
PATATEL Atributable to:
NI ZPN Owners of the Company 342,015 174,176 136,920 1997127 1694231 1861149
KAERIERBA Owners of perpetual capital instruments - - - - - 3913
iR Other non-controling interests 10675 200785 125135 8707 146902 1025%
106,75 200785 125135 8707 146902 138,439
148,801 674,91 1,462,055 2000834 200113 1,999,588
SRER - AR Earnings per share, RMB
A Basic T N/A TR N/A 030 04 03 031
4 Diuted TR NA TR N/A 030 00 033 031
BEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BLE Total assets 7501475 11,386,551 19224898 26,856,515 39,106,097 13538639
BaE Totallabiliies (.566.522) (8777785 (15,580,403) (19915321) (23.950,702) (31.955,721)
1954953 2608765 364,49 6,340,594 9,155,395 11582918
YNGIL 2P Equity attrbutable o
iR ER owners of the Company 137113 1835312 3270628 6549528 8610953 10,205,009
KABAIR Permetual capital instruments - - - - - 585,10
Hth iR Other non-controlling nterests 583817 13454 913867 391,066 54444 792,159
583817 1345 33867 391,086 544417 1377869
1,954,953 2608765 364,49 6,340,594 915,39 11582918
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